
Sue Feldmann 

From: Sue Feldmann 
Sent: Friday, April 15, 2016 9:34 AM 
To: . Nathan Barankin 
Cc: Rowena Aquino; Kelly Sloan; Victoria Sawyer 
Subject: FW: Case No. 3:15-cv-3522 ~ NAF v. The Center for Medical Progress Biomax 

Procurement Services, David Daleiden, and Troy Newman 
Attachments: NAF - Letter to K. Harris re Confidential Materials.pdf 

Attached is a letter dated 4-15-16 from Morrison/Foerster regarding video files seized by DOJ on April 61 2016 from 
David Daleiden. I am forwarding this email to the CDAG office for review/handling . 

., ............ _..,,_, ....... 1, ..... ___ .,.,,...,,.,,,. ... --...,-. .... ,.-...... - ... "'f/' .. _"""'"' ____ ..,_, __ .. _, __ ..... ~.---·-... ,,,;,. .... .., ...... _ ............. .__ • ., ... ,, .. _, .......... ,. ......... -..1~ ........... --......... ,,,,.,,,_:""_"_""'~' .. -'..,,,~---.... , .. __ ..,,,_, ... .,., ... 

From: Bento, Christine [mailto:CBento@mofo.com] 
Sent: Thursday, April 14, 2016 5:08 PM 
To: Kamala Harris 
cc: Victoria Terry; Foran, Derek F. . . 
SuQject: Case No. 3:15-cv-3522 - NAF v. The Center for Medical Progress Blomax Procurement $ervlces, David Dalelden, 
and Troy Newman 

SENT ON BEHALF OF DEREK FORAN 

Dear ·Madam Attorney General Harris: In connection with the above referenced case please find the attached 
correspondence sent on behalf of Mr. Derek Foran. 

Orlglr:ial to follow via express mall. 

Respectfully submitted. 

Christine Bento 
Legal Secretary to D~rek Foran, Todd Edmister and Dustin Elliott 
Morrison & Foerster LLR 
425 Market St. I San Francisco, CA 94105 
P: +1 (415) 268.6730 
CBento@mofo.comlwww.mofo.com 

--
· This message contains information which may be confidential and privileged. Unless you are the addressee ( or 
authorized to receive for the addressee), you may not use, copy or disclose to anyone the message or any 
information contained in the message. If you have received the message in err.or, please advise the sender by 
reply e-mail CBento@mofo.com, and delete the message, 
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. Kelty Sloan 

From: 
Sent: 

· To: 
Cc: 

Bento, Christine <CBento@mofo.com> 
Thursday, April 14, 2016 5:08 PM 
Kamala Harris 
Victoria Ter · Foran, Der~k F. 

Subject: Case o. : -cv-3522 - NAF v. The Center for Medical Progress Biomax Procurement 
Services, David Daleiden, and Troy Newman 

Attachments: NAF - Letter to K. Harris re Confidential Materials.pdf 

SENT ON BEHALF OF DEREI< FORAN 

Dear Madam Attorney General Harris: In connection with the above referenced case please find the attached 
correspondence sent on· behalf of Mr. Derek Foran. 

Original to.follow via express mail. 

Respectfully submitted. 

Christine Bento 
Legal Secretary to Derek Foran, Todd Edmister and Dustin Elllott 
Morrison & Foerster LLP 
425 Market St. I San Francisco, CA 94105 
P: +1 (415) 268.6730 
CBento@rnofo.com I vyww.mofo.oom 

=====--= === 

This message contains information which may' be confidential and privileged. Unless you are the addressee ( or 
authorized to receive for the addressee), you may not use, copy or disclose to anyone the message or any 
information contained in the message. If you. have received the message in ·error, please advise the sender by 

· reply e-mail CBento@mofo.com, and delete the message.· 
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MORRISON FOERSTER 

April 15, 2016 

Via Email & Express Mail 

Ms. Kamala Harris 
Office of the Attorney General 
State of California 
455 Golden Gate Ave, Suite 11000 
San Francisco, CA 94102~7004 

425 MARKET STREET 
SAN FRANCISCO 
CALIFORNIA 94105-2482 

TELEPHONE: 415.268,7000 
FACSIMILE: 415.268,7522 

WW,Xl.MOFO.COM 

MORRISOW rORRS'fBR UP 

na1J I No, DBR~IN, llRUSS!LS, DENVSR, 
HONO KONO, ~ONl)ON, LOS ANOELES 1 
NBW YORJt, NORTH!!RN VIMllNIA, 
PALO .t\l.TO, S.ACR.,UlitNT0 1 SAN bll!G0 1 

SAi-, Fll.ANCUCO, SHhNOHAl, SINGAPOR.t', 
ro K\'Ot W>.SH IN 01'0 N, o.c. 

Writer's Direct c:;ontaot 
+! ( 415) 268.6323 · 
DForan@mofo.com 

Re: Viqeo Files Seized from David Dalei.d.en on April 6, 2016, Protected.from Disclosure 
by a Federal Preliminary Injunction and Protective (?rder 

Dear Ms. Harris: 

I am outside litigation co'unsel for the National Abortion Federation ("NAP') in the matter 
NAF v. The Center for Medical P.rogress Bio max Procurement Services, David Daletden, 
and Troy Newman, Case No. 3:15-cv-3522, currently pending in the·Northern District of 
California .. Based on published media.reports, I understand that the Office of the Attorney 
General seized video footage in the possession of David Da:leiden during the execution of a 
search wan·ant of Mr. Daleiden's premi.ses on April 6, 2016 .. I further understand that among 

· the material seized was video footage that Mr. Daleiden illegaliy. obtained by surreptitiously 
recording NAF members and meeting atten~ees at NAP' s annual medical conferences. 

I a1~ writing to inform you that the NAP video footage seized by the Office of th~ Attorney 
General is curl'ently protected from disclosure by a Federal Preliminary Injunction. I have 
attached a copy of the Federal Preliminary Injunction for your convenience. · 

Given the high sensitivity of this material, we respectfuU.y urge restraint in your Office's 
handling of the NAF video footage. The federal district court has already found that in 
illegally. recording NAF's members, the defendants assumed false identities, created a fake 
company, and entered into confidentiality-agreements - agi:eements designed to protect NAF 
members - that they unquestionably breached. The federal court has also found that the 0212 disclosure of these materials.woufd cause irreparable injury to NAP and its members, ,{o~f/J')). /A <<a,a 
including harassment and. death threats leveled .at the individuals who were surreptit' ~ly :01 ~~ 
taped. As has been widely reportedi NAF members have suffered an onslaught of !!! Received i 

E APRREC'D g 
~ AfTORIIEY GOiEIIAL f.i!cll\1•1e OIiier. /lJ 
<' 0 
\, h(j,/1 -{!JilJ:JJ{;j 

d~. ti / 
:C: Si!:) V.:. I,\, . .... . 

sf-3644279 
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MORRISON I FOERSTER 

Kamala Harris 
April 15, 2016 
Page Two 

intimidation and harassment in the wake of CMP's videotaping campaign, culminating in the 
brutal and tragic murder of three individuals at a N'AF member clinic in Colorado, a clinic 
that CMP prominently featured in its early videos. '.I'he Federal Preliminary Injunction i.s 
designed to protect NAF' s members from any further instances of extreme harassment and 
violence of the type that has been perpetrateq against them thus far in the wake of CMP' s 
campaign. · 

Separately, the NAP video footage has been designated a.C?nfidential 1;1.nder the·federal court's 
.Protective Order, a copy of which is also enclosed for your convenience. 

Thank you for.your professional courtesy and.co.operation in this.matter. We have no doubt 
that you will treat thls·matter with the utmost sensitivity in light or the' circumstances. If you 
have any questions, please do not hesitate to reach out to me directly. 

Sincerely, 

. DerekF. Foran 

Enclosures 

cc: 
Victoria Ten·y (via.email) 

sf-3644279 
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1 LJNDA E. SHOSTAK (CA SBN 64599) 
LShostak@mofo.com 

2 DEREK F. FORAN (CA SBN 224569) 
DForan@mofo.com · 

3 CHRISTOPHER L. ROBINSON (CA SBN 260778) 
· ChristopherRobinson@mofo.com 

4 MORRISON & FOERSTER LLP 
425 Market Street 

5 San Francisco, California 94105-2482 
Telephone: 415.268.7000 

6 facsimile: 415.268.7522 

7 Attorneys for Plaintiff · 

8 

9 

NATIONAL ABQRTION FEDERATION (NAF) 

10 

11 

12 

UNITED STA.TBS DISTRICT COURT 

NORTHERN DISTRICT OF CALIFORNIA 

13 :NATIONAL ABORTION FBDERATIO!'l° (NAP), 

14 Plaintiff, 

15 v. 

16 THE CENTER FOR MEDICAL PROGRESS, 
BIOMAX PROCUREMENT SERVICES LLC, 

17 DAVID DALEIDEN (aka "ROBERT SARKIS''), 
and TROYNEWMANt 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

26 

27 

28 

Pefendants. 

STJPULATED PROTECTIVE ORDER FOR EXPEDITED D:CSCOVERY 
CASENO, 3:15-CV-3522-WHO 
sf-3563261 

Case No. 3:15-cv-3522-WHO 

Hon. Willian:,. H. Orrick, ill 

STIPULATED PROTECTIVE 
ORDER FOR PURPOSES OF 
EXPEDITED PRELIMINARY 
JN.:f[JNCT10N DISCOVERY 

Date Action Filed: July 31, 2015 
Trial Date: 
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1. PURPOSES AND LIMITATIONS 

1.1 Plaintiff National Abortion Federation ("NAP') and Defendants the Center 

for Medical Progress, Biomax Procurement Services, LLC, David Daleiden (ak~ "Robert Sarkis'') 

and Troy ~ewmah (collectively, "Defendants") submit that disclosure and d~soovery in this action 

are likely to involve production of confidential, proprietary, or private information for which 

special protection from public dis~losure and from use .for any purpose other than prosec~ting this 

litigation )s warranted. Accordingly, the Parties hereby stipulate to and petltion the court to enter 

the following stipulated protective order (or the purposes of expedited preliminary injunction 

discovery (this "Stipulation, and ·Order"): The Parties acknowledge that this Stipulation and Order 

does not confer blank.et·protections on ·all disclosures or-responses to discovery and that the 

protectfon it affords ex.tends only to th~ information or items that are entitled under the applicable 

legal principles to treatment as confidential. 

. 1.2 This Protectlve Order shall not be construed to preclude the named parties 

and client representatives from. attending d~positions taken in this Action. 

2. DEFINITIONS 

. 2.1 "Action" means the above-captioned action, presently pending in the 

United States District Court for the Northern District of California. 

2.2 Party: Any party to this Action; including all of its officers, directors, 
. . ' . 

employees, consultants, retained experts,. and outside counsel (and their support staff). 

2.3 ,Non~Party: Any person, not a Party, who serves as a witness or provides 

Disclosure or Discovery Material in this Action. 

2.4 Disclosure or Discovery,Material: All items or information, regardless of 

the mediuin or the manner in which it is generated, stoi-ed or maintained (including, among other 

things, testimony, transcripts, or tangible th_ings), that is produced or generated in disclosures or 

responses to discovery in this Action. 

2.5 "CONFIDENTIAL" I11formatio11 or Items: Disclosure .or Discovery 

Material that is non-public and that a Party or 'N,on-Pa1ty in good faith believes must be held . . . 

. 
STIPULATED PROTECTIVE 0RDBRFORBXPBD1TED DISCOVERY 
CASBNO, 3:15-CV·:3522-WHO 
sf-3563261 
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confidential to protect personal privacy interests, confidential, proprietary, and/or commercially 

sensitive information, or otherwise has a compelling need for privacy. . . 

2.6 "HIGHLY CONFIDENTIAL - ATTORNEYS' EYES ONL Y11 

Information or' Items: Disclosure or Discovery Material that is extreme.ly confidential and/or 

sensitive in nature, including highly sensitive personal privacy information, disclosure of which 

to anotner' Party or Non-Party the Producing Party reason'ably believes ls likely to oause a 

substantial risk of serious injury that could not be avoided by less restrictive means. This . . . 
includes all NAP Personal Identification Information as defined in paragraph 2.11 below. 

2.7 Receiving Party: A Pal"o/ that receives Disclosu~e o.r Discovery Material 

proviided, produced or made available for inspection by a Proqucing Party; 

2.8 Producing Pa~y: A Party or Non-Party that provides, pro~uoes or makes 

available for inspection Disclosure or Discovery Material in the course of this Action. 

2.9 Designating Party: A Party or Non-Party that designates information or . . . 
items that it produces in disclosures or in responses to discovery as CONFIDENTIAL or 

HIGHLY CONFIDENTIAL-ATTORNEYS' EYES ONLY. 

' 2.10 Protected Matei"ial: Any Disclosure or Discovery Material that is 

designated as or deemed to be CONFIDEN'TI.AJ-, or HIGHLY CONFIDENTIAL.­

ATTORNEYS' .EYES ONLY. 

2.11 NAF Personal Identification Information: Any Disclosure or Discovery 

Material that NAF produces 01· discloses may contain information related to NAP that reveals . . 
private identifying information. Given the highly sensitive nature of this Action and .t~e privacy 

interests involved, such information is defined broadly to include: 

(a) Names ofNAF staff, NAF me.mbers, and any attendees or other 

participants of any NAP Annual M.eeting; 

(b) 

(c) 

Security code words use.d by NAF; 

All photo.s. videos or auc;lio recordings ofNAF staff. NAF 

members, and any attendees or other participants of any NAF Annual Meeting; 

ST!PULA TED PROTECTIVE ORDER FOR EXPEDITED DISCOVERY 
CASE NO. 3:l 5•CV·352:2.-WHO 
sf-3563261 
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(d) Social-security numbers o'fNAF staff, NAP members, and any 

attendees or participants at any NAF Annual Meeting; 

(e) Taxpayer-identification numbers of NAP, NAF staff, NAF 

members, and ·any attendees or participants at any NAF Annual Meeting; 

. (f) Any financial.account numbers ofNAF,.NAF st~ff, NAP members, 

and any attendees or participants at any NAF Annual Meeting; 
' ' 

(g) Birthdates ofNAF staff, NAF members, and any attendees or · 

participants at any NAP Annual Meeting; 

' ' (h) Direct telephone numbers of NAF staff, NAF members, and any 

attendees or participants at any NAF Annual Meeting; 

(i) Drivers' License numbers ofNAF staff, N~F memb1:1rs,,and ~y 

attendees or participants at any NAF ~nnual Meeting; 

. G) Addres~es of NAF ~taff, N_AF members, and any attendees ·or 

participa,pts. at any NAF ~nnual Meeting; and . 

(k) Email addres~es_ofNAF.staff, NAF inembers, and any attendees or 

parti~ipants at a~y·NAF ,Ann~al Meeting. 

2.12. Outside Counsel; Attorneys who are not emp!oyees of a Party but whci are 

employed at law firms that appear on the pleadings as counsel for a Party ln this Action .and who 
. . . 

have been admitted to practice before the United'States pi~trict Court of the Northern Di~trict of 
. . 

California in this Action (including by pro hac vice admission).· · 

2.1-3 In-House Counsel: Attorneys who are employees of. a Party who have 

signed the "Qeneral Acknowledgment of Co~fidentiality and Agreement to Be Bound by 

Protective Order" that is attached hei·eto as Exhibit A-1. 

2.14 Non-Party Counsel: Attorneys who represent a Non-Party and who have 

signed the "General A~knowledgment of Confidentiality a.pd Agreement to be Bound by 
Protective Order" that is attached hereto as Exhibit,A-1. 

STIPULATED PROTECTIVE ORDER FOR EXPEDITED DISCOVERY 
. CASE NO. 3:15-CV-3522-WHO 
sf-3563261 
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2.15 Counsel (without qualifier): Outside Cou~ .. s~l and In-House Counsel (as 

well as their support staffs). 

2.16 Expert: a person who has been retained by a P~rty or its Outside Counsel 

to serve as a testifying or non-testifying expert or consultant in this Action. This definition 

includes any profess_ional jury or tri~I consL)ltant retained ~n connection with this Action but does 

not include mock jurors. 

2.17 Profes~fonal Vendors: Persons or entities that provide litigation support 

services (e .. g., photocopying; video.taping; ~ranslating; preparing exhibits or demonstrations; 

organizing, storing, retl_'ieVing data in' any ~arm or medium; ~to.) and thejr employees and 

subcontractors. ' 

3. SCOPE 

The protections conferred by this Stipulation and Order cover not only Protected Material 

(as defined above), but al.so (1) any information copied or extracted from Protecte~ Materia!;.(2) 

.all copies,. excerpts; summaries, or co'mpil?,tions of Protected Mat.epial; and (3) any testimony, 

conversations, or presentations by Partie~ or their Counsel ~hat might reveal Protected Material. 

Howe:ver, the protections conferred· by this Stipulation and Order do not cover the 
. ' ' 

following i.JJforma~ion: (~) any information that is in the public domain at the time ~f disclosure to 

. a Receiving Party or becomes part of the public domain after its disclosure to a Receiving Party 

as a result of publication not involving a vloiation of this Order, including bec?ming part of the .' 

public record through trial or otherwise; and (b) anr information known to the Receiving Party · 

prior to the disclosure or obtained by t4e Receiving Party after the disclosure from a sburce who 

obtained the information lawfully and under no obligation- of confidentiality to the Designating 

Party. Any use of Protected Material at trial shall be governed by a separate agreem.ent or order.' 
', • I • 

4. DURATION 

After the termination of this Action, the confidentiallty obligations imposed by this 

Stipulation and Protective Order shall remain in effect until a Designating P~rty agrees otherwise 

in writing or a Court order otherwise directs.· 

. STIPULATED PROTECTIVE ORDER FOR EXPEDITED DISCOVERY. 
CASEN0.3:15-CV-3522-WHO . 
sf-3563261 
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5. DESIGNATING PROTECTED MATERIAL 

:S.1 Procedur7s for Designating Material for Protection: Any Party to this 

1· 

2 

'3 

4 

5 

6 

7 

8 

9 

10 

11 

Action, or any Non-Party who produces Disclosure or Discovery Material, shall have the right to 

designate as CONFIDENTIAL orI-lIGHLY CONFIDENTIAL-ATTOR}:JEYS' EYES ONLY 

any Protected Material it produces. All Protected fy1ateri~l shall bear a legend on each page 

stating that the material is "CONFIDENTIAL" or "HIGHLY CONFIDENT;t.AL -

ATTORNEYS' EYES ONLY." Materia~s designated as or deemed to be CONFIDENTIAL or 

HIGHLY CONFIDENTI~L-ATTORNEY~' EYES ONLY consistent with this Stipulation and 

.Protective Order are subject to the provision~ of this Stipulation .and Protective Order and sHall be 

protected, used, handled and disposed· of in accor.dance with the provisions of this Stipulation and· 

. 12 

13 

14 

15 

. . 
Protective Or~er. 

Eacli Party or Non-Party that designates lnfqrmation or items f?r protection under this 

O~der must .take care· to limit any.st'.!ch designation to specific material that qualifies under the 

appropriate standards set forth herein. A Designating Party must tal~e care to designate for 

protection only those material~, documents, items. or oral or w!·itten co~municaticins that so 

16 · · quali~y. 

17 5.2 Manner and Timing of 3:>esignatio~s: Except as otherwise provided in this 

18 Stipulation and Protective Order (see, e.g .• secof.ld. paragraph of 5.2(a). below) or as otherwise . ', . . 
19 · stipulated or ordered, material that qualifies for protection under this Stipulation and Protective 

20 Order must be clearly designated as such before the material is disclo.sed or.produced. 
. . 

21 Designation in conformity with this Stipµlation and Protective Order requires: 

22 . (a) For Information in Documentary Form (apart from tran~cripts of 

2'3 depositions or other pretrial proceedings): That the Producing Party affix the legend . ' 

24 "CONJ?IDENTIAL" or "HIGH;L Y CONFIP~NTIAL - A TTO.RNEYS' EYES ONLY" on each 

25 page th~t contains Protected M~tedal. In order to speed up the process of producing large 

26 volumes of Protected Material. multi~page documents in which Protected.Material is pervasive 

27 may be marked "GONFIDENTIAV or "HIGHLY CONFIDENTIAL -ATTORNEYS' EYES. 
. . 

28 ONLY" throughout.' Where it is not possible to affix a legend to particular Protect~d Material, 

STIPULATED PROTECTIVE ORDER FOR EXPEDITED DISCOVERY J 5 
CASE NO. 3:15-CV-3522-Wl-!0 
sf-3563261 
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th~ Producing Party shall take reasonable steps to give all Receiving Parties notice of the 

Protected Material's status as such. Except as otherwi?e agreed, within .45 days after receipt of 

Di~closure or Discovery Material, ~n1 Receiving Party may designate the material as. 

11CONFIDENTIAL" or "HIGHLY CONFIDENTIAL-ATTORNEYS' EYES ONL yu 

A Party or Non-Party that maj<:es original documents or materials available for inspection 

need not designate them for protection until after the inspectirtg Party has indicated which 

material it.would like copied and produced. During the inspection and before the designation, all 
. . 

of the material made av.ailable for inspection shall be deemed "HI~HL Y CONFIDENTIAL -

ATTORNEYS' EYES O~L Y." After th.e in~pecti17,g Party has identified the documents it wants 
. ' ' 

copied and produced, the Producing Party must determine which documents qualify for protection. 

under this Order. Then, before producing the specified dqcuments, the Producing Party must . 

affi~ 'the appropriate legend ("CONFIDENTIAL" or "HlGHL 'J CONFIDJ?NTIAL - . 

ATTORNEYS' EYES ONLY") ori each page that contains Protected Material, ex~ept that multi­

page documents may be designated in accordance with the preceding paragraph. 

. (b) For Testimony Given in Deposition or in ·Other Pretrial 

P~oceedings: · Any Party or Non-Party offering or sponsoring the testimony may· identify ·on the 

reco.rd, before the close of the deposition, hearing or oth~r proceeding, all protected 'testimony and 

ma.y further specify any portions of the testimony that qualify as "CONFIDENTIAL" or 

"HIGHLY CONFIDENTIAL-ATTORNEYS' EYES ONLY." Alternatively, within thirty (30) 
. ' 

I ' 

days of receipt of a transcript or recording of·a deposition or other pretrial proceeding, the 

offering or sponsoring f arty or Non-Party may designate such transcript or ·recording or any 
. . 

portion thereofas ''CONFIDENTIAL" or"HIGHLY CONFIDENTIAL-ATTORNEYS' BYES 

ONLY" by notifying all Parties, in writing, of the specific pages and lines of the transcript or 

recorciing that should be treated as "CONFIDENTIAL" or ''.HIGHLY CONFIDENTIAL­

ATTORNEYS' EYES ONLY." All transcripts or r~cordings of depositions or o.ther pretrial 

proceec;!ings shall be treated as "I:fIGHL Y.. CONFID ENTIAI:,'- ATTORNEYS' EYES ONLY" for 

thirty (30) days after receipt of0e transcript or recording, or until writt~n noti~e of a designation 

STIPULATED PROTECTIVE ORDER FOR EXPEDITED DISCOVERY 
CASE NO. 3:15-cv-3522-WHO 
sf-3563261 
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is received, whichever occurs first. In the case of a Non-Party; testimony can be designated as 

containing "CONFIDENTIAL" or "HIGHLY CONFIDENTIAL-ATTORNEYS' EYES 

ONLY" information by a Party, the No~-Party ~r upon agreement of the Parties. 

· Transcript pages containing Protected Material must be ·separately ~ound by the court 

reporter, who must affix to t_he top of each such page the legend "CONFIDENTIAL" or 

"HIGHLY CONFIDENTIAL-ATTORNEYS' EYES ONLY" as instructed by the PartyorNon­

Party offering or .sponsoring the witness or presenting the testimony. 

In the event the deposition is yideotaped, the original and all copies of the videotape shaII 

be marked by the video technici~n· to in di oat~ that thei contents of the videotape are subject to. this 

Stipulation and Pi;otective Order, substantially a~o·ng the lines of "This videotape contains 

confidential testimony used in this case and is notto be viewed or the contents thereof.to be . 

displayed .or revealed except Pl!rsuant to the term~ of the operative Stipulation and Protective 

Order in this Action or pursuant to written stipulation of the parties/'. 

Except as stated in Section 1.2 above, _counse~ for any Producing Party shall have the right 
' . 

to exclude from oral de~ositions, other than the deponent, deponent's counsel, the reporter and 

videographer (if any), any person who is not authorized by this Stip·ulation and Protective Order 

to receive or- access Protected Material bas.ed on the.designation of such Protected Material. Such 

right of exclusion shall be applicable only during periods of exam.ination or testimony regardh:1g 

such Protected Material. 

(c) · For Inforination Produced in A Form Other than Documentary, ~nd 

for Any Other Tangible Items: The Producing Party shall affix in a: prominent place on the 

exterior of the container or containers in which the information or item is 'stored the legend 

".CONFIDENTIAL" or "HIGHLY CONFIDENTIAL-ATTORNEYS' EYES ONLY." 

(d) For Il1spection of Things or Premises: The Producing Party sh'all 

state in writing prior to the inspection that "CONFIDENTIAL" or uHlGHL Y CONFIDENTIAL­

ATTORNEYS' EYES ONLY" infomrntion or material will be revealed. 
I 

STIPULATED PROTECTIVE ORDER FOR EXPEDITED DISCOVERY 
CASE NO. 3:15-CV-3522-WHO ' 
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5.3 Upward Designation of Information or Items Produced by Other Parties or 

Non-Parties. A Party may upward designate (i.e., change any documents or other material 

produced without a designation to a designation of"CONFIDENTIAL" or "HIGHLY. 

CONFIDENTIA.I,, -ATTORNEYS' EYES ONLY," or change any Protected Material produced 

as "CONFIDENTIAL" to a designation of "HIGHLY CONFIDENTIAL -ATTORNEYS' EYES 
. . 

ONLY,") any Disclosure or Discovery Material produ~ed by any other Party.or Non:..Party, 

provided that said Disclosure or Discovery Material contains the upward designating Party's own 

· CONFIDENTIAL or HIGHLY CONFIDENTIAL -ATTORNEYS' EYES ONLY information, 

or otherwise is ent~tled to protective treatment under Fed. R. ~iv. P. 26(c). Upward designation 

shall be accompl~shed by providing written notice.to al! Parties identifyi~g (by'Bates number or 
11 

· other individualJy identifiable information) the Disclosure or Discovery Material to be re-
12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

26 

27 

28 

designated within sixty (60) days of production by the Producing Party. Failure to upward· . 

. designate within sixty (60) days ofp_roduction, alone, will not prevent a farty from obtaining the 

agreement of alJ Parties to upward designate certain Disclosure or Discovery Material or from · 
. . 

moving the Court for such relief, Any Pal'ty may object to the upward designation of Disclosure 
' . 

or Discovery Material pursuant to the procedures set forth herein regarding challenging 

designations. 

5.4 Inadvertent Failures to Designate and Redesignation:. A Producing Party 

that inadvertently fails to c;lesignate Disclosure o~· Discovery Material as "CONFIDENTIAL,, or 

"HIGHLY CONFIDENTIAL-ATTORNEYS' EYES ONLY" pursuant to this Stipulation and 

Protective Order at the time of its production shall be able to make a correction to its designation, 

with the Receiving Party reserving the right t? assert such re-designation is improper pursuant to 

the procedures set.forth herein regarding chaqenging designations. Such failure shall be 

corrected by providing. to the Receiving Party written notice of the error and substituted copies of 
the inadvertently unmarked or mis-marked Disclosure or Discovery Materials. Any party 

receiving such inadvertently unmarked or mis-marked Disclosure or Discovery Materials shall, 

within five (5) days of receipt of the substitute copies, destroy or return to·the law firm 

STIPULATED PROTECTJVE ORDER FOR EXPEDJTED.DISCOVERY 
CASE NO. 3:15-CV-3522-WHO, . 
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. . 
representing the Producing Party al1 copies 9f such mis-designated documents. The Producing 

Party shall comply .with Paragraph 5.2 when redesignating Disclosure or Disqovery Material as 

Protect7d Material. Following any redesignation of Disclosure or Discovery Material as 

Protected Material (or redesignation of "CONFIDENTIAL" material as "HIGHLY . . 
CONFIDENTIAL -ATTO~E"'(S' EYES ONLY"), the Party receiving such Protected Material ., 
shall ta~e reasonable steps to comply with the redesignation·, including, without limitation, 

retrlevfog ali copies and excerpts of any redesignated Protected Material from· persons not entitled 

to receive it as re-designated.· 

A Receiving Party shall not be in breach of this S_tip~Iatfon and Protective Order for any 

use of such inadvertently-hon-desi~ated or inadve~1:ent1y-mis-designated mateyrial befo~e the 

Receiving ~arty receives notice of the inadvertent failure to designate, unless a reasonable person 

would have realized that the material should ·have been appropriately designated with a . . . 
confidentiality d~signatio~ u~der this Stipulation and Protective Order. Once a Receiv~ng Party 

has received notice of the inadvertent failure to designate pursuant ~o this provision, the 

Receiving.Party s~all treat such material at the appropriately design~ted level pursuant to the · 

terms of this Stipulation·and Protective Order, reserving all rights to assert that such re­

de.signation is not proper under the prncedures set forth herein ~egarding challenging 

designat_ions. 
. . 

6.-· REDACTING NAF PERS.ONAL IDENTIFICATION INFORMATION 

In addition to designating Disclosul'e or Discovery tnate1'ial containing NAP P.ersona1 

Identification Information as defined in paragraph 2.11 above as "HIGHLY CONFIDENTIAL -

ATTOR;NEYS' EYES ONLY" in accordance with this Stipulation and Or~er, N;AF may redact 

all NAF Personal Identification Information from all Disclosure and Discovery material it · 

produces for the purposes of Expedited Preliminary Injunction Discovery. The redaction ofNAF 

Pers?nal Jdentificatio~ Information wil1 be done in such a way that those pers.ons will be 

anonymously identified in a consistent, recognizable manner (e.g., Person #1, Person #2, etc.; or 

Security Code), and NAP will disclose to Outside Counsel the identity of any witnesses who have · 

STIPULATED PROTECTIVE.ORDER .FOR EXPEDITED DISCOVERY 
CASENO, 3:lS-cv-3522-WHO 
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been noticed for deposition and whose NAP Personal Identiticatioq Information, has been 

redacted in accordanc~ with this provisio·n. 

7. CHALLENGING! CONFIDENTIALITY DESIGNATIONS 

7.1 Timing of Challenges: The R~ceiving Party must challenge the 

Designating Party's designations within ninety (90) days of receipt of the challenged information. 

7.2 Meet and Confer: A Part~ that elects to initiate a challenge to a 

Designa~ing Parfy's confidentia1ity designation mus~ do so in good fai'!]l and must begin the 

p~ocess by conferring directly (in voice-to-voice dialogue; other forms of communication are not 

sufficient) with .counsel fo.r the Designating Party. In conferring, the challenging Party must 

i_dentify the sp~cific Bates (or other indi.vidua!ly identifiable) range(s) for the challenged 

document(s), explain, the ba~is for its belief that the confidentiality d'es~gnation was not proper 

and must give the.Designating Party a reasonaqle opportunity {not to exceed 3 business days) to 

review the de~ignated material, reconsider the c,ircumstances and, ifno change in designation is 

offered, explain the basis for the chqsen designation. A challenging Party may proceed to the 
' ' 

ne~t s~age of the challenge process only if it has first engaged in this· meet-and-confer process. 

7.3 . Judicial Intervention: A Party that elects to press a challenge to a 

confidentiality designation after considering the justification offered by the Designating Party 

pursua~t to the precei:lipg paragraph may prepare· in ~ccordance wit~ the Court; s Standing Orde1: a 
. ' ' 

concise joint ~tatement of five pages or less, stating the naturi:: and status· of the dispute; and 

certifying that the Parties h~ve met the· meet-and-confer requirement ( or if a joint statement is not 

possible, each side may submit a brief individual statemertt of two pages or Jess, including a 

certification of compliance with the meet-and-confer requirement and an explanation of why a 

· joi11t statement was not possible). 

Nothing in this Stipulation a,nd Protective Order shall preclude or prejudice any Party 

from arguing for or against any designation, esta~lish any presumption that a particular 

designation is va!i~, or alter the.burden of proof that would otherwise apply in a dispute over 

discovery or disclosure of ~nfonnation. Until the Court rules on the challenge, a11 Parties shaIJ 

STIPULATED PROTECTIVE ORDER FOR EXPEDITED DISCOVERY 
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,• 

continue to ·affqrd the material in question the "level of protection to which it is entitled under the . . 
Designating Party1s designation. 

8. ACCESS TO AND USE OF PROTECTED MATERIAL 

8.1 Basic Principles:· A Receiving Party m·ay use Protected Material that is 

disclosed or produced.by ?tnother Party or by a Noi:i-Party in connection with this Action only for 

this case or anY. related appellate proceeding. A Receiving Party may not use Protected Material 

for.any other purpose, i~cluding, wi~out limitation, any other litigation or any business, personal, 

or political endeavor. S~~h Protected Material may be disclosed only.to the categories of persons 

and under the conditions described fn this Order and may not be disclosed to any other person, . . 
enti~y, o~ to the media. In the event of~ dispute regarding whether a proposed disclosure fa 

. "reasonaraly necessary for thls Action," the Parties shall meet and confer in gooc;l faith on an 
\ . . . 

expeaited basis; ~nd shall promptly raise any dispute ~hat cannot be resolved through the meet 

and confer process on an expedited basis· in accordance'With the joint ·statement prc;icequres 
' ' ' 

outlined in· Section 7.3; or, alternatively, the Parties may seek resolution of their dispute through ·a . . . . ' 

more expedited dispute-resolution mechanism· that is acceptable to the Court as needed due 'to the . . . . . . 
time-sensitivi.ty of the.dispute at -iss?e (e.g., a teleph?ne conference with the Court during a 

depbs.ition). ·For.purposes of this Stipulation and Protective Order, and specifically as utilized in 

this paragraph, "disclosed" or ·"disclose'' .!!hall mean any physical or electronic showing of the 
.. . 

Protected Materials to any per~on, including communication in any form of the contents (in whole . . . . 
or in part) 01· e~istenc~ of th~ Protected Materials. When this Action has been terminated, a 

. Receiving Party must comply with the provision's of Paragraph. I~ below (FINAL 

DISPOSITION). 

· Protected Material must be stored and maintained by a Receiving Party at a location and 
24. , d in a secure manner ensuring that access is limited to the perso11s authorized ttn er this Order. 
25 

26, 

27 

28 

8.2 .Disclgsure of "CONFIDENTIAL" Information or Items: Unless otherwise 

ordered by the Court or permitted in writing by the Designating Party, a Receiving Party may 
. . 

djsclose any informatio11; or item designated "CONFIDENTIAL'.' only to:· 

. STIPULATED PROTECTIVE ORDER FOR EXPEDITED DISCOVERY 
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(a) The ReceiVing Party's Outside Cqunsel and such Outside Counsel's 

immediate paralegals and staff, and any copying or clerical iitigation support services working at 

the direction of such counsel, paralegals, and staff, to whom ,it is reasonably n.eces~ary to disclose 

the information for this Action; 

(b) the former and current officers, directors, and employees (including 

In-House C~unsel) of the Receiving Party to whom disclosure is reasonably necessa.ry for this 

Action and who have signed the "General Acknowledgment of Confidentiality and .Agreement to . . 
Be Boumtl by Protective Order" that is attached hereto as Exhibit A-I; 

(c) .a Non-Party ap.~ No.n-Party's Counsel who hav,e (1) signed the 
· 10 · · ( 

"General Acknowledgment of Confidentia!ity'and Agreement to Be Bound by Protective Order" . . 
11 

that is attached hereto as Exhibit A-1. and (2) to w4oin disclosure is reasonably necessary for'this 
12 

Action; 
13 , 

(d) any insurer or indemnitor of any defendant in this Action; 
14 

(e) the Court and any ~ediators or arbitrators and thei'r respective 
15 

personnel; 
16 

(f) court reporters, their- staffs, and professional vendors to whom 
17 

~isclosure ·is reasonably necessary for this Action and who have signed' the "General · 
18 . · · 

Acknowledgment of Confidentiality and Agreement to Be Bound by Protective Order" that is 
19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

·26 

.27 

28 

attached hereto as Exhibit A.:}; 

(g) . mock jurors, subject to the provisions of Paragraphs 8.6 and 8.7 

below; and 
. ' 

experts, subject to the provisions of Se?tion 8 .6 belowi (h) 

(i) the author(s) and recipient(s) of the "CONFIDENTIAV' Mated.al 

who have signed the c•oeneral Acknowledgment of Confidentiality and Agreement to Be Bou).'ld · 

by.Protective Order,, that is attached hereto as Exhibit A-1; 

(j) any other perspn with the prio}'..written cons.ent of the Designating 

Party. 

STIPULATED PROTECTlVE 0RDERFOREXPED1TED DISCOVERY 
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8.3 Disclosure of "HIGHLY CONFIDENTJAL- ATTORNEYS' BYES 

9NL Y" Information or Items: Unless otherwise 9rdered by the Court or permitted in writing by 

the Designating Party, any information or item designated "HIGHLY CONFIDEN~IAL -

ATTORNEYS' EYES ONLY" may be.disclosed only to: 

(a) In~House Counsel of a Party to whom disclosure is reasonably 

necessary for this Action and who have been admitted to practice before the United States District 

Court of the Northern District of California in this Action or who h·ave signed.the "Genera] . 

Acknowledgment of Confidentiality and Agreement to Be Bound by Protective Order" that is 

attached hereto as Exhibit A-1; 

(b) . A Party's Outside Counsel of record in this Action and such . . 
Outside Counsel's immediate paralegals and staff, and any copying or clerical litigation support 

. . 
services working at the direction of such counsel, paralegals, and staff, to whom it i~ reasonably 

necessary to disclose the information for this Action; 

(c) a Non-Party an¢ Non-Party's Counsel who have (1) signed the 

"General Acknowledgment of Confidentiality an.cl Agreem~nt to Be Bound by Protective Order" 

that is attached hereto as Exhibit A-1 and (2) to whom disclosure is reasonably necessary for this 
.• 

Action;. 

(d) . experts, subj,ect to the provisions of Section 8.6 below; 

Ce) the Court, and any mediators or arbitrators. and their respect,ive 

personnel; 

(f) court reporters, their staffs, and.professional vendors to whom 

disclosure is reasonably necessary for this Action and who have signed the "General ', 

Ack,nowledgment of Confidentiality and Agreement to Be Bound by Protective Ord el'" that is 

attached hereto as Exhibit A-1; and 

. (g) the author(s) and recipjent(s) of the "HIGHLY CONFIDENTIAL-

ATTORNEYS' EYES ONLY" Material who have signed the "General Acknowledgment of 

STIPULATED PROTECTIVE ORDER FOR EXPEDITED DISCOVERY 
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Confidentiality and Agreement to Be Bound by Protective Order" that is attached hereto as 

Exhibit A-1. 

8.4 General Procedure for Disclosure of "CONFIDENTIAL" or "HIGHLY 

CONFIDENTIAL -ATTORNEYS' EYES ONLY" Information or Items: 

(a) Before any information or item designated "CONFIDENTIAL," or 

substance or s~mmary thereof, shall be disclosed to the persons or entities idl}ntified in sub­

paragraphs (b), (c), (d), (f), (g), (h),. (i), and 0) ?f paragraph 8.2 above, the Parties are hereby 

ordered to tender a copy of this Stipulation and .Protective Order to each such person and witness 

in order that each such entity or person to whom such disclosure ofuc·oNFIDENTIAL'' 
. ,I . . 

information or item is made shall be on notice and fully informed that the existence and substance 

of the Stipulation and Protective Order is, and is intended to be, equally binding upon it, him or 

her. Before any information or item designated "CONFIDENTIAL,'' or substance or s~mmary 

thereof, is disclosed to any such person, each such person shall sign and abide by the terms of the 

General Acknowledgment of ConfidentiaHty and Ag~eement to Be Bound by Protective Order, 

attached hereto as Exhibit A-1, The person to whom the "CONFIDENTIAL" information or item 

is disclosed shall not give, show, or otherwise div:ulge any of.the "CONFIDENTIAL''.·informatio11 

or item to any entity or person except as ·specifically provided for by this Stipulation and 

Protective Orde1·. 

(b) · Before any information or item designated ''HIGHLY 

CONFIDENTIAL ~ ATTORNEYS' EYES ONLY/' or substance or summary th~reof, shall be 

disclosed to the persons or entities identified in sub-paragraphs (a), (c), (d), (f), and (g) of 
. . 

paragraph 8.3 above, the Parties are hereby ordered to tender a copy of this Stipulation and 

Protective Order to each such person and witness in order that each such entity or person to whom 

such disclosure of "HIGHLY CONFIDENTIAL ~ ATTORNEYS' EYES ONLY" information or 

· Item is made shall be on notice and fully informed that the existence and substance of the 

Stipulation and Protective ·Order is, and is intended to be, equally binding upon it, him or her. 

Before any information or item designated uHIGHL Y CONFIDENTIAL - ATTORNEYS' EYES 

STIPULATED PROTECTIVE ORDER FOR EXPEDITED DISCOVERY 
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9NJ;., Y," or substance or summary thereof, is disclosed to any such person, each such person shall 

sign and abide by the terms of the General Acknowledgment of Confidentiality and A~reement to 

Be Bound by Protective Order, attached hereto as Exhibit A-1. The pers'on to whom the . 
' . 

"HIGHLY 'CONFIDENTIAL - ATTORNEYS' EYES ONLY" information or item is disclosed 

· shall not give, s\1ow, or otherwise divulge any of the "HIGHLY CONFIDENTIAL -

A TTQRNEYS' EYES O.NL Y'' information to any entity .or person except as specifically 
' . ' 

provided for by this Stipulation,and Protective Order. 

8.5 Procedure for Disclosure of "CONFIDENTIAL'' Information or Items to 
' . 

Mock Jurors: A Receiving Party may disclose to mock jurors materials prepared by·its Outside 

Counsel that are derived from info;rmation or items designated "CONFIDENTIAL" (but not 

materials that a~e derived 'from information or i~ems designated "HIGHLY CONFIDENTIAL -

ATTORNEYS.' EYES ONLY"), so long as the derivativ.e materials do ·not include the as~ 

produced inform~tion itself. Before providing such material to a mock juror, the Receiving Party 

must, in compliance with Paragraph 8.4(a) above, tender a copy of this StiP,ulation and Protective 

Order to ~~ch mpck juror in' order that each person to whom such disclosure is made shall be on 

notice and fully informed that the existence and substance of the Stipulation and Protective O~der 
. ' 

is, and. i~ intended to be;equal,ly binding upon lt? him or her, as well as upon the Parties and their 

counsel, Before any materials prepared by Outside Counsel that are derived from .informati~n or 

items design~ted "CONFIDENTIAL'1 are disclosed to a mock juror, each such person shall sign 

a~d abide. by the terms of the General A~knowledgment of Confidentiality and .Agreement to Be 

· Bound by Protective Order, attached hereto as Exhibit A-1. The mock juror to whom the material 
' ' 

is disclosed 'shall not give, show, or otherwise divulge any of the information contained therein to 

any entity or person except as specifically provided for by this Stipulation and Protective Order. 

8.($ Procedure for Disclosure, of "CONFIDENTIAL" or 1-'HIGHL Y 

CONFIDENTIAL -ATTORNEYS' EYES ONLY" Information or Items to Experts: 
' . ' 

(a) B~}fore any "CONFIDENTIAL" or "HIGHLY CONFIDENTIAL -

ATTORNEYS' EYES ONLY" informatiop, or substance or summary thereof, shall be disclosed 
' .. 

STIPULATED PROTECTIVE ORDER FOR EXPEDITED DISCOVERY 
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to an Expert, the Expert shall sign and abide by the terms of the ''Expert/Consultant 

Acknowledgment of Confidentiality and Agreement to Be Bound by Protective Order," attached 

as Exhibit A-2. 

(b) Unless otherwise ordered by the Court or agreed in writing by the 

Designating Party, a Receiving Party that seeks to disclose to an Expert any information or item 

that has been.designated "HIGHLY CONFIDENTIAL-ATTORNE"i':S' EYES ONLY" first 

must make a written request to the Design·atiI:ig Party that (1) identifies the specific 1'HIGHL Y 

CONFIDENTIAL - ATTORNEYS' EYES ONLY" information that the Receiving Party seeks to 
. . 

disclose to the Expert; (2) sets forth the full name oft~e Expert.and the city and state of his or her 

primary residence, (3) attaches the Expert's fully executed Expert/Consultant Acknowledgment 

of Confidentiality and Agreement to Be Bound' by Prote~tive Order ( attached hereto as Exhibit A­

'2); and ( 4) attaches a copy of the Expert's current resmne that identifies (by name and number of 

the case, filing date, and location of court) any litigation in connection with which the Expert has 

provided ahy profe~sional services during the preceding five years. The Party seeking to disclose 

"HIQHL Y CONFIDENTIAL-ATTORNEYS' EYES. ONL Y'·1 material to an Ex.pert shall 

provide .such other information regarding the Expert's professional activities reasonably requested 

by,the Producing Party in order for it to evaluate whether good cause exists to object to the 

disclosure to the Expert. 

(c) A Party that makes a request and provides the information specified 

in the preceding paragraph may disclose the subject Protected Material to the identified ~xpert 

·unless, wi:thin seven (7) days of delivering the request, the Party receives a written objection from 

the Desigpating Party. Any such objection must set forth in detail the grounds on which it is 

based. 

(d) A Designating Party that makes a timely wdtten objection must 

meet and confer with the Party seeking to disclose the information to the Expert (through. direct . . 
voice-to-vo~ce dialogue) to try to resolve th_e matter by agreement. If no agreement is reached, 

STIPULATED PROTECTIVE ORDER FOR EXPEDITED. DISCOVERY 
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the Party objecting ~o the disclosure to the Ex.pert may s~ekjudicial int~rvention in accordance 

with the joint statement procedures outlined in Section 7.3, 

8.7 The Partis Counsel who discloses "CONFIDENTIAL" or "HIGHLY 

CONFIDENTIAL-ATTORNEYS' EYES ONLY" Material shall be responsible for assuring 

compliance with the te!'ms of this Stipulation and Protective Order regarding execution of the 

"General Acknowledgment of Confidentiality and Agreement to ·Be Boun"d by Protective Order" 

by persbns to whom such Protected Material is disclose<;! .and shall ,obtain and retain the originals. 

of tI:ie "General Acknowledgment of Confidentiality and Agreement to. Be Bound by Protective 
. . 

Order" executed by qualified recipients of Protected Material.(if such execution ·was required by 

terms of this Stipulation and Prote'ctive Order). 
' . . . 

9. PROTECTED MATERIAL SUBPOENAED OR ORDERED PRODUCED IN 
OTHER LITIGATION OR GOVERNMENT INVESTIGATIONS · 

If a Re~eiving Party is ser~ed with a subpoena, including a Congressional subpoena or 

other legisl~tive or executive branch subpoena, or an order issued in other litigatJon, legislative, 

executive, administrative, or other legal proceedings or investigation that would compel· 

disclosure of a~y information or items designated in this Action as "CONFIDENTIAL:' or 

"HIGHLY CONFIDENTIAL -ATTORNEYS' EYES ONLY/' the Receiving Party must so 

notify the ,Designating P~rty in writing (by email, if possible) immediately al'\d in no event more 
. . 

than three court days. after receiving the subpoena or order. Such notification must include a copy 

of the subpoena 9r Court'ord~r. 

The Receiving Party rnust also immediately· inform in writing the party who caused the 

subpoer,a or order to issue in the other litigation, legislative, executive, administrative, or other 

Jegal'proceedings or in.vestig~tion that ·some or.alJ of the material covered by the subpoena or 

order is the subject of this Stipulation and Protective Order. In addition, the Receiving Party must 

deliver a copy of this Stipulation and Protective Order promptly to the party in the other action 
·, 

that caused the subpoena or order to issue. 

STIPULATED PROTECTIVE ORDER FOR EXPEDITED DISCOVERY 
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The purpose of imposing these duties is to alert the interested parties to the existenc~ of 

tl1is Stipulation and Protective Order and to afford the Designating Party in this case an 

opportunity to try to protect its confidentiality interests in the court or tribunal from which the 

subpoena or order issued .. The Designating Party shall ·bear the burden and.expe~se of seeking 

protection in that court or tribunal of its Protected Material. N9thing in these provisions should' 

be construed as authorizing or encouraging a Receiving Party in this Action to disobey a lawful 

diryctive from another court or tribunal or a subp'oena issued by a legislative or executive body or 

agent, 

None of tl'\e foregoing provisions are intended to limit or si.1persede the Parties' rights or 

obligations with respect to any preexisting agreements between·the Parties. . ' 

10. UNAUTHORIZED DISCLOSURE OF PROTECTED ·MATERIAL 

If a Receiving· Party ·1e~~s that, by inadvertence or otherwise, it has disclosed P~otected · 

. Material to any person or in any circumstance not authorized under this Stipul~tion and Protective 

Order, the Receiving Party must immediately: (a) notify th~ Designating P.arty in writing of the , 

unauthorized disclosure (by email, if possible) immediately and· in no event more than three court 

days after learning of the disclosure; (b) use it.s best efforts to re~ieve all copies of the Protected 

Material subject to the unauthorized disclosure; (c) infor~ tb,e person or persons to whom . . 
unauthorized disc)osures were made of all .the terms of this Order; and (d) request such ·person 'or 

persons to ex~cute the ''.General Acknowledgment of Confideptiality ahd Agreement to Be Boun9 

by Protective Order" (Exhibit A~l). Unauthorized or inadvei1:ent disclosure does not change the . . . . 

status of Di1mo.very Material or waive the right to maintain the disclosed document or information 

as Protected. 

11. INADVERTENi PRODUCTION OF PRIVILEGED OR OTHERWISE 
PROTECTED MATEBJAL 

11.'1 When a Producing Party gives .notice to th~ Receiving Party or the 
. . 

26 Receiving Party ot~erwise becomes aware that ce1tain inadvertently produced material, inc]~1ding 

27 any NAF P.ersqnal Identification Informatio·n, is subject to a claim of privilege or other 

28 . protection, the Receiving Patty must promptly return or destroy the specifi~d information and any 

STIPULATED PROTECTIVE ORDER FOR EXPEDITED DISCOVERY 
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copies it has and may not sequester; use or disclose the information until the claim is resolved. 

This includes a restriction against presenting the information to the Court for a qetermination of 

the claim. Pursuant to Federal Rule of Evidence 502(d) and (e), the production of privileged or 
' 

work-product protected documents or information, including electronically stored information, 

whether inadvertent or not, is not a waiver of the privilege or protection in connection with 

discovery in this case or any other federal proceeding. 

11.2 . Additionally, the inadvertent or unintentional disclosure by th.e Producing 

Party of Confidential Information-including Disclosure or Discovery Material that contains 

NAF Personal Jd~ntification Information-shall not be deemed a waiver in whole or in part of the 

Designating Party's claim ~f confidentiality, either as to the specific in~onnation disclosed or as 
11 · . 

to any other information relating the_reto or the s.ame or related subject matter. 
12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 
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12. FILING PROTECTED MATERIAL 

Without written permission from the Designating Party or ·a Court order secured after . . ' . 

appropriate notice to all interested persons, .a Party ~ay not file any.Protected Material in the 
' . . 

public record in this Action. A Party that seeks to file'under seal any Prot~cted Material must' 

comply with Civil Local Rule 79-5.· A Party who·seeks to introduce ;protected Material at a 

hearing, pretrial .or ot~er proceeding shall advise the Court at the ~ime of introduction that the 

information soug~t to be introduced is protected. Ift~e Party who designated the information as 

~rotected Material requests the protection be continued, the Court will review the info~mation to 

det~rmine if the information is entitled to continued protection. Prior to disclosure of Protected 

Material at a hearing, the Producing Party may seek further pro.tections against public disclosure 
'7 . . . 

from the Court. 

13. FINAL DISPOSITION 

. 13. I Unless otherwise ordered or agreed in writing by the Producing Party, 

within 90 days after the final termination of this Action and upon receiving a written request to do 

so.from the Producing Party or Designating Party, each Receiving Party must destroy all 

Protected Material, return it to the Producing Party, or make the Protected Material available for 

STIPULATED PROTECTIVE ORDER FOR EXP.EDITED DISCOVERY 19 
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pick-up by the Producing Party. As used in this orde1\ "final termination" shall be deemed to be 

the later of (1) dismissal of all claims and defenses in this Action, with or without prejudice, and 

(2) final judgment herein after the completion and exhaustion of all appeals, rehearings, remands, 

trials, .or reviews of this Action, inc~uding the time limits for filing any motlons or applications 

for extension ofti!T\e pursuant to applicable laws. 

13.2 As used in this paragraph, "all·Protected MateriaP' includes all copies; 

a~stracts, compilations, summaries. or any other form ofreproducing or capturing any of the 

Protected Material. Whether the Protected Material is returned or destroyed upon req~est by the 

Producing Party, the Receiving Party must submit' a written certificati~n to the Producing Party 

(and, if not the same person or entity, to the Designating Party) by the 90-day deadline that 

represents that all Pro~ected Materi.al that was returned or destroyed and affirms that the 

·Receiving Party has not retained any copies, abstracts, compilations, summaries, or other forms of . . . . 
reproducing pr capturing any of the Protected Material. Notwithstanding this provision, Counsel 

are entitled to retain copies of all pleadings, motion papers, transcripts, legal memoranda, · 

correspondence, and attorney work product (but not docu1f1ent p~oductions), even if such · 

materials contain P~·otected Material, for archival purposes. Any such copies of pleadings, 

motion papers, transcripts, legal memoranda, correspondence, and attorney work product that . . 

contain or constitute Protected Material remain subject to this Stipulation and Protective Order as 
' . ... . . . . ' 

set forth in Paragraph 4 (DURATION), above. 

14. J)ISCOVERY FRQM EXPERTS OR CONSULTANTS 

14.1 Testifying experts shall, not be subject to discovery with respect to any 

draft of his 01,her rep01t(s) in this case . .Draft reports, notes, or outlines for draft reports 

developed and drafted by the testifying expert ~ncl/01· his or her staff are also exempt from 

discovery. 

14.4 Discovery of materials provided to testifying expe1ts shall be limited to 
\ . . . \ . 

those materials, facts, consu~ting expert opinions, and other matters actually relied upon by the 

testifying expert in forming his or her final report, trial, or deposition testimony or any opinion in 

STIPULATED PROTECTIVE ORDER FOR. EXPEDITED DISCOVERY 
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this case. No discovery can be taken from any non-testifying expert except to the.extent that such 

non-testifying expert has provided information, opinions, or other materials to a testifying expert 

relied upon by that testifying ex.pert in forming his or her final report(s), trial, a~d/or deposition. 

testimony or any opinion in this case. 

14.3 No conversations or communications between counsel and any testifying or 

consulting expert ~ill be subject to 'discovery unless the conversations or communications are 
. . . 

relied upon by such experts in formulating ~pinjons that are presented in reports or trial or 

deposition testimony in this case. 

14.4 Materials, communications, and other information exempt from discovery 

under the foregoing Paragr,aphs 14.1, 14.2, and 14.3 shall .be treated as attorney~work product for . 

the purposes of this litigation and Order. 

15. MISCELL4,NEOUS 

15.l Right to Further Relief: Nothing in this 0l'der abridges the right of any 

· person to seek lts modification by the Court in the future . 

15.2 Right to Assert Other Objections: By stipulating.to the entry of this 

Protective Order, no Party w~ives· any right it would qtherwise have to object to disol9s~ng or 

pro'ducing-any information or item on any ground not addressed in tqis Stipulation a11d Protective 

Order. Similarly, no Party waives any right to object ·on any ground to use·in evidence of any of 

the materla! covered by this Stipulation and Protective Order. 

15.3 Computation ofTitne: The computation of any period of time prescribed . 

or allowed by this Order shall be governed by the provisions for computing time set forth' in 

Federal Rules of Civil Procedure 6. 

15.4 Fact of Designation Not Admissible: The fact of designation, or failure ~o. 

designate, Disclosur~ or Discovery Materials as CONFIDENTIAL or HI~HLY 

CONFIDENTIA1:,-ATTORN:EYS' ,EYES ONLY pursuant to this.Stipulation and Protective 

Order shall not be admissible for any purpose in a trial on the merits or at any.othef' proceeding 

other than at a proceeding arising from or re.lat~d to th!s Stipulation and Protective Order. 
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· 15 .5 ·Successors: This Order ·shalJ be binding upon the Parties hereto, their 

attorneys, and their successors, executors, heirs, assigns, and employees. . 

15.6 The provisions of this Stipulation and Protective Order do not apply to any 

trial proceedi!1gs in this Action. The Parties will separately request the Court to enter an Order 

governing the handling of such materials at trial. 

15. 7 ·. The Court 'shall retain jurisdiction to enforce the terms of this Stipulation 

· and Protective Order. 

15 .8 Nothing in this Stipulation and Order shall alter the require1l').ents for and 

scope of expert discovery in accordance with Fed.era! Rule of Civil Procedure 26, local rules, and 

case law. 

15.9 The procedures set forth in this Stipulation and Ord~r shall apply to every. 
' I ' 

action that is subject to thi$ proceeding, whether filed in or transferred to this Court f~r s·o long as 

such actions are pending. 
14

. STIPULATED AND AGREED TO BY: 
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Dated:.August 24, 2015 By Isl Derek D. Foran 
· Derek D. Foran 

LINDAE. SHOSTAK (CA SBN 64599) 
LShostak@mofo.coin .. 
DEREK: F. FORAN (CA SBN 224569) 

foran<almofo.com 
CHRIS OPHER I:. ROBINSON 
(CA SBN 260778) 
ChristopherRobinson@mofo.com 
425 Market Street 
San Francisco, CA 94105~2482 
Telephone: 415-268-7000 
Facsimile: 415-268-7522 

Attorney for Plaintiff NATIONAL 
ABORTION FEDERATION (NAF) 
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Dated: August 24, 201'5 

Dated: August 24, 2015 

By: Isl Carly F. Gammill 
Carly F. Gammill 

BRJAN R. CHAVEZ-OCHOA (CA Bar 
190289) . . 
bdanr@chayezochoa.Jaw.com 
CHAVEZ-OCHOA LAW OFFICES, INC. 
4 Jean Street, Suite 4 
Valley Springs, CA 95252 
Tel: (209) 772-3013; Fax: (209) 772-3090 

EDWARD L. WHITE III (MI Bar P62485) 
ewhite@.aclj.org · · · 

. · ERJK M. ZIMMERMAN (MI Bar P78026) 
ezimmerman@aclj.org 
AMERICAN CENTER FOR LAW & 
JUSTICE 
3001 Plymouth Road, Suite 203 
Ann Arbor, MI 48105 
Tel: (734) 680-8007 · 
Fax:: (734) 680-8006 

CARLY F. GAMMILL (TN Bar 282P) 
cgamm ill@aclj-dc.org· · 
ABIGAIL A. SOUTHERLAND (TN Bar 
022608) · . 
asoutherland@aclj.org 
AMERICAN CENTER FOR LAW & 
JUSTICE 
201 Maryland Avenue, NE 
Washington; DC 20002 
Tel: (202) 546-8890 
Fax: (202) 546-9309 · 

Attorneys for Defendant, 
TROY NEWMAN 

By: Isl D. John Sauer 
D. John Sauer 

CATHERINE W. SHORT (CA Bar 117.442) 
LIFE LEGAL DEP.ENS.E FOUNDATION 
P.O. Box 1313 
Ojai, CA 9~024-1313 . 
Tel: (707) 337-6880 . 
Fax: (805) 640-1940 . 
E-Mail: LLD.FOiai@earthli11k.11et 

D. John'Sauer 
James Otis Law Group, tLC 
231 South B'emiston Ave., Suite 800 
St. Louis, Missouri 63105 
Email: jsauer@jamesotis.com 
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Thomas Brejcha 
Thomas More Society 
19 La Salle St.. Ste. 603 
Chicago, IL 60603 
Email: tbrejcha!@thomasmoresociety.org 

Attorneys for Defendants, 
The Center for Medical Progress. Biomax 
Pro,curement Services LLP, David.Daleiden (aka 
"Robert Sarkis 11

) • 

ATTESTATION OF E-FILED SIGNATURE . . 
I, Derek F. For-an, am the ECF ~ser whose ID and password are bei11g used to file this 

[PROPOSED] STIPULATED PROTECTIVE ORDER FOR PURPOSES OF EXPEDITED 

PRELIM1NARY INJUNCTION DI~COVERY.· In complianc~ with Civil Local. Rule 5-1(i)(3), I 

hereby attest that Carly Gammill' and John Sauer have concurred i~ this filing. 

15 . Dated: 'August24, 2015 MORRISON & FOERSTER LLP 
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By: Isl Derek Foran 
Derek F. Foran 

Attorneys for Plaintiff 
NATIONAL ABORTION FEDERATION 
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1 
PURSUANT TO STIPULATION, IT IS SO ORDERED. 

2 

3 .K&oe 4 Date: August 26, 2015 
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EXHIBIT A-1 1 

2 

3 

4 

5 

GENERAL ACKNOWLEDGMENT OF CONFIDENTIALITY AND AGREEMENT TO 
. BE BOUND BY PROTECTIVE ORDER 

I,--------------' declare under pen~lty of perjury that I have 
. ' 

6 read in its entirety and understand ~he Stipul~tion and Protective Order that was issued by the 

7 United States District Court for the Northern District of California on---~-_, 201 
' ' ' 

8 in the case of National Abo1•tion Federation v. Center /01· Medical Progress et al., Case No. 3: 15-

9 · cv-3522-WHO, pending in the No1th'ern District of California. 

1 o I agree to comply with and be bound by all the terms of the Stipulation and Protective 

. 11 Order, and I understand' and acknowledge that failure to so comply could expose me to sanctions 

12 and punishment in the nature of contempt. I solemnly promise that I will not disclose in any 
. . 

13 manner any informa~ion or item that is s~bject to the Stipulation and Protective Order to any 

14 person or entity·except in strict compliance with the provisions of~he Stipulation and Order. 
' ' 

15 I further agree to submit to the jurisdiction of the United States District Court for the 

16 ,Northern District of.California for the purpose of enforcing the terms of the StiJ:miation and 

. 17 Protective Order even if such enforcement proceedin~s occur after termination of this action. 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

26 

27 

28 

Executed on at _______ at _________ ___ 

Name: 

Address: 
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.UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT 

NORTHERN DISTRICT OF CALIFORNIA 

NATIONAL ABORTION FEDERATION, 
et al., 

. Plaintif~s, 

v. 

CENTER FOR MEDICAL PROGRESS, et 
al., 

Defendants. 

Case No .. 15-ov-03522~WHO · 

ORDER GRANTING MOTION FOR 
PRELIMINARY INJUNCTION 

Re: Dkt. Nos. 3, 109, 222, 225, \287, 298, 

. 310,320,322,346,352 

On July 3 l, 2015, plajntiffNa,tional Abortion Federatlo1i. (NAP) filed this lawsuit and 

sought a Temporary Restrainin.g Order to prohibit defendants David Daleiden, Troy Newman, and 

the Center for Medical Progress from publishing rt1cqrdings taken at NAF Annual Meetings. NAF 

alleged, and it has turned out to be true, thf!:t defendants secured false identification and set up a 

phony corporation to obtain surteptitious recordings in violation of agreements they had signed 

that acknowledge that the NAP information is ~onfidential and agreed that they could be· enjoined 

· in the event of a breach. In light of those facts,. because th~ subjects of videos that defendants had 

released in the previous two weeks had become victims of dea1h tµreats and seve;re harassment, 

a1!d in light of the well-document~d histoty of violence agt1inst abortion prov:iders,-1 issued the 

TRO. 

The defendants' principal argume;ts against J~junctlve relief rest on their rights under.the· 

First Amend~ent, a keystone of our Constitution and our democracy. It ~n~ures that the 

government may not - without compelling reasons in rare circumstances - restrict the fr~e flow of 

information to the public. It provides that "debate on public issues should be uninhibited, robµst, 

and wide-open.''. New .York Times Co. v. Sullivan, 376 U.S. 254,270 (1964). But Constitutional 

rights are not absolute. In rare circumstances, freedom of speech must be balanced against and 
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give way to the protection of other compelling Constitutional rights, such as the First 

Amendment's right to fr~edom of association, the Fi~h and Fourteenth Amendments' protection 

of liberty interests, and the right to privacy. After fully considering the record before me, I 

conclude that NAF has made such a showing here. 
' . 

Discovery has proven that defendants and their agents created ·a fake company and lied to 

gain access to NAF's Annual Meetings in order to secretly record NAF \embers for their Human 

Capital Project. In-furtherance of that Project, defendants released oonfi~ential information 

gathered at NAF's meetings and intend to release more in contravention of the confidentiality 

agreements required by NAF. Critical to my decisipn are that the defendants agreed to injunctive 

r~lief if they breached the agreements and that, after the release of defendants' first set ofHuma1:1 

Capital Project videos and related information in July 2,015, there has been a documented, . . . . 
dramatic.increase in the volume and extent of threats to a~d harassment ~f NAF and its members; 

'.Balanced against these facts are defe~dants' allegations that their video and audio . 

recordings show criminal activity by NAP memoers in profiteering from' the sale.of fetal tissue. I 

have reviewed the recordings relied on by defe11:dants and find no evidence of criminal activity. 

And I am skeptical that exposing criminal activity was really defendants' purpose, since they did 
. . 

not provide recordings to law enforcement following the NAF 2014 Annual Meeting ~no only 

provided a_blt o~information to law enforcement beginning in May,.:2015. But I have not 

. interfered with the Congressional committee's subpoe11:a to obtain the recordings to make its own 

evaluation, nor with the subpoenas fr.om the states of Arizona and Louisi~na (although I have 

approved a'process to insure that orily subpoenaed material is turned. over). · · 

Defendants also claim that the inju,nction is an unconstitutional prior restraint. They ignore 

that they agreed to keep the information secret and agreed to the remedy of an injunction if they 

breached the agreement. Confidentiality agreements are common to protect trade secrets and other 

sensitive. information, and individual~ who sign such agreements are not free to ignore them . 

because they think the public would be interested in the protected information. 

There is no doubt that members of the public have a serious and passionate ,interest in the 

debate over abortion rights and the right to life, and thus in the contents of defendants' recordings. 

2 
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It should be said that.the majority of the recordings lack much public interest, and despite the 

misleading contentions of defendants, there is little that is new in the remainder of the recordings. 

Weighed against that public interest are NAF's and its members' legi~ilnate interests in their rights 

to privacy, security, and association by maintaining the confidentiality of their.presentations and 

conversations at NAF Annual Meetings. Th.e balance is strongly in NAF's favor. 

Ha:ving fully reviewed the recor.:d'before me, I GR.ANT N}\F' s inotion'for a preliminary 

injunction to protect· the confidentiality of the information at issue p'eriding a finaljudgm.ent in this 

case. 

BACKGROUND 

I. THE CENTER FOR ·MEDICAL PROGRESS AND THE HUMAN CAPITAL 
PROJECT 

In 2013, defendant David Daleiden founded the Ce~ter for Medical Progress ("CMP") for 
' . 

the purpose of monitoring and reporting on medical ethi~s, with a focus on bioethical issues 
. . 

related to induced abortions and fetal tissue h,arvesting. Declaration of David Daleiden (Dkt. No . 

:265"3, "Daleiden PI Deel."), 2: CMP is incorporated in California as a nonprofit public benefit 

corporation, with a stated purpose "to monitor and report 0~1 medical ethics and advances." NAP 
Appendix of Exhibits in ~upport of Motion for Preliminary Injunction ("Pl. Ex.") 9 (at 

NAF0000533).1 In order to,obtain CMP's tax-exempt statu;, in its registration with the California . . 
Attorney General and in its application with the Internal Revenue Service Daleiden certified, 

' I I I 

among other things, that "[n]o substantial part of the activities of this corporation shall' consist of 

carrying on propaganda,· or otherwise attempting to influence legislation, and this corporation· shall 

1 Defendants raise a number of objections to NAF's evidence.· See Dkt. No. 265~7.' These 
evidentiary objections were submitted as a sepafate document in violation of this Court's Local 
Rules. Civ. L. R. 7-3 (a). RecQgi;iizing that error, defendants filed a motion asking for leave to file 
an amended Opposition or for relief therefrom. Dkt. No. 298. That motion is GRANTED and I 
will consider defendants' evidentlary objections. See also Dkt. No. 301. To the extent I rely 011 
evidence to which defendants object, I will address the specific objection1 bearing in mind that on 
a motion for preliminary injunction evidence ·is not subject to the same fo.rmal pl'ocedures as on a 
motion for summary judgment or 'at trial and that a coUlt may consider hearsay evidence. See, · 
e.g., Flynt Distrtb. po. v. Harvey, 734 F.2d 1389, 1394 (9th Cir. 1984). To the extent I do not rely 
on specific pieces of evidence, defendantsi objections to that evidence are overruled as moot. 
These evidentiary rulings apply only to the admissibility of evidence .for purposes of determining 
the motion fol' a preliminary injunction, 
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not participate or 'intervene in any political campaign.'' Pl. Ex. 9 (at NAF0000535); Pl. Ex. 10 (at 
·- . 

NAF0001'789). 

As part of CMP's work, Daleiden created the "Human Capital Project" ("Project") to 

"investigate, document, and report o~ the procuremept, ti:ansfer, and sale offetal tissue.'' Daleiden 

. PI Deel. f 3: The Project's goal is to uncover evidence regarding violations of state and/or federal 

law due to the sale offetal tissue, the alteration of abortion procedures to obtain fetal tissue for 
' 

research, and the commission of partial birth' abortio.ns.· Id. Putting the:Project into action, . 
Daleiden created a fake front company that purportedly supplies researchers with human. 

biological specimens and specifically secured funding from supporters in order to infiltrate NAF's 

2014 Annual Meeting. Pl. Ex,. 26. Th~ express aim of t~at infiltration was to: "1) network with · 

the upper' echelons of the abortion industry to identify the best targets for further investigation and . 
' . ' 

ultimate prosecution, and 2) gather Video and documentary evidence of the fetal body parts trade 

and other shocking act.ivities in the abortion indu~try." Id. 

Defendant Troy Newman was, until January,2016, a. board member and the secretary of 

CMP. He counseled Daleiden on the efforts to set up the fake company,.to infiitrate· meetings, and 

to secure recordings in support ofthe·Project. Pl. Ex. 14 (at NAF0004475-76); Pl. Ex. 16 .(at 

NAF0004493-94); see also Dkt. No. 344.2 The result of the Project, Newman hoped, yvould be 

prosecution of abortion providers, stat~ and Congressional investigations, the defundfng of 

Planned P~renthood by the government, and the ~losure of abortion clinics. Pl. Ex. 16 (at' 

· NAF0004494, 4496); Pl. Ex. 136 ~t 16.3 Defendant Newman is Pre'sident of Ope1'ation Rescue, an 

anti-abortion group th~t posts the names and work addresses of abo1ti;n providers on its website 

a~d.manages another website that lists every abo1tion facility and all known abortion providers. 

PI. Bxs. 18, 20, 21, 22.4 

. 
2 Defendants object to Exhibits 14 and 16 for lack of foundation and authentication. Defendants 

. do not contend these transcripts do not aecurately represent the contents of the recordings attached 
as.Exhibits 15 and 17. Defendants' objections are overruled. . 
3 Defendants object to Exhibit 136 on the grounds ofrelevance, lack of foundation, and lack of 
authentication. Defendants to not contend the transcript does not accurately represent the contents 
of the recording identified. Defendants' objections are overruled. . · 
4 After the public launch oftpe Project on July 15, 2015, counsel for CMP and Da!eiden, Life 
Legal Defense Foundation, explained that it had also been involved rn the Project as a legal 

. 4 
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IT. THE CREATION OF BIOMAX AND INFILTRATION OF NAF'S 2014 AND 2015 
ANNVAL MEETINGS 

In September 2013, Daleiden directed "investigators" on the Project (known by th,e aliases 

Susan Tennebaum and }3rianna Allen) to attend a conference of the Association of Repr~ductive 

Health Professionals (ARHP) as a.representative·of a fake business, BioMax Procurement 

Services. That business did not exist, other than· to be a "front" for the Project. Daleiden PI Deel. 

18; PL Ex. 26. Daleiden's associates spoke with representatives from NAP, and BioMax was 

invited to apply to attend the NAF Annual Meeting in San ~rancisco, California the following 

April. Daleiden PI Dec1. 1 10 .. 

In February 2014, defendant CMP received a grant to fund the "infiltration of the ... NAF 

Annual Meeting." Pi. Bxs. 26, 36; Deposition Transcript ofDayid Daleiden (Dkt. No. 187-3) 

21~:14-21.4:6. To that end, Daleiden followed up with the NAP representatives-posing as 

Brianna Allen on behalfTennenbaum and BioMax- and received·a copy of the 2014 NAF Annual 
. . 

Meeting Exhibitor Prospectus and Exhibitor Application for the upcoming meeting. Daleiden PI 

Deel. 111; Pl. Ex. 43. Daiei den filled out the Exhlbit011 Application packet- coin prised of the 

"Exhibit Rules and Regulations" ("E~hibit Agreement" or "BA"), the "Application and Agreement 

for Exhibit Space," and the "Annual Meeting Registration Foi'm." Daleiden signed Susan 
' . 

Tennenbaum's name to the EA, and r(?turned the Application packet. Daleiden PI Decl.111; PL. 

Ex. 3; Daleiden_Depo. at 160:8-18. 

In February 2015,'Daleiden co11tacte.d NAP seeking inf9rmation ·about BioMax exhibiting 

at NAF's 2015 Annual Meeting in Baltin'J.ore, Maryland. Pl. Ex. 47. Daiei den again filled out the 

"Application Agreeme~t for Exhibit Space;; "Exhibit Rules and Regulations," and "Registration 

Form/l signing Susan Tefmenbaum's name to the EA. Pl. ·Exs. 4, 47; Dale'iden Depo. at ?87:5-

22.5 

advisor "since its inception" and were committed to defonding "contract killer" Planned 
Parenthood. Pl. Ex. 24. Defendants object to Exhibits l 8, 20, 21 and 22 as irrelevant' and. 
inadmissible.hearsay. Those objections are overruled. · . 
5 On the 2014 EA, DEJ.leiden listed the "exhibitor representatives" as Brianna Allen a Procurement 
Assistant, Susan Tennenbaum the C.E.O., and Robert Sarkis a V.P. Operations. Pl. Ex. 3. On the 
2015 EA, Daleiden listed the exhibitorrepresentatives as Susan Tennenbaum the C.E.O., Robert 
Sarkis the Procurement Manager, and Adrian Lopez the Procurement Technician. Pl. Ex. 4. 

5 
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Both the 2014 and 201~ EA~ contain confidentiality clauses: 

In connection with NAP' s Annual Meeting, Exhibitor understands 
that any information NAP may furnish is confidential and not 
available to the public. Exhibitor a~ees that all written information 
provided by NAP, or any information which is disclosed orally or 
visually to Exhibitoi·, or any other exhibitor or attendee, will be used 
solely in conjunction with Exhibitor's business and will be made 
available only to Exhibitor's offic\e'l'S, employees, and agents. 
Unless authorized in writing by NAF, all infonnation is confidentiql 
an9 should not be disclosed to any o!her individual or thi~d parties. 

Pl. Bxs. 3 & 4 at f 17. Above the signature line, the EAs provide: "I also agree to bold in trust 

and confidence any confidential information received in the course of exhibiting at the NAF 

.Annual Meeting and agree not to reproduce 01· disclose confit;lential f.nj'ormation without express . ' 

permission Ji-om NAF." Pl. Bxs. 3, 4 (emphasi.s in originals). 

The EAs required Exhibitor representatives to ube reglstered'' for the NAF Annual J\.'.{eetlng 

and wear ba.dges in order to gain ·entry into exhibit halls and meeting rooms. Id, 18, The EAs . 

also provide that. "[p]hotography of exhibits by anyone other than NAP or, the assigned B.xh\bitol' 

of the space being photographed is stri'ctly prohibited." Jd, 113. The EAs required an 
. ' 

affirmation: "[b]y signing this Agreement, the Exhibitor affirms that all information contained · 

herein, contained in any past and future correspondence wi#1 either NAP and/or in any 

publication, advertisements, and/or exhibits displayed at, or in connectioi1 ~ith·, NAF's Annual · 

Meeting, is truthful, accurate,· complete, and not misleading."· Id. f i 9. Finally; 'the EAs provide 

that breach of the EA can be enforced by "specific p'erformance and injunctive relief" in addit,on 

to'~ll other remedies available at law or equity. Jd, 118 .. 

. In order to gain acce~s to the NAP Annual Meetings, Exhibitor representatives also had to 

show identification and sign a "Confjdentiality Agreement" ("CA"). Declaration of Mark Mellor 

(Dkt. No. 3-33) 111,6 For the 2014, Annual Meeting Daleiden (as Sarkis) and the individuals 

6 NAP has identified copies of two drivers licenses it claims were used by Daleiden and 
Tennenbaum to access the NAP meetings. Pl. Ex.s. 49-50. During his deposition, Daleiden 
asserted his Fifth Am~ndment ri~h~s and refused to testify about the licenses. Fo1·an PI De?l. ~1 
31-32. Defendants obJect to Exh1b1ts 49 and 50 for lack of personal knowledge. Those obJect10ns 
are overruled. . 

Relatedly; NAF filed a motion to supplement the Preliminary Injunction record, to include 
a press release from the Harris County District Attorney's office in Houston Texas. Dkt. No. 346. · 

· That motion is GRANTED. In the press release, the District Attorney explained that a grand jury 
6 
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1 pretending 'to be Ten~enbau'.11 and Allen, e~ch signed a CA. Pl. Bxs. 5, 6; Daleiden ~I Pe?!. 1 13. 

2 For the 2015 AnnuEJ.I Meeting, the fndividual pre~ending to be Adrian Lopez, signed the CA. PI. 

3 Ex. 8.7 Daleiden (as Sarkis), Tenn.enbau~, and Allen did not sign the 2015 CAs. When Daleiden, 

·4 Tennenbatun, f:l~d Allen were at the registration table, ~hey were met by a.NAP representative. A 

5 ·NAF representative asked Daleiden to confirm that the sign-in staff had checked their 

6 identifications and that they had signed the confidentiality forms.· Daiei den responded "Yeah yeah 

7 yeah. Exceltent. Thank you so much .... " Declaration of Derek Foran in Support of Preliminary 

8 Injunction (Dkt. No. 228-6) 179Q8
; Daleideri Deel. 117; Daleidel'l Depo. 290:2 -291 :14. Daiei den 

9 testified tqat it was.his "preference" to avoid signing the 2q15 CA. Daleiden Depp. at 291 :15-25, 

IO The CAs provide: 

11 

12 · 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

It is NAF policy that all people attending its 9onferences (Attendees) 
sign this confidentiality agreement. .The terms of attendance are as 
follows: . 

1. Videotaping or Other Recording Prohibited: Attendees are 
prohibited from making video, audio, photogrnphic, or other 
recordings of the meetings or discussions at this conference. 

2. Use of NAF Conference Information: NAP· Conference 
Information includes all information distributed or otherwise 
made available at this· conference by NAF or. any conference 
participants through . all written materials, discussions, 
workshops, or other means .... 

3. Disclosure of NA.F Materials to Third Patties: Attendees may 
not disclose any NAF Conference Information to third parties 
without f'i:rst obtaining NAF1s express written consent .... 

19 · Pl. Bxs. 5-8. 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

,25 

26 

27 

28 

had cleared a local Planned Parenthood affiliate of wrongdoing, but indicted Daleiden anti the 
person posing as Susan Tennenbaum for'ta.mpering with governmental records, presumably , 
related to their use of false identlfiqation to gain access to meetings in Texas. Id. 
· In his deposition; Daleiden testified that he created false business cards 'to use at tfoe ARHP 
meeting and the NAP M!'etings for.Susan Tennenbaurh, Robert Daoud Sarkis, and Brianna Allen. 
Pl. Ex. ~1; Daleiden Depo. at 200:2-201 :6 (business cards used atthe 2014 Meeting); see also 
Pl. Bxs. 51, 52 & Daleiden Depo. at 315:23 -;-316:19 (business cards for Adrian Lopez and Susan 
Wagner used at the 2015 Annual Meeting); Declaration of Megan Barr (Dkt. No. 226-27) ~14-5 
~use of business card at 2015 Meeting). 

Daleiden testified that all of the "investigators" involved in the Project were CMP "contractors" 
actingunderDaleiden's specific direction. DaleidenDepo. Trans. at 131:7-24, 135:21-136:11, 
194:1, 194:10-195:6; see also Daleiden Supp. ~esp. to NAF Interrogatories (Dkt. No. 227-18) 
Nos. 2, 6. . · 
8 ~ 79(C) refers to a specific excerpt of a recording taken by Daleiden. Sub-Bates 15-062; Time 
stamp: 14:56:02-14:56:50. The Court has reviewed all recording excerpts or transcripts of 
recording excerpts cited in .this Order. 
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At.the 2014 and 2015 Annual Meetings, Daleiden and his associates wore and carried a 

variety ofrecording devices that they did not disclose to.NAF or any of the meeting attendees. 

Daleiden Depo. at 118-121; 255; 292-93. Daleiden and his associates did not limit their recording 
' . 

to presentations or conversations regarding fetal .tissue, but instead turned on their recording 

devices before entering the meetings each day and only turned them off at the end of the day. 

DaJeiden Depo. at 121 :24-122:22, 1~4:l-15. In the end, they 1·eqorded approximately 257 hours 

and 49 minutes at NAF's 2014 Annual Meeting and 246 hours and 3 minutes atNAF's 2015 

Annual Meeting. T~ey recorded conversations with attendees at the BioMax. Exhibitor booths, t.he 

formal sessioi:is at the Meetings, and interactions with attei:idees during breaks. Foran PI Deel .. 12 

& Pl. Ex. 19; Da!eiden·PI Deel.~ 18; D!l-leidenDepo. at 122:18-123:25; 293:4-25. The . 

interactions witp individuals were recorded in exhibit halls, hallways, and reception areas where 

Daleiden contends hotel staff were ''regularly" present. Daleiden PI Deel. 118; Hotel staff were 
I ' 't I 

also present in the rooms during presentations and talks, but hotel staff did not sign confidentiality 

agreements. Id. 'if 19; Deposition of Vicki Saporta (Defendants 1 Ex. 7) at 33:10-23. Broadly 

speaking, the majority of the recordings·lack any sort of p4-blic interest and consist of 

communications that are tangential to the ones discussed in this Order. 

During the Annual Meetings, Dale~den and his associates would meet to "discuss our ... · 

&trategy for ... the pr~ject and for the meeting,'; including "specific strategies for specific 

individuals." Daleiden Dep.o. at 134:15-)35.:6. The associates were given a "mark list" to identify 

their targets. Foran Pl Deel. t79D (Sub-Bates: 15-145; Time stamp:· 14:56:02-14:56:50). The 

group also picked targ~ts based on circumstance: in one instance, Daleidet). tells "Tennenbaum"· 

that it "would be really good to talk tonight" with a particular doctor "now that she1s been 

drinking." Id. 179B (Sub-Bates: 15-225; Time stamp 15:33:00 - 15:34:00). 

In approaching.these individuals, the group used "pitches" in their efforts to capture NAF 

members agt·eeing to suggestions and proposals made by the group abciut the "sale" of fetal tissue 

9 Plaintiffs Exhibit 1 is a copy of the hard drive produced by defendants ci:mtaining the audio and 
video recordings made by Daleiden and his associates at the 2014 and 2015 NAP Annual 
Meetings. · 
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or other conduct that might suggest a violation of state or federal law. Daleiden told his associates . ' . . 
t~at their "goal" was to trap people into "saying.something really like messed up, like yeah, like, 

I'll give them; lil~e, live everything for you. You know. If they s~y something like that it would be 

cool." Id. ,r 79G (Sub-Bates: 15-02.1; Time St~mp: 5 :13-5 :49). Dileiden also.instructed his group 

to attempt to get attendees to say the wm·ds "fullYintact baby" 011 tape. Id. ,r 79H (Sub-Bates: 15-

1'52; Time Stamp: 16:06:50-16:07:00). As part of their efforts, "Tennenbaum,, would ex.plain to · 

providers that she "can make [feta~ tissue donation] elXtremely financially profitable for you'! and 

that BioMax has ''money that i~ available" and i~ "sitting on a goldmine'.' as long as you 're 

"willing to be a little creative with' [your] te?hnique:'' Foran PI Deel. ,r 79J (Sub-bates: 15-152 

Time Staml?: 15:48:00 - 15:52:00). She asked NAF attendees: "what would make it profitable for 
. " 

you? Give me -a ballpark figure .... " Id: Or "[i]f it was financially very ,profitable for you to 
. . . 

perhaps be ·a little creative in your method. would you be open to11 providing patients with . 

reimbursements for tissue donatl~ns. Id. 179K (S~b-bates: 15-203; Time Stamp; 12:09:00 -. " 

12:10:21). 

The parties dispute whether these goals were met and if defen<;lants• traps vycirked. 10 

Defendants argue.that they captured NAP attendees agreeiJJ.g to explore. or at least exp~essing 
. . . 

interest in exploring, being compensated for the sale bf fetal tissue at.a profit, which defendants . . . 
contend is illegal under state and federal Jaws. Defendants' Opposition to Motion for Preliminary 

Injunct1on (Dkt. No. 262-4) at 10-14. ~O\l'.>'~ver, they tend to. mis~tate the conversations that 

occµrred or omit the context of those statemen~s. For example, de~enda~ts rely on a conversation 

10 NAP argues that defendants cannot rely on any portion of the recordings to oppose NAF's · 
motion for a preliminary injunction·. NAF Repl,Y Br. at 29-30. NAP is correct that under 
California and Maryland law, rec01·dings taken m .violation of state laws prohibitipg recordings of 
confidential communications are not admissible in judicial proceedings, except as proof of an act 
or violation of the state statutes. See Cal. Penal Code.§ 632(d); Feldman v. Allstate Ins. co·., 322 

· F.3d 660, 667 (9th Cir. 2003) (concluding that§ 632(d) is a substantive law, applicable in federal 
cou1t on state law claims); see also Md. Code Ann., Cts. & Jud,,Pl'oc. § 10-405; Standifo1·dv. 

. Standiford, 89 Md. App. 326,346 (1991). Because the accuracy of defendants' allegations of 
criminal conduct are centr.al to this decision, however, I discuss the portions of the recordings 
relied upon by plaintiff and defendants in some detail in this section. To place this discussion 
under seal would,undermine my responsibility to the public as a court of public record to ex.plain 

· my decision. Consistent with the TRO and the reasoning of this Order, in describing the protected 
conversations I balance the interests of the providers' privacy, sa.fety and association by omitting 
n~mes, places, and o.theddentifying information. 

9 
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with a clinic owner where Daleiden suggests EioMax. could pay $60 per sample instead of $50 per 

sample. Defs. Ex. 8. The clinic owner doesn'trespond to that suggestion, or give any indication 

about.the actual costs to the clinic offaciUtating outside companies to come in and collect fetal' 

tissue. Id. Instead, the clinic owner responds that providing tissue to outside companies "is a nice 

way to get extra income in a very difficult time, and you know patients like it." Id. 11 Defendants 

point to another conv.ersation where a providei- asks what the'"reimbursement rate" is for the .. 
·clini9, and was t0ld "it.varies" by Tennenbaum. Defs. Ex. 9 (Dkt. No. 266-4) at p. 18. Then, in 

response ·t<? Tennenbaum' s suggestio~ about whether she'd "be open to maybe being a l~ttle 

creative i11 the procedure," the provider responds that she was not su~~ and would have to discuss 

it.and run it by the doctors. Defs. Ex,,9 (Dkt. No. 266~4) at p. 18. Tennenbaum explains that 

specimens "go for" anywhere from "500 up to 2,000" and so "you can see how profitable" it 

w6uld be for clinics, to which the provider says "Yeah; absolutely" and a different provider says 

'"that would be great" i'n response to comments about having further discussions. Id. at p. 19. 

Another provider responded to d~fendants' suggestion of financial ince11;tives by indicating . ,, . . 
that the clinic would be "very happy about it," but admitted others would have to approve it ~nd it 

wasn't up to he1·. Id., Dkt. No. 266~4 at p.8,' Defendants point to a con~ersation with a provider 

who discusses the "fine line" between an iUegal pa1tial birth abortion and the types of abortion that 

· they perform, and the techniques that they employ to ensure that they do not'cross that line. Defs: 

Ex. 1 O; Dkt. No. 266~5 at p. 4. That conver$ation, however, does not indicate that any lllegal 

activity was occurring. Similarly, defendants contend that a provider stated that he ordinarily 

minimizes dilation, since that is what is safest for the women, but that· if he had a reason to dilate 

more (such as tissue procurement), ~e might perform abortions differently. Oppo. Br. at 11. But 

that is not what the provider said. After. acknowledging tissue donation was n~t allowed in his 

state, he stated that "I could mop up my technique if yott wanted somi;:thing more intact. But right 

now my only concern is the safety of the woman" and there was no reason to further dilate a 

11 Defendants do not suggest the "patients like it" is a suggestion that patients are being paid for· 
the fetal tissue. Instead, ln the context of that conversation, it.refers to patients that like providing 
fetal tissue for research pmposes: · 

10 
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J. 

woman. Defs. Ex. 11, Dkt. No. 266-6 at p. 5. 

Defendants rely on another conversation wpere an abortion provider explains that how 

intact aborted fetuses are depends on the pr.ocedure used and that she does not ordinarily use 

digoxin to terminate the fetus before performing 15-week abortions. Defs. Ex. 12, Dkt. No. 266-7, . 

pgs. 1-8. She goes on to say that ifthere was a possibility of donating the tissue to research, 

women may choose that, and with the consent of the yvomal'). she would be open to attempting to 

obtain intact organs for procurement. Id: Again, this is not evidence of any wrongdoing. 

In another conversation, a provider states that his/her clinic has postponed the stage at 

wh.ich digoxin is used and that as a result they can secure more and bigger orga,ns for research so 

the tissue "does not go to waste," to .which the vast m?,jority of women using their facility consent.. 

Defs. Ex. 13, Dkt. No. 266-8 pgs. 1-8. 12 Defendant~ co~tend that a provider commehted that· 

he/she m~y be wi!lfng to be "creative" on a case-by-case basis. but the provider was responding to 

a question about doctors usi~g digoxin in general. Defs. Ex. 9, Dkt. No. 266-4 pg. 13. And while 

defendants characterize that provider as assenting to being "cre~tive,U so that Bio Max could "keep 

them happy financially" (Oppo. Br. at 11-127, the actual discussion was about off-setting the . 

di~ruption that third-party technicia~s can have on clinic operati-ons and keeping those disruptions 

to a minimum. Id. at p. 14. 

In a different conversation, defen~ants characterize a provider as agreeing to disct~ss ways 

in which a financial transaction would be structured to make it look like a clinic was not selling 

tissue. Oppo. Br. at 12. The unidentified female (there is no indication of where she works or 

what role she plays) ~imply responds to Tennenbaum's suggestions that in· response to payment . 

for tissue from BioMax the clinic could offer its. services for less money or provide transportation 

for the patients, with an interested but non-committ~l response and clarified "that's something 

we:'d have to figure out ho.w to do that." Defs. Ex. 14, Dkt. No. 266-9 pgs. 1-4. Another provider 

admits that doing intact D&Es for research purposes would '"be challenging" and explained that 

there are layers of people and approvals at the clinic before any agreements to work with a 

12 There is no evidence that a desire to secure m·ore fetal tissue samples caused the clinic to alter 
its pr6cedures. 

11 
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bioprocurement lab could be reached. Defs. Ex. 9, Dkt. No. 266-4 pgs. 8-9·. 

Defendants. state that a provider responded to Tennenbaum's comment that with the right 

vision an arrangernent can be "ex1;remely financially IJrofitabJe," with "we certainly do" have that 

vision. Oppb. Br. at 12. But defendants omit that the context of the conversation was the "waste" 

of fetal tis~ue that could otherwise .be going to research. Defs. Ex. 9, Dkt. No. 266-4 pgs. 2-3. In 

the excerpt relied on by defendants, after Tennenbaum mentioned the. profit she went onto 

describe tissue donation working for.those that have the 1'~ision and the passion for research." 

The provider responded, "Which we certainly do." Id. p. 2. Similarly, while defendants are 

correct that a provider did say, "if guys it looks'like you'd pay me for (fetal tissue], that would be 

awesome," but omit that the provider preceded that comment with "I would Jove to have it [the 

fetal tissue] go somewhere" and that the provider was excit~d about the possibility of the tissue · 

going to be used in research to be "doing something.'' Defs. Ex. 15, Dkt. No. 266-10. pgs. 1-2. 

Defendants cite a handful of similar discussions -where ccprofit" usale" or "top. dollar" are 

terms used by Daleiden or Tennenbaum and then provider~ at some point following that lead in 

the conversation express general interest in exploring receivi~g payment for tissue - but those 

conversations do not show that any clinic is ma~ing a profit offoftissue donations or that the 

providers are agreeing to a profit-making arrartgement. 13 Defendants are correct that one provider' 

indic.ates it ret}©ived $6,000 a quarter from .a bioprocurement lab, but there is no .discussion 

showing that amount is profit (in ex~ess of the costs of having third .. party technicians on s_ite and 

providing access and storage for their work). Defs. Ex. 21, Dkt. No. 267-2 p.2. An employee of a 

biopro~urement lab also agrees in re~ponse tq statemerits from Tennenbaum that the clinics kriow 

it is "ft11a11cially profitable" for them to work with bioprocurement labs and that arrangement helps 

13 Some. of defend;nts' cltations are to comments about providers performing abortions 
differently, not in terms of gestational timing, but in terms of attempting to keep tissue sample.s 
more intact durlng the procedure if those samples might be of use for research. Oppo. Br. at 12-
13, There is no argument that taking those steps violates any law. Pefendants also cite provider 
comments -for example, an abortion provider engaging in conduct "under the table" to' get around 
restrictions-which do not show up in the transcript excerpts they refer to. Oppo. Br. at 13 .. 
Finally, defendants rely on comments - from ,Panel presentations and individual conversations -
where providers express the personal and societal difficulties they face in performing abortions. 
There 1s no indication in those comments of any illegal conduct Oppo. Br. at 12, 14-15. 

rn 
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the clinics "significantly." Defs. Ex. ~3, Dkt. No. 267-4 p. 2. 

Having reviewed the recor.ds or.transcripts in fuJI and in contexti I find that no NAF 

attendee ad~itted to ~ngaglng in, agreed to engage in, or expressed interest in engaging in 

potentially illegal sale of fetal tissue·for profit. Th~ recordings tend to show an express rejection 

of Daleiden 's and . .his associates' proposals or,. at most, dis~ussion~ of inter~st in being paid to 

recoup the costs i!lcurred by clinics to facilitate collection of fetal tissue for scientific :research, 

which NAF argues is legal. See, e.g., Foran ~1Deel.179(1) (Sub-bates: 14-147; Time Stamp 

.05:56:00 - 05:57:00 (Dr. Nucatola identifying an "ethical problem" with Da!eiden's payment . . . . . 
proposal: "We just really want the affiliates to·be compensated in a way that is proportionate to the 

amou11t of work that's required 011 their end to do it. In other words, we don't sey it as a money 

making opportunity .. That's not what it should be ·about."); Foran PI·Decl. 179(K) (SubMbates: 15-. 

~03; Time Stamp: 12:09:00 -12:10:21) (NAP attendee responding to Tenne~baum's proposal" 

"Do the patients get any reimbursement? No, you can't pay for tissue, right. You can't pay for .. 

tissue/'); Foran Pl Deel. ,r 79(M) (Sub-bate~: lS-01 O; Time Stamp: 24:29 - 25:43) (NAP attendee . . ~ . . 
responds that "we cannot have that e:onversation with you about being creative," because it . . . . . 
''crosses the line."); .Foran PI Deel. ,r 79(N) (~ub-Bates: 15-010;.Time.: Stamp: 59:18-1 :04:32) 

(NAP attendee responding to Tennenbaum with, "No profiteering or·appearance. of profiteering· .. 

. we need it to be a donation program rather than a business opportunit:Y/'). 

Defendants also gathered confidential NAP and NAF-i;nember materials at the An~ual 
. . 

Meetings, including li~ts and biographies of NAF faculty and contact information for NAP 

members: Foran PI Deel. 13; Pl. Ex: 56 at 3; Pl. Ex. 58. 

Following the 2014 Anni.ta!- Meeting, Daleiden followed up with the "targets" he met at the 

Meeting, in part ~o set up m~etings with abortion providers, including Dr. Deborah Nucatola. 14 Pl. 

Exs. 26 (list of "targets"), 36, 59-6li 64-65, 67-69; Daleiden Depo. 257-259, 265-269, As he· 

explained to his suppo1ters a_nd funders in a report.p~epared following the 2014 Meeting-in 

which he shared some of the confidential NAP information that had been collected at that meeting 

14 Dr. Nucatola was identified by defendants as a key target and the Senior Directo~ of Medical 
Services for Planned Parenthood. Pl. Ex. 26. 

13 
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- he was able to se9ure the follow up Jl?.·eetings because, following its attendance at the 2014 

Annual Meeting, "BioMax is npw a known and trusted entity to many key individuals in the upper 

echelons of the abortion industry." Pl. Ex. 26; see also Pl. Bxs. 59-63 (emails to targets 

referencing their meeting at NAF); PI. Ex. 64 (emaiJ.to Dr. Nucatola); Daleiden Depo. at 2~3M259 

(Daleiden's follow-up with Dr. Nucatola); Pl. Ex. 67 ~f 3-4 (StemExpress representative 

explaining her initial meeting with Daleiden at the NAF 2014 Annual Meeting, as the reason a 

subsequent meeting was arranged); Daleiden Tr. at 271-274 (discussing his follow up · 

communications with StemExpress representatives). In a recording following Daleiden and . . . 

Tennenbaum's meeting with StemExpress representatives; Daleiden credited the ability to setmre 

that meeting to ''because like we've been at NAF. Like, we're so vetted and so like.11 Foran Pl · 
•. 

Deel.~ 12; Pl. Ex. 70 at FNPB029820150522190849.avi at 19:13:00-19:15:00). 

III. . DEFENDANTS RELEASE HUMAN CAPITAL PROJECT VIDEOS 

. On July 14, 2015, CMP released tw.o videos of a lunch meeting that Da.leiden had with Dr. 

Nucatola, a "key" target from the 2014 }:TAF Annual Meeting. Daleiden PI Deel., 25; Pl. Bx. 26. 

Daleiden testified that one 0f the vide9s "contained the entire conversation with Nucatola" and the 
. . 

other was ''a shorter summary version of the highlights froin the conversation." Id. ·CMP issued a 

press release in. conjunction with the release of these videos entitled "Planned Parenthood's Top 

Doctor, 'Praised by. CEO, .. Us~s Partial-Birth Abortion to Sell Baby.P,arts.'~ Pl. Ex. 66. NAF 

counters that the "highlights,, video was misleadingly edited and omits Dr. Nucatola's comments 

that ''nobody should. be se,Iling tissue. That's just not the goal h~re,'' and her repeated 0011:J,ments 

that Planned Parenthood would not sell tissue ~r profit ii:i any way from tissue donations. Foran 

TRO Deel. Ex. 18 at 7, 2lw22, 25w26, 34, 48, 52-54. 

On July 21, 2015, CMP released ~wo more videos: a 73-mimite video and a shorter 

"highlights summary" from Daleiden's lunch'meeting with Planned Parenthood "staff member" 

Dr. Mary Gaiter. Daleiden PI Decl. f 26. CMP issued a press release in conjunction with the 
~ . 

release of tJiese videos entitled "Seco~d Planned Par~nthood Senior Executive Haggles Over ,Baby . . 
Parts Prices, Changes Aboition Methods." Pl. Ex. 71. NAF again contends the '!highlight" video 

was misleadingly edited, including the omission of Dr. Gattei·'s comments that tissue donation was 
' o I " ' 
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not ab.out profit, but "about people wanting to see something good come out' of their situations, . . . 
''they want to see a silver lining .... " Pl.. Ex. 82 at NAF0001395. 

CMP has continued to release other videos as part of the Project, including one featuring a 

.site visit to Planned Parenthood Rocky Mountains, wh~re Savita Ginde is Medical Director. · . . 
Daleiden PI Deel.~ 27. On Ju)y 30, 2015, CMP issu~d a press release in conjunction with the 

release of thi~ video entitled "Planned Parenthoo9 VP Says Fetuses May Come Out Intact, Agrees 

Payments Specific to the Specimen."· Pl. Ex. 74. 15 

baleiden asserts that when CMP released the "highlight" or summary videos, CMP also 

released·"full" copies of the.underlying recordings. Daleiden PI Deel. ~125-27. NAF has 
; . 

submitted.a report by Fusion OPS, completed at the request of counsei for Planned Parenthood, 

analyzing the vi'deos released by CMP. and concluding that there is evidence that CMP edited 

content out of the "full" videos and heavily edited the short videos "so as to misrepresent . 

stat~ments made by Planned Parenth~od representatives." Pl. Ex. 77; ~ee al~o Pl. ·Bxs. '78-79. 16 

The day before the first set of videos was released, CMP put together a press kit ~ith 

"messaging guidelines" that was circulat~d to supporters. ~I. Ex. 135; Deposition Transcript of 

Charles C. Johnson (Dkt. No .. 255-11) 70:22-71 :19. In those guidelines, defendants assert that 

their aim for the Project is to create "political pressure" on Planned Parenthood, focusing on·. · 

·~congl'essional hearings/investigation and political consequences for" Planned Parenthood such as 

defu.ndh1g and abortion 'Jim.its. Pl. Ex. US. 
To be clear, the videos released by CMP as part of the Project to date do not contain 

informatfon recorded during-the NAF Annual Meetings. 17 
· With respect to the NAF material· 

15 See also PI. Ex. 74 (CMP press rele~se on fifth Project video; '"Intact Fetal Cadavers' at 20 
Weeks '-:Tust a Matter of Line Items' at Planned Parenthood TX Mega-Center; Abortion Docs Can 
·'Make it Happen."'); Pl. Ex. 69 (CMP press release on eighth Project video; "Planned .Parenthood 
Baby Parts Buyer StemExpress Wants 'Another 50 Livei•s/Week/ Financial Benefits for Abortion 
Clinics/'); Pl. Ex. 75 (CMP press release on ninth Project video; "Planned Parenthood Baby Parts 
Vendor ABR Pays Off Clinics, Intact Fetuses 'Just Fell Out."'); Pl. Ex: 76 (CMP. press release on 
terith Project video; "Top Planned Parenthood Exec Agrees Baby Parts Sales 'A Valid Exchange,' 
Some Clinics '.Generate a Fair Amoun:t ofincoine Doing This."'). · 
16 Defenqants object to Exhibits 78-79 as inadmissible hearsar, for lack of personal knowledge 
and authentication, and improper expert testimony. Those obJections are overruled. 
17 NAP contends that the meetings Daleiden had with Doctors Nucatola, Gattei;-, and Ginde that 
resulted in the CMP videos would not hav·e been possiple without BioMax having fraudulently 

15 
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covered· by the TRO and at issu~ on the motion for a preliminary inju11ction, Daleiden affirms that 

other than: (i) providing a SteinEx.press advertisement from the NAP 2014 Annual Meeting 

program to law enforcement in El Dorado County, California in May 2015; (ii) short clips of video 

to law enforcement in Texas in June or July 2015; (iii) providing the 5.04 hours of recordings in 

response to the Congressional subpoena; and (iv) providing a short written report to CMP donors 

in April 2014, "Daleiden and CMP have made no other disclosures of recordings or documents 

from NAP meetings." Daiei den PI Deel. ,r 24. · However, a portion of th~ NAF materials were 

. leaked and posted on the inte1;net on October 20 and 21, 2015. 18 

IV. IMPACT OF DISCLOSURES. ON NAF AND ITS MEMBERS . . 
NAP is .a not-for-profit professional association of abortion providers. including private 

and non-profit clinics, Planned Parenthbod affiliates, women's health centers, physicians' offices, 
' . 

and hospitals. Declaration of Vicki Saporta (Dkt. No. 3-34) f 2. It sets standards for abo1tion care 

through Clinical Policy Guidelines (CPGs) and Ethical Principles for A~ortion Care, and develops . 

continuing medical ·educ~tion and training programs and educationai resources f~r abortion 

provic;lers and other health care professionals. Id. 13. NAP also implemented a multi"faceted 

security program to help ensure th~ safety of abortion providers by putting in place reference, 

security, and confidentiality requirements for its membership and for attendance at its Meetings. 

Id. ,r~ 10"14; Declar~t.io~ of Mark Mellor (Dk~. No. 3-33) 15-12. ~AF tracks secu~ity threats to 

· abortion providers and clinics, and offers tech11ical assistance, on-site security training·, and 

fkained access to NAF's Annual Meetings and, thereby, appearing to be a legitimate operation. 
This leak occurred after defendants produced NAP materials covered by the TRO to Congtess. · 

NAP argues - and moves for an Order to Show Cause asking l'ne to sanction defendants -that 
defenoants violated .my order and the TRO by producing to Congress NAP audio and video · 
recordings that were not'directly,responsive to the Congre.ssional subpoena. See Dkt. Nos. 155, 
222. NAF complains that as a result of this "over production/',the subsequent leak irtcluded NAF 
Materials that had nothing to do with alleged criminal activity. I heard argument on this motion · 
,on December 18, 2015. Dkt. No. 310. Having considered the representations of defense counsel1 

I DENY the motion for an order to show cause. Defendants did produce materials that were not . 
covered by the subpoena, but were covered by the TRO, contrary to my Order allowing a response 
to the subpoena. Dkt. No. 155. Defense counsel did so because in light of their conversations 
with Congressional staffers, they ~elieved Congress wanted !'unedited'' recordings, which defense 
counsel interpreted to mean the whole batch of recordings, even those where fetal tissue was :not 
being discussed. At the hearing I cautioned defense counsel that in the future, before they take it 
upon themselves to arguably violate an order from this Court - even if in good faith - they should 
seek clarification :from me first. · · 

16 
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assessments at facilities and homes of clinic staff, as well as 24/7 support to its members when 

they are "facing an emergency or are targeted. Id. 1 lo,' 15; see also Declaration of Derek Foran in 

Su~port ofTRO (Dkt No. 3-2) 16 & Ex 2 (NAP statistics doc1:1menting more than 60,000 

incidents of harassment. intimidation, and violence against abortion providers, including murder,. 

shootings, arson, bombings, chemical and, acid attacks, biote1TOrism threats, kidnapping, death 

threats, ·and other forms of violence between 1997 and 2014) .. 

Following the release of the videos in July 2015, the subjects of those videos (including 

Doctors Nucatola, Gatter, and Ginde), have ,received a large.amount harassing communications 

· (including death threats).· Pl. Bxs. 80·81 (internet articles and threats by commentators), 83-9.1; 

see also Saporta Deel. 1 19. Incidents of harassment and :violence directed at abortion providers 

increased nine fold in July 2015, over similar incidents in June 2014. Pl. Ex. 92. The incidents 

continued to sharply rise in August 2015. Pl. Ex. 93. The FBI bas also reported s~eing an increase 

i~ att~oks ~n reproductive healtli care facilities'. Pl. Ex, 94. 19 Since July 2015, there have also 

been four incidents of. arson at Planned Parenthood and NAF -member facilities. Saporta Depo. at 

42:1-1 O; P!,·Exs. 96-99.20 Most significantly, the clinic where Dr. Ginde is medical dir~ctor..:. a 

fact that was listed on the AbortinDocs·.org, website 'operated by defendant Newman's Operation 

Rescue group...., was attacked by a gunman, resulting in three deaths. Pl. Bxs. 18, 20, 21, 22, 

148.21 

NAF's President and CEO testified that there '·'has been a dramatic increase" in harassment· . 

since July 14, 2015, and the "volume of hate speech and threats are nothing I have ever seen in 20 

years." PL Ex. 95,(Deposition Transcript of Vicki Saporta) at 16:1 /"/-23, 39:13-20; see also id. at 
. . 

43:15-18 ("We have uncovered many, many direct.threats.naming individuai providers. Those 

19 Defendants object to Exhibits 92 - 94 on the grounds that Foran lacks personal knowledge and 
cannot a1.1thentioate the exhibits, as hearsay, and on relevance. Those objections are overruled.· 
20 Defendants object to Exhibits 96 - 99 as inadmissible hearsay, Jack of personal knowledge, lack 
of authentication, irrelevant and prejudicial. Those objections are overruled. Defendants also filed 
a motion to supplement the Preliminary Injunctio'n record with a news article .indicating the 
individual arrested in connection with the fire at the Thousand Oaks Planned Parenthood office 
was not motivated by politics, but by~ "domestic feud." Dkt. No. 322. That motion is 
GRANTED. · · · 
21· Defendants object to Exhibit 148 as irrelevant and inadmissible hearsay, Those o'bjections are 
overruled. 

17 
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providers have had to undergo extensive security precautions and believe they are in danger."), In 

response, NAP hired and committed additional staff to monitoring the internet for harassment and 

threats. Saporta Depo. at 38:2-20. NAF1s security. teain has also seen ;an increase in off-hour 

commu~ications from members about security. Mellor Deel. 1 15. As a result, NAF has been 

forced to take increased security measures at increased cost, has cut back on its communications 

~ith members, and alerted hotel staff and security for its .upcoming events that those meetings 

have been "compromised." Id.~ 15. 

Two NAP members also submit declarations in support of NAP. Jennifer Dunn; a law 

·professor, $Ubmits a declaration expiaining her expectation that she was filmed du:ring the 2014 

Annual Meeting during a panel presentation and that following the release of the CMP videds,. she 

took steps to prote.ctthe safety and privacy of her family .. Declaration of Jennifer :r. Dunn (Dkt. 

· No. 3-31) ,r I0.:22 -She explains that she is fearfui'that CMP may release a misleading and highly 

edited video featuring some or all o~her panel present~tion that would open her up t~ the sort of ·. 

public disparagement and intimidation she saw directed towards ~octors Nuca~ola and ~atter after 

the CMP videos were released. Id. ,r,r 9-10. .. 
Dr. Matthew.Reeves;·the medical director of NA~. submits a declaration explaining his 

understanding that Da]eiden filmed· conversations with him during the 2014 Annual Meeti;ng. 

Declaration ofD7. Matthew Reeves (Dkt. No,,) ,r,r 12-16.23 Dr. Reeves explains that he has 

witnessed "the terrible reaction towards the prior doctors>) who were featured in CMP's videos and 

. he expects he "will suffer sii;nilar levels of reputational harm should a heavily edited and 

misleading video of me be released." Id. ·1 17. Because of his expectation that defendants could 

"target" hi~, since. the release of the vide0s, he had 1-iis home inspected by NAF 1s secul'ity team 

and is installing a secudty system, but given the current atmosphere he remains fearful for his 

safety and that of his family,!d. ,r~ 19; 21'. 

22 Defendants object to paragraph 10 of Dunn's declaration. as lacking. in personal knowledge, 
improper expert'testimony, inadmissible hearsay, and improper opinion. Those objections are 
overruled. · · . 
23 Defendants object to paragraph 12 of Dr. Reeves declaration as speculative, improper expert 
testimony, improper opinion testimony, and for lack of personal knowledge. Those objections are 

' overl'llled. 
18 
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·v. ',['EMPORARY RESTRAINING ORDER AND PRELIMINARY INJUNCTION 

On July 31, 2015, based on an application from NAF and after reviewing the preliminary. 

evidentiary record, I granted NAF's tequest and entered a Temporary Restraining Ord.er that 

restrain~d and enjoined defendants and their officers, agents, servants, employees, and attorneys, 

· and any other persons who are in active conc~rt or participation with them from: 

(1) publishing or qtherwise disclosing to any third party any video, audio, photographic, or 
other recordings taken,."or any confidential information learned, at any NAF annual 
meetings; · · 

.• I 

(2) publishing or otherwise disclosing to any third party the.dates qr locations. of any future 
NAF rneetings;,and ' 

(3) publishing.or otherwise disclosing to any third party the names or addresses of any 
NAF members ,learned at any NAP annual meetings. · 

Dkt. No; 15 . .' ·on August"3, 201.5, after ~~viewi~g the arguments a.nd additional evidence submitt~d. 
. ' . . . . . 

· by defendants, I issued an order keeping'the .TRO in place pending the hearing and ruling ~n 

NAF's motion for a preliminary injunction. D~. No. 27. Op August 26, 2015, I entered a 
,• . . ' 

stipulated Protective Order, which provided that before 1·esponding to any subpoenas from law 
' . . 

o ' ' I ' 

enforcement entities for information designated as confidential i..mder the Prot~otive Order, the 
' . 

party receiving the subpoena must notify the party whose ma~~rials a.re at issue and inform the 

entity that issued the subpoena that.the materials requested ar~ covered by the TRO. Dkt. No. 92 

19. The purpose of the ~otice provision is to allow the party whose confidential materials are 

sough~ the opportunity to meet._and corifer and, if necessary, seek relief f~om the subpoena in the 

court or tribunal fro1n' -which the subpoena issued. Jd. 

.In NAF's motion for preliminary injunction; NAF ~sks me to continue in effect the 

injunction provided in.the TRO, but also to expa.)1d the scope to include the following: 

(4) er1join the publication or disclosure of any video, audio, photographic, or other· 

recordings taken of members or attendees Defendant~ first made contact with at NAF 
' 

meetings; and publishing.or otherwise disclosing to any third party the dates or 

l~cations of any future NAF rrieetings; and 
. ' . 

(5) enjoin the defendants froin attempting to .gain access to any future NAF meetings. 

19 
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Motion (Dkt. No. 228-4) at i. 

LEGAL-STANDARD 

"'A plaintiff seeking a preliminary irtjun.ction must establish that he is likely to succeed on 

the m~rits, that he is likely to suffer irreparable harm in the absence of preliminary relief, that the 

balance of equities tips in his favor, and that an injunction is in.the public interest.'" Alliance for. 

the Wild Rockies v. Cottrell, 632 F.3d 1127, 1131 (9th Cir. 2011) (quoting Winter v. Nat. Res. Def. 
. 

Council, Inc., 555 U.S. 7 (2008)). Where an injunction restrains speech, a showing of 

11exceptlonaP'. circumstances may be required, as the Reporters Commi:ttee for Freedom oftl;ie 

Press pointed out.24 See, e.g., Bank Julius Baer & Co. Lt~ v. Wikileaks, 535 F. Supp. 2d 980, 985 

(N .D. Cal. 2008). On ,this ,record, I conclude that exceptional circumistances exist, meriting the 

continuation of injunctive relief pending final resolution of this case. 

DISCUSSION 

I. LIKELIHOOD' OF SUCCESS 

NAP's Amended Coinplaint asserts eleven different causes of action against the three · 
' ' 

defendants.' Dkt. Nq. 131. In moving for a preliminary injunction, NAP rests on only two -

breach of contract and violation of California Penal Code section 632 ~ to argi.ie its likelihood of . . . .., 
success on the merits . 

A, Bi:each of Contract 
' ' 

Under California law, _to. succeed on·a breach of contract claim, a plaintiff must proye: (l) · . 

the existence of a contract, (2) plaintiff performed or is excused for nonperformance, (3) 

defendant's .breach, and ( 4) resulting damages to plaintiff. See, e.g., Reiqhert v. Gen. Ins. Co. of · 

Am., 68 Cal. 2d 822, 830 (1968). NAP argues that defe11dants' conduct: (i) breached t~e EAs, by 

misrepresenting BioMax and Jhelr own identities; (ii) breached the EAs and CAs by secretly 

recording during the Annual Meetings; and (iii) breached the EAs and CAs by disclosing and 

publishing NAF' s ?onfidential materials. 

24 The Reporters Committee for Freedom of the Press resubmitted their motion asking the Court to 
consider their amiai auriae letter brief. Dkt. No. 287. I GRANT .that motion and consider the 
Reporters Committee Jetter, as well as NAP's response, and the Reporters· Committee's reply. 
Dkt. Nos. 109, 111, 114, 287. . · 

. 20 
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1. Existence of a Contract; Consideration for the Confidentiality Agreements 

Defendants argue that NAF cannot enforce the CA because that parHcul~r agreement was 

not supported by consideration for the 2014 or 2015 Meetings. See Chicago Title Ins. Co. v. AMZ: 

Ins. Servs., Inc., 188 Cal. App. 4th 40 l, 423 (2010) ("Every e.xecutor.y contract requires 

consideration, which ma): be an act, forbearance, change in legal relations, or a promise.").25 They 

contend that the only document that needed to be signed to gain access to the NAF Meetings was 

the EA Therefore, according to ~efendants, th.er~ was no separate consideration given with 

respect to the CAs that were signed by or sought from the attendees at the NAP registration tables 

because NAF already had a legal obligation to permit them access to the meetings. Oppo. Br. at 

Defendants' ~rgument is not supported. by the facts .. The BAs on their face provided access 
. ' . . 

to the exhibition area ("Exhibit Rules and Regulations0
) q,nd also required that any exhibitor's . . 

repr,e~entatives be registered for the NAP Annual Meetings. Pl. Bxs. 3,4. The CAs wire r~quired 

as part of the registration for the NA.F Annual Meetingi and NAF's eviden~e demonstr~t~s that no 

one was supposed to be aflowed into the Meetings unless their identification was checked and they 

signed a CA. Declaration of Mark Mellor (Dkt. No.:3-33).111; Dunn Deel. f 6; see also F'.oran PI 

Deel. 179(C) (Sub-Bates 15-062; Time stamp: 14:56:02-14:56:50) (NAP representative 

confirming that Daleiden and associates had their identification. checked. and signed confidentiality 

agreemerits). Nothing in the language of the EAs or CAsi or the other facts in the record, support 
. . . 

defendants' argument that upon signing the EAs, NAF had the legal obligation to permit 

Daleiden's group access to the meetings without further requirement. 

Other than lack of COlilsideration, the only other argument defendants appear to make with 

respect to the CA is that the CA cannot be enforced agai11st Daleiden a11d two of his associates . . . 
(Tennenbaum and Allen) because they did not execute CAs for the 20i 5 NAF Annual Meeting. 

Oppb. Br. at 19-20 & fn. 7, As an initial matter, there is no dispute that everyone in Daleiden's 

.· group.signed the CAs for the 20'14 Meeting. Ther~ is also no dispute that the reason Daleiden and 

25 Defendants make no argument that the EA was not suppo1ted by consideration. It plainly was; 
.access to the exhibition hall in exchange for submission of the Application and payment of the 
exhibitor fee. 

21 
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two of his associates did not sign "the CAs for the 2015 Meeting is that Daleiden lied about it to a 

NAF representative. Foran Pl Deel. ,r 79(C) (Sub-Bates 15-062; Time stamp: 14:56:02-14:56:50). . ' 

There is likewise no dispute that at ]east one of the CMP associates working at DaJeiden's 
' ' 

direction, "Lopez," signed the 2015 CA. Given these facts, on this record, the 2015 .CA can be 

enforced against defendants for purposes of determining likelihood of success on NAF's breach of 

contract claim. . 

I find that NAF has shown a likelihood.of success on their breach of contract cla,im based 

on the 2014 and 2015 CAs. 

2. Whether Defendants' Conduct Breached the EA 

Defendants argue.that NAF cannot prevail on its claim that defendants misrepresented . . ' . ' 

themselves in violation of the E:A because Paragraph 15 of the EA only requires Exhibitors to 

ceii:lentify, display, and/or represent their business, products, and/or services truthfully, accurately, 

and coti'sistently with the information provided in the .Application.11 Defendants contend that this 

requirement appHes only to BioMax, not Daleiden and his associates ."indivjdually/1 and that 
. . 

NAP is attempting to base its breach claim on representations def~ndants made about BioMax 

and/or CMP ·outside of the NAF Annual Me~tings. Oppo. Br. at 20~21. 

By signing the EA on behalf of a fake company, defendants CMP and Daleiden neoessadly 

violated paragraph 19 of the EA, which ·required the signatory's affirmation that the information 'in 

the Agreement, as well as any information displayed at the Meetings, was "truthful, acctirate, . · · . . . . ' 

complete, and not misleading." Pl. Bxs. 3,4. Similarly, by signing the EA and then displaying and 

representing false and inaccurate information about BioMax at the Meetings, ·defendants CMP and 

Daleiden violated paragraph 15 as well.26 
· Defendants' conduct with respect to the information 

they conveyed in the EA and their conduct at the NAF meeting i? sufficient - on this. record - to 

. . 
~6 Defendants assert in their brief, without any citation to evidence~ that BioMax's "business" was 
to uassess the market for clinics and abortion providers willing to partner·with it in buying and 
selling fetal tissue.» Oppo. Br. at 21. This post-hoc rationalization is contrary to the defendants' 
own contemporaneous statements and their statements on the BAs themselves which required the 
applicant to "5. List the products or services to be exhibited" and which Daleiden filled out as 
"biological specimen procurement, stem cell research" and "fetal tissue procurement, human ' 
biospeoimen procurement." Pl. Exs.-'3,4; see. also Pl. Ex. 26 (des.cribing BioMax. as a "'front 
organization/'). · 

22 
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show a violation of that agreement, regardless of how defendants may have portrayed Bio~ax · 

outside of the NAF Meetings. 

Defendants' argu1~1ent that paragraph 15 of the EA restl'icts t~e remedies NAF can seek for 

breach to cancellation of the EA and removal of exhibits at the Meetings~ and exclude~ the 

injunctive relief sought in this motion is likewise without support. Defendants continue to ignore 

paragraphs 18 and 19, which provide that ifthere is a.breach of the EA, NAF is entitled to seek 

specific performance, injunctive relief and "all other remedie.s available at law or equity." PL Ex~. 

3,4. 

.On the record before me, NAF has a stro~g likelihood of-success on its argument that 

defendants breached the EA for the 2014 and 2015 NAF Annual Meetings.27 

3. · Scope and Reasonableness of the EA 

Defendants argue that the EA is unenforceable because it is overbroad, ir~preoise, and 

unreasonable, Specifically, they rely on NAF's characterization of the EA (~nd :presumably the 

CA as well) as "broad" and encompassing all NAP 9ommunications and things learned at the.NAP. . . ' 
' ' 

fy!eetings t9 argue that the EA'.s breadth is problematic. 

That a confidenti~ity provision is broad do.es not mean it is unenforceable. The cases cited 

by defendants on this point are not to the contrary.28 For exampJe, in Wildmon. v. Berwick 
. ' 

Universal Pictures, 803 f. Supp. 1167, 1178 (N.D. Miss.) aff'd, 979 F.2d 209 (5th Cir. 1992), 

after apply~ng Mississippi's contract interpretation doctrine and determining that the contract· 

language was ambiguous, the Court concluded that "an ambiguous contract should be read in a 

27 Defendants also argue that their recordings could.not have·violated the EA because the EA did. 
not prohibit audio and video recording, lt only prohibited photography. Oppo. Br. at 19-20; EA at 
113. Disputes over whether a ban on "photography" would prohibit video and audio l'ecording 
aside, the CAs clearly prohibited all forms of recording and are enforceable against defendants, 
even for the 2015 meeting as discussed above. In a footnote, defendants assert that the CAs 
should be read as limiting the prohibition on recording to only formal sessions at the Meetings and 
not informal discussions. Oppo. Br. at 20, fn. 8. That argurµent is not supported. There is · 
nothing in the text of the CA that indicates that "discussions" is limited to formal panel or 
workshop presentations and dqes not encompass information that is conveyed outside of those 
"formal" events. 
2 Cj Coast Plaza Doctors Hosp. v. Blue Cross o/Califomia, 83 Cal. App. 4th 677, 684 (2000), as 
modified (Sept. 7, 2000) (giving full effect to "contractual language [that] is both clear and plam. 
It is also very broad. In interpreting an unambiguous contractual provision.we are bound to give 
effect to the plain and ordi11ary'meani11g of the language used by the parties."). 
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way that allows viewersliip an~ encourages debate." The problem in Wildman was not breadth, 

but ambiguity, 

In In re JDS Uniphase C01p. Sec .. Littg., 238 F. Supp. 2d 1127 (N.D. Cal. 2002), a 

securities class action, the state of Connecticut moved the court to limit the scope of a 

confidentiality agreement the employer imposed on its employees so that the employees could 

respond to a state investigation, The court concluded, to "the extent that those agreements 

preclude former e1'nployees from assisting in investigations of wrongdoing that have nothing to do 

with trade secrets or other confidential business infor~ati,on. they conflict with the publicyolioy in 

favor of allowing even current employees to assist in securitie_s fraud investigations.,, Id. at 1137. 

The considerations the court ~ddressed in In re JDS Uniphase Corp. Sec. Litig that led it to limit 
' . 

· the sc?pe of the employee confidentiality agreement may have some persuasive vaI4e with respect . 

to the interests of the Attorney ~eneral amici discussed below,.but do not weigh against 

enforcement of NAP' s confidentiality agreements against d.efendant~ generally. Th~s is es.r:iecially 

true considering.that there are significant, countervailing public policy arguments weighing in 

favor of enforcing NAF's confidentiality agreem~nts. See; e.g., Cal. Govt. Code§, 6215(a)' 

(recognizing that persons working in the reproductive he~lth care fielcl, specifically the provision 

of terminating a pregnancy, are often subject to harassment, threats, and acts of violence by 

.persons or groups),· 

The final case·re!ied on by defendants in support of their argument that the EA should be 

interpreted narl'Owly, consistent with the public's interest in hearing speech on matters of public 

concern, did not address a confidentiality agreement at all. See Cw·tis Pub. Co. v. Butts, 388 U.S. 

13 0, 145 (1967). The Curtis case found. that absent clear and° compelling circumstances, the Court 

would not find that ·a defendant had waived a First Amendment defense to libel (where that 

specific defense had not be~n established by the Siipreme Court at the time. of defendants' 'libel , 

trial). 

Defendants also rely on es;ablished case law directing co9rts to interp1'et ambiguous 

contracts in a manner that is reasonable and does not lead to absurd results. Oppo, Br. at 22-23. 

Defendants argue that the broad c_overage NAF contends the EA imposes on defendants is 

24 
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unreasonable and absurd because NA_F:'s interpretation of the broad scope of the EA would cover 

all information discussed ~t NAF's' Meetings,' even. publicly known information. Oppo. at 22-23. 

Defendants' argument might h~ve sotne merit if it was made con.cerning.a challenge to the 

application of the EAs' confidentiality provisions'with respect to specific pieces or types of 

information that are otherwise publicly know~ .or intended by NAP to be shared with individuals 

not covered by the EA. Defendants do not make that type of -"as applied," narrow argument. 

Instead, they argue that the whole EA is unenforceable. There is no legal support for that resu.lt or 

for defendants' speculation that the EA might be enforced in an unreasonable manner against other 

NAP attendees.29 

4. What Information is Qovered by EA 

· Defenpants argue· that e~en if enforceable, ~e EA should be,re~d to create confidentiality 

only for the information provicj.ed by NAP in formal s~ssions and should not be construed to cover . . . 
information provided by conferen~e attendees i:p informal conversations. Oppo . .B.r. at 26-27. · 

Defendants rely on the two portions ·of paragraph 17 of EA fodheir restrictive interpretation of its 

coverage; they argue that paragraph 17 only restricts .~isclosure of information ''NAP may furnish" 

and "written information provided byNAF." Those provisions, defe~dants say, ~hould be read to 
I 

modify ''.any information which is disclosed orally or visually." Taken together, defendants argi.ie, 

this language "connotes formality" and therefore should cover only oral and visual information 
' ' 

provided in formal sessions at the Meetings. Oppo. Br. at 26. 
I ' ' 

As· an initial matter, defendants wholly ignore the provision in the BA,s that signatodes 
. . 

agree - on behalf bf entities and their employees and ~gents - t9 "hold in trust and confidence any 

confid.ential information received in the course of exhibiting at the NAF Annm1J Meeting and 

agree not to repi·oduce or disclose confidential information without express permission from 

NA?," Pl. Bxs. 3,4. The only reason defendants gained access to the·NAF.Antmal Meetings was 

29 I agree with defendants. that NAF's intent with r~spect to the EA a.no CA is irrelevant for 
purposes of this motion. Under California contract law, intent comes into play only when contract 
· language is ambiguous. There is no ambiguity concerning meaning of the EA or CA with respect 
to defendants' conduct here and, therefore, no need to construe otherwise ambiguous terms against 
the drafter. But see Rebolledo v. Tilly's, Inc., 228 Cal. App. 4th 900, 913 (2014) ("ambiguities in 
standard form contracts are to be construed against the drafter."). · 
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under their guise as exhibitors and all information they received was in the course of that role, 

even if gathered in places other than the exhibition hall. Moreover, defendants' constrained 

reading of paragraph 17 is illogical. The text of paragraph 17, when read as a whole, covers all 

written, oral; and'Visual information, and the "fonnality" of the language does not restrict·it~ 

requirements to only the .CCformal" workshops and prese~tations as argued by defendants. 30 
. 

In sum, on'the record before me, NAP has deJ:!lonstrated a strong likelihood of success on 

its breach of contract claims both with re.spect to the EAs that were signed by au· CMP operatives 

in 2014 an~ 2015i and with respect to the.CAs that were signed by Daleiden and his associates in 

2014 ai:id signed by Lopez in 2015. 

B. Califorrii~ Penal Code section 632 
. . 

NAF also contends that it has d~monstrated a likelihood of success:on its claim that. 

defendants violated California Penal Code section 632. That provision makes it' a crime to, . 

"without the consent of all parties to a confidential communication, by means of any electronic 

. amplifying or recording device, eavesdrops upon or records the confidential communication, 

whetlrer th~ communication. is carried on among the parti~s in the presence of one another or by 

means of a telegraph, telephone, or other devic~." Cal. Penal Code§' 632(a) .. "The term 

'confidential communication' includes i;iny communication carried on in circumstances as may 

reasonably indicate that any party to the communication desires it to be confined to the parties . 

thereto, but excludes a communication . . . in any other circumstanc~ in whicfl the parties to the 

communication may reasonably expect that the communication may be overheard or recorded/' 

Id. § 632(c). And "[e]xcept as proof in an action or prosecution for violation of this section, no . 

evidence obtained as a result of eavesdr.opping upon or recording a confidential communication in 

violation of this section shall be admissible in any judicial, administrative1 legislative, or other 

proceeding.". Id. § 632(d). 

Defendants argue that because section 632 does not prohiblt publication ofrecordings 

made in violation of the statute, NAF cannot justify an injunction against defendants based upon 

30 The same is true of defendants "impllcations of formality" argument made with respect to the 
CAs in a footnote. See Oppo. Br. at 27, n.12. 
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an alleged violatiori of that statute. Indeed, C~lifornia courts have held that "Penal Code section 

632 does n~t prohibit the disclosure of information gathered in violation of its term.s." Li'eberman 

v, !(.COP Televts.1.on, Inc., 110 Cal. App. 4th 156,167 (2003); cf Kight v, CashCall, Inc., 200 Cal. . . . 

Ap.p. 4th 1377, 1393 (2011) ("Although a recording preserves the conversation and thus could 

cause greater damage to ·an individuaJ!s privacy in the future, these losses are not protected by . 

section 632,"). 

1n reply, NAF argues that its section 632 ·claim is not being asse:rted· as a b.asis for 

enjoining rel~ase of the reco.rdings already made, but in support of it~ request that defenda11ts b~ · 

enjoined from ''attempting to g~in access to any future NAF meetings in order to tape its members, 

a form ofrelief specifically provided under§ 637.2(b) ("Any person ·may ... bring an· action to 

enjoin and restrain any violation ofthi~ chapter, .and may in the same action seek damages. as 

provided by subdivisi~n (a).' 1
). 

Penal Code section 632, therefore, is not relevant to l-!AF's chances of success on the 

merits, but on)y with respect to the appropriate scope of injunctive relief, discussed below.31 

C. The First·Amendment and Public Policy ~mplications of the Requested Injunction 

· Defendants argue that, assuming NAF demonstrates a likelihciod of success on the breach 

· of contract claim, the EAs and CAs should not be enforced through an inj~nction prohibiting 

defendants froin publishing 'the recordings because that is an unjustified prior restraint and,against . ' 

public policy. 'NAP counters that even if First Amendment issues are raised by the injunction it 
' . 

. seeks, any right to speech implicated by publishing the NAF recordings has beeri waived by 

defendants knowing agreement to the EAs and CAs. 

NAF relies primai:ily on a line of. cases holding that where parties to a contract agre.e to 

restrictions on speech, those restrictions ar~ generally upheld. For example, in Leonard v. Clark, 

the Ninth Circuit addressed a u~ion and union m~mbers' challenge to a Collective Bargai~ing 

31 Both sides spend much time arguing whether section 632 prohibits recording panel · · 
presentations as opposed to conversations between individuals, because section 632' s· protections 
only extend to information as to which the ·speaker has 1;1. "reasonable expectation" of privacy. I 
need not reach these arguments as NAP no longer asserts section 632 as a ground for its likelihood 
of success on this motion. · · 
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Agreement that arguably restricted their First Amendment rights to petition the government. 12 

F.3d 885, 886 (91h Cir. 1993), as amended (Mar. 8, 199!4). The court, following Supreme Court 

precedent, rec9gnized that "First Amendment rights may be waived upon clear and convinch:ig 

· evidence that the waiver is knowin~, voluntary. and h~te.lli~ent,'• ~nd c,oncluded that in negotiating 

the CBA the union knowingly waived· any First Amendment rights that may have been implicated. 

Id. E1-t 890. 

Othei· cases have likewise found that speech rights can be knowingly waived. ITT Telecom . . . . . 
Prod:.Corp. v. ·Dooley, 214 Cal. App. '3~ 307,317, 3,1:9 (1989) (recognizing, in a case determining 

the scope of Califomia1
~ litigation privilege, that "it is possible to waive even First Amendment 

free speech rights by contract."); Pe1·rioone v. 'Perr~oone, 292 Conn. 187, 202 (2009) (Supreme 

Court of Q6nnecticut enforced non-disclosure agreement as knowing .and voluntary waiver of First . 

Amendment'rights and·enjoined ex-wife from "appearing on radio or television" for purpo~es of 

· discussing her former marriage or spouse); Brooks v, Vallejo City Unified Sch Dist.,.No. 2:09-. ' 

CV-1815 MCE JFM, 2009 WL 10441783, at *5 (E.D .. CaL Oct. 30, 2009) (recognizing, in 

denying a third-party's attempt to secure a copy of a public entities' settlem.ent agreement. with 

two· individual plaintiffs,-that individuals "were entitled to b.argain ·fi:wa.y their fi·ee spe~ch rights· by . 

agl·eeing to confidentiality. provisions or other contractual provisions that i·estrict free speech"). . . . 
·. Defendants respond that NAF has not shown that Daleideq knowingly and intelligently · 

waived his First ~mendment rights .by signing the NAP confidentiality agreements, re!sti~g thefr 

9;rgument on Daleiden'~ position that he believed the ?-greemepts were unenforaeab!e and void. 

Daleiden Pi Deel. 1 12 ("l understood that 'no nondisclosl.!re agreement is·valid in the face of 

criminal activity. In the course of my investigative journalism work, I have seen Other 

confidentiality agreements, all of which were fa1: more specific and det~iled in terms of what the 

protected information wa~. I believed the working of the nondiscl~sure portions of.the Exhibit 

Agreement was too .broad, vague, and oontradict~ry to be enfo~ced."). However, even if Daleiden 
. . 

hones~ly believed he had defenses to the enforcement of the confidentiality agreements, there is no 

argument - and no case law cited - that his signature on them and his agreement to them was not 
. . 

"knowing and voluntary." Dalelden and his associates ohose to attend the NAP Annual Meetings 
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and voluntarily and knowingly'signed the EAs and CAs. 

Daleiden's argument would vitiate the enforceability of confidentiality agreements based 

on an individual Is correct or· mistaken belief as to the enforceability of those agreements. It is 

contrary to well-established law. See, e.g., Leonard v. Clark, 12 F.3d at 890 CC'The fact that the 

Union informed the City, of its view that Article V was 'unooristitutional, illegal, and 

unenforceable' does not make the Union's e~ecution of the agreement any less voluntary."); see 

also Griffin v. Payne, 133 Cal. App. 363, 37,3 (Cal. Ct. App. 1933) ("A secret intent to violate the 

law, concealed in the mind of one pa1ty to an otherwise legal con~ract, cannot enable such party to 

avoid the cont~act and escape his liability under its terms."). 

Defendants contend that the public policy at issue , allowing free speech on issues of 

significant public importance - weighs against finding a waiver and/or enforcing the 

confidentiality agreements .. The Ninth. Circuit has recognized that courts should balance the. 

competing public interests in determining whether to enforce confidentiality agr~ements that 

restrict First Amendinent rights. Leonard, 12 F.3d at 890 ("even if a party is found to have validly 

waived a constitutional right, we will not enforce the waiver 'if the interest in its enforcement is 

outweighed in the circumstances by a public policy harmed by enforcement of the agreem~nt.'.") 

(quoting Dr:ivies v. Grossmont Union High Sch. Dist., 930 F.2d 1390, 1394 (9th Cir.1991)); see 

also ;perricone.v. Perr~con~, 292 Conn. 187, 221-22 (in weighing the public interests as to whether 

to enforce the agreement,. the court observed: "The agreement does not prohil?it the disclosure of 

information concerning the enforcement of laws protecting imp·ortant tights, criminal behavior, the 

public health and safety or matters of great public importance, and the plaintiff is not a public 

official/1
). 

On the record before me, balancing the significant interests as stake oh both sides supports 

enforcement of the confidentiality agreements at this juncture. As the Supreme Cou1t recognized 

in Cohen v. Cowles Media Co., 501 U.S. 663, 672 (1991); "the First Amendment does not confer 

on the press a constitutional right to disregard promises that would otherwise be enforced under 

state law." Id. at 672. "' [T]he publisher of a newspaper has no special immunity from the 

application of general laws. He ha~ no special privilege to invade the rights and liberties of 
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others."' Id. at 7670 (quotingAssociatedPressv. N!,RB. 301 U.S.103 (193'7)); see also 

Dietemann v. Time, Inc., 449 F.2d 245,249 (9th Cir. 1971) ("The First Amendment is not a 

license to trespass, to steal, or to intrude by electr0nic means into the precincts.of anoth~r's home 
I 

or office. It does .not become such a.license simply because the person subjected to the intrus,Jon is 

reasonably su·spected of committing a crime."). That defendants intended to infiltrate the NAP 

Annual Meetings in order to uncover evidence of alleged criminal wrongdoing that would "trigger 

criminal prosecution and civil litigation against Plimned Parenthood and to precipitate pro-life 

political and cultural ramifications when the revelations become public," does not give defendants. 

an automatic license to disregard the confide.nti!l,lity provisions. PL Ex. 26. 

Def~ndants passionately contend that public policy is on their side (and the.side ofpubiio · 

disclosure) because the recordings show criminal wrongdoing by a~ortion providers - a matter 
. . 

that is indisputably of significant public interest. Cf. ]!ernardo v. Planned Parenthood Fed 'n of 

Am., 115 Cal. App. 4th 322, 358'(2004) (approving judicial notice "of the f~ct that abortion is one 

of the most controversial political issues in our nation.''.).32 I have reviewed the recordings relied 

. on by defendants and find no evidence of criminal wrongdoing. ~tthe ve,ry most, some oftne 

individuals expressed an ·interest in exploring a relationship with defendants' fake company in 

response to defendants entreaties of h,ow "profitable" it can be and how tissue donation can assist 

in furthering research. There are no express agreements to profit from the sale of fetal tissue or to 

change the timing of abortions to a:llow for tissue procurement.33 

32 Defendants a~k for leave to supplement the record to include the January 20, 2016 Order 'in the 
StemExpress LLC, Inc. v. Center for Medical Progress case pending in Los Angeles Superior 
Court. Dkt. No,. 352. Defendants ask me to take notice that the Superior Court found defendants' 

. Project video regarding StemExpress was "constitutionally protected activity in co1111eotio11 with a 
~natter of public interest'' under California's anti~SLAPP statute. That motion is GRANTED. 
3 The first piece of evidence that defendants repeatedly point to show "illegality" is an 

advertisement by SternExpress that was in both of the NAF 2014 and 2015 Meeting brochures,' 
That ad states that clinics can "advance biomedical research,» that partnering with StemExpress 
can be "Financially Profitable*Easy to Implement Plug-In Solution*Safeguards You and Your 
Donors" and that the npartner program" "fiscally rewards clinics." See Dkt. ~o. 270~1 at p. 3 of 
10. However, the.ad ex.plains that StemExpress is a company that provides human tissue products 
"ranging from fetal to adult tissues and healthy to diseased samples" to many of the leading· . 
research institutions in the world. Id. The ad, therefore, is a general one and not one aimed solely 
at providers of fetal tissue. The ad does not demonstrate that StemExpress was engaged in iliegal 
conduct of paying clinics at a profit for fetal tissue. 
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I also find it significant that while defendant~· repeatedly assert that their primary interest 

in infiltrating NAF was to uncover evidence of criminal wrongdoing, and that the NAF recordings 

show.such wrongdoing, defendants did not provide any of the ~AF recordings to law enforcement 

following the 2014 Annual Meeting. Nor did defendants provide any of the NAP recordings ~o 

law enforcement immediately following the 2015. Annual Meetings. Instead, defend~nts decided it_ 

was more impor,tant to "curate"· and release the Project videos starting in July 2015. Sworn . 

testimony from Daleiden establishes th.at the only disclosure of NAP materials he· made to law . . 
enforcement offJcers was: (i) providing a StemExpress advertisement from the NAP 2014 Annual 

Meeting program to law enforcement in El Dorado County, California in May 2015; and, 

providing (ii) "short clips'1 of video to law enforcement in Texas ~n June·or July 2015. Daleiden 

· PI DecL f 24. If the NAF recordings truly demonstrated c~iminal conduct-the alleged goal of the 

· undercover operatfon -then CMP would have· immediately turned thetn over to law. enforcement.· 

· They did not. . 
· Perhaps realizing that the recordings do not ~h9w criminal wrongdqing, defendants ~hift 

and assert that there is a p4blic interest in the recordings ~hawing "a remarkable de-sensitization in 

the attitudes of industry participants." Oppo. Br. at 14. As part of that shift, defendants' 

opposition brief highlights portions of the reco~dings where ab01tion providers comment candidly 

about how emotion~lly and professionally difficult their work can be. Oppo. Br. at 14-15. I have 

reviewed defeiidE!,nts' transcripts of these portions of the record!ngs. Some comments can be 
c~aracterized as callous and some may showla "de-sensitization," as defendants describe it. They 

can also be described as frank and uttered in the context of providers mutually recognizing the 

difficulties they face in performing their work. However they are characterized, there issome 

public interest in these comments, But unlike defendants'-purpo1ied.uncovering of crip~inal 

activity, this so1t of information is already fully part of the public debate over abortion.· Oppo. Br. 

at 49.:50 (citing Gonzales v. Carhart, 550 U .. S. 124, 158 (2007); Stenbergv. Carhart, 530 U.S. 
. . ' . ' ' 

914, 962 (2000)); see also VALUE OF HUMAN LIFE, 162 Cong Rec S 162, 163 (January 21, 

2016); PROVIDING FOR CONSIDERATION OF H.R. 1941, FEDE~L AGRlCULTURE 

REFORM AND RISK MANAGEMENT ACT'OF 2013, 159 Cong Rec H 3708, 3709 (June 8, 
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2013 testimol}.y on the PAJN-CAPABLE UNBORN CHILD PROTECTION ACT). The public 

interest in additional information on this issue cannot, standing alone, outweigh the competing 

interests ofNAF and its members' expectations of privacy, their ability to perform their 

professions, and their personal security. · 

It is also this very information that could- if released and taken out of the context that it 

was shared in by NAP members -·result in the sort of disparagement, intimidation, and harassment 

of which NAF members who were recorded during the Annual Meetings are afrai~. Dunn Deel. 1 

10; Reeves Deel. 117. In sum, the public interest in these comments is certainly relevant, but 

does not weigh heavily against the enforcement of the NAF confidentiality ·agreements. . 

On the other side, public policy also supports NAF's position: NAF has submitted 

extensive evidence that in order to fulfill its .missi.on and allow qandid discussions of the 
' . 

challenges its m~mbers face- both professional and personal'- confidentiality agreements for. 

NAF Meeting attendees are absolu'tely necessary. Dunn,Decl. t,r 5~6; Reeves Deel. ,r 7; Saporta 

Deel.1111, 13-16; Mellor Peel. 117', 10-14. Release of the recor.dings procured by fraud and . . ' 

taken in violation ofNAF's stringent confidentiality agl'eements, which di~close the identities of 

NAF members and compromise steps NAP members take to protect their privacy and professional 

interests, is also contrary to California's recognition of the dangers faced by providers of abortion, 

as well as California's efforts to keep information regarding the same shielded from public 
' . 

disclosure and protect them from threats and harassment .. See Cal. Govt. Code § 62I5(a) ("(a) 

Persons working in the reproductive health care field, specifically the provisfon of terminating a · 

pregnancy, are oft~n subject to harassment, threats, and acts of violence by person; or groups.''); 

'Cal. Civ. Code § 3427 et seq. ( creating cause of action t~ deter interfei·ence with· access to clinics 

and health care); Cal. Govt. Code§ 6218 ("Prohibition on soliciting; selling, trading, or posting on . 

Internet private information of those involved with reproductive health services';); Cal. Govt. Code 

§ 6254.28; Cal. Penal Code § 423 ("California Freedom of Access to Clinic and Church Entrances 

Act."). As noted above, since defendants' release of the Project videos (as well as the leak of a 

portion of the NAP recordings), harassment, threats, and violent .acts taken against NAF members 

and facilities have increased dramatically. It is not speculative to expect that harassment1 threats, 
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and violent acts will continue to rise if defendants were to release NAF materials in a similar way. 

Wei~hing the public policy interests on the record before me, enforcement of the confidentiality 

agree~ents agai~st defendants is not contrary to publ!c policy. 

That said, public policy may w.ell support the release of a small subset of records - those · 

that defendants believe show ?riminal wrongdoing-·to law enforcement agencies,34 Dvfendants. 

rely on a line of cases when{courts have refused to enforce, or excused compliance with, 

otherwise applicable confidentiality agreements for the limited purpose of allowing cooperation 

with a specified Jaw enforcement investigati'on. See,.e.g., Alderson v. United States, 718 F. Supp. 

2d ,1186, 1200 (C.D. Cal. 2010); In re JDS Uniphase Corp. Sec. Litig., 238 F. Supp. 2d 1127 

(N.D. Cal. 2~02); Lachman v. Sperry-Sun ·Well Surveying Co., 457 F.2d 850,854 (10th Cir. 1972); 

see also United States ex rel. Green v. ljor-tljrop Co1p., .59 F.3d 953, 965 (9th Cir. 1995) (refu~ing 

to enforce a prefiling release of a False Clairns Act claim); Siebel't v.. Gene Sec. Network, Inc, No. . . 
11-CV-01987-JST, 2013 WL 5645309, at *8 (N.D. Cal. Oct. 16, 2013) (declining to enforce a 

nondisclosure agreement with respect to documents relevant to a FCA_. clahn because application 

of the NDA.to those documents would "would frustrate Congress' purpose in enacting the ·False 

Clai'ms Act-namely, the public policy in favor of providing incentives for whistleblowers to 

come forward, file FCA suits, and aid the government in its investigation efforts."); but see . . . 
Cafasso, U.S. ex rel. v. Gen. Dynamics C4 Sys., Inc., 637 F.3d 1047, I 062 n.15 (9th Cir. 2011) . 

· (upholding breach of confidentiality claim, despite plaintiff's atte1~pt to "excuse her condt1ct on 

the grounds that she was in contact with, and providing information to. government investigators," 

in. part because that justification "neither explains nor excuses the overbreadth of h~r seizure .of 

documents."). 35 

J do. not disagree with the analysis· and results in those cases, but note that the posture of 

------.:------ . 
34 As I have said, my review of the recordings· relied on by defendants does not show criminal 
conduct, but I recognize that raw enforcement agencies may want to review the information at 
issue themselves in order to make their own assessment. 
35 Defendants also rely on a related· line of cases holdfng that contracts which expressly prohibit a 
signatory from reporting criminal behavior to law enforcement agencies are void as against public 
policy. See, e.g., Oppo. Br. at 52w55 (citing Fomby-Denson v. Dep 't of the hmy,,247 F.3d.1366, 
1376 (~ed. Cir. 2001); Bowyer v. Burgess, 54 Cal. 2d 97, 98 (1960)). Those cases are inap'posite. 
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this case is differen~. Defendants' purported desire to disclose the NAP rec9rdings to Jaw 
. . 

enforcement does not obviate the confidentiality agreements/or all purposes. At most, defendants 

might have a defense to· a breach of contract claim based on production of°NAF materials to law 

enforcement. However, the question of whether defendants should be excused from complying. 

with NAF's confidentiality agreements in order to provide NAF materials to law enforcement ha~ 

not qeen placed directly at issue. In th.is case, Attorney General amici have appeared (with, leave 

of court) to present their arguments on the scope of the TRO and the requ·ested preliminary · 

injunction.36 They have not directly soLtght relief from the confidentiality agreements, the TRO, 

or the requested preliminary injunction by intervening and moving for declaratory r~lief in this 

Court or by seeking enforcement of their subpoenas.in the courts of their own states. And·· 

.contrary to their assertion, th.e TRO in· place and the P.reliminary Injunction requested do not 

prevent law enforcement officials from investigating defendants~ claims of criminal wrongdoing. 

For example, law enforcement agerioies from the states of Arizona and .J:,ouisiana have instituted 

formal efforts to seo~re the NAF recordings. Under procedures outlined in the Protective Order in 

· this case, NAF and defendants have been and continue to meet and confer with those state 
. . 

authorities about the scope of the subpoenas and defendants' responses.37 

The reco,:d before me demonstrates that defendants· infiltrated the NAF meetings with the 
. . 
· intent to disregard the confidentiality provisions and secretly record part~cipants and presentations 

at those meetings. Defendants also admit that only a small subset of the total material gathered 

implicate any potential cr~minal wrongdoing. Oppo. Br. 'at 10-14. I have reviewed those·. 

transcripts and recordings and find no evidence of actual criminal wrongdoing. That defendants . . 
dld not promptly turn over those l'ecordings to law enforcement likewise belies their claim that 

. . 
36 I have granted the Attorneys General of the states of Alabama, Arizona, Arka,nsas, Michigan, 
Montana, Nebraska, and Oklahoma leave to participate as amici curiae in this matter. Dkt. Nos. 
99~ 100,285. As represented by the office of the Attorney General of Arizona, the ctmiat filed a 
brief an.d argued in court during the hearing on the Motion for a Preliminary Injunction. 
37 There have only been three subpoenas served on CMP for NAF materials; the Congressional 
subpoena that has been complied with, as well as subpoenas from Louisiana;1:md Arizona. 
Negotiations betw~en NAF, CMP, and the states of Louisiana and Arizona are ongoing. While 
NAF and the defendants have repeatedly stipulated to extend the timeframe for NAP to file a 
challenge to the state subpoenas in state court (see Dkt. Nos. 246, 300), those were decisions 
reached by the paf!:ies and not imposed by the Court. . · 
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they uncovered criminal wrongdoing, and instead supports NAF's contention that defendants' goal 

instead is to falsely portray the operations of NAF's members· through continued release of its 

"curated" .videos as part of its strategy to alter the political landscape with respect to abortion and 

the public perception ofNAF's members. 38 I conclude that NAP has shown a strong likelihood of 
. 

success on its breach of contract claims against CMP and Daleiden. Enforcement ofNAF's 

confidentiality provisions for purposes 9f continuing the injunction proljibiting defendants from 

releasing the NAF materials is not against·public policy. 

D. Claims Against Newman 

Defendant Newman argues t~at NAP has failed to show a likelihood of success against 

him because there is no evidence of his role iri the. NAP infiltration and no argument that Newman 

breached any. ofNAF's.agreements. Newman's argument would be more relevant if this Wyre a 

motion for summary judgment. Howe-ver, it is not. The only question is whether NAF has made a 

strong showing of the likeliho.od o~ succ.ess on its CO!],tract claim against CMP and Dalei'den, 

which it has. NAP submitted evidence of Newman's own admissions that lie advised Daleiden on 

how to infiltrate the NAP meetings as part of the Project, which is relevant to the appropriate 

scope of aJ/, injunction. Pl. Ex. 14 (atNAF0004475-76); Pl. Ex.. 16 (at NAF0004493~94). That 

evidence makes clear 1;hat Newman should remain covered by the Preliminary Injunction, even if 

he is no longer serv.ing as a board member of CMP. Dkt. No. 344. . . . . 

II. . IRREPARABLE INJURY 

.To sustain the·request for a preliminary injunction, NAP must demonstrate that 

"irreparable iQjury is likely in the absence of'' the requested injunction" and establish ·a "sufficient 

causal connection" between the irreparable harm NAF seeks to avoid and defendants' intended. 

conduct- release of the NAF 1~aterials. Wtnrer v. Natuntl Res. Def. CouncilJ Inc., 555 U.S. 7, 22 

(2008); Perfect 10, Inc. v. Google, Inc., 653 F.3d 976, 982 (9th Cir. 2011). 

38 In opposing NAF' s request that the Court order Daleiden to turn over the NAP materials to his 
outside counsel, Dalelden's counsel explained that Daleiden needed access to the NAP materials 
be.cause "Mr. Daleiden continues to work on the Human Capital Project, including the work of 
curating available raw investigatlve m~terials for disclosure .to law enforcement and for release of 
videos to the public." Dkt. No. 195. · 
. 35 
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Defendants argue that NAF has not shown that.it will suffer irreparable injury to justify a 

preliminary injunction. However, as d~tailed a~ove, the release of videos as part of defendants' 

Human Capital Project has directly led to a significant increase in harassment, threats, and 

violence directed riot only at the "targets'' of CMP's videos but also at NAF and its members more 

generally. This significant increase in ~arassment and violent acts- including the most recent 

attack in Colorado Springs at the clinic wI?,ere "target" Dr. Ginde is the medical director - has been 

adequately linked to the timing of the release of the Project videos by CMP. Saporta Deol. ~ 19; 

Saporta Dep~. 42;1·10; Pl. Bxs. 92, 93, 96w99.39 If the NAF ma~erials ,;yere publicly released, it is . 

likely that the NAF attendees shown in those recordings would not only face an increase in 

harassment, threats, or i9cidents of violence, but also would have to expend more effort and 

money to implement .additional security measures. ~ee, e.g,. Dunn Deel. ~ 1 O; Reeves Deel.~ 

19. 40 The same is true for NAP itself, which provid~s security assessments and assistance for its 
, ' I . . 

members. Mellor Deel., ,i 15; SaportaDec!. ,r IO. 

Defendants contend that they cannot be held responsible for the threats, harassment, and 

violence caused by "third-parties" in response to the release of the P:r:oject videos, and that 
. ' 

defendants' ability to publish the NAP materials cannot be prevented when defendants have not 

themselves bee.n linked to the threats, harassment, and violence, Opp.o. Br. at 43-44. But they fail 

to contradict NAF's evidentiary showing that a significant increase in these acts followed CMP's 

release of its Project videos. Moreover, a report submitted by NAF of an analysis of many of the 

uhighlight" and ."full,, videos released by,CMP concluded that the "curated" or highlight Project 

videos were "misleading" anc:!,_~uggests that the "fulP' videos defen~ants released along with their 

''.highlights" were also edited. Pl. Ex .. 77. Defendants do not counter. this evidence, othe1: than 

pointing to Daleiden1s assettion tha~ the hi~hlight videos were accompanied by the release of the 

"full" rec0rdings. Given the evidence of defendants' past practices, allowing defendants to use the 

NAP materials in future Project videos would likely lead to the same result - release of misleading 

39 Defendants object to Exhibits 98 anq 99 as inadmissibl~ hearsay, for lack of personal 
~nowledge, lack of authentication, and as irrelevant. Those objections are overruled. 
0 Defendants object to paragraph 19 of Dr. Reeves' declaration as speculative; improper expert 

testimony, and for lack of foundation. Those objections are OVERRULED. 
36 
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"highlight" videos'displosingthe identity and comments ofNAF members and ~eeting attendees, 

resulting in .further harassment and incidents of violence against the individuals shown in those 

recordings. The NAP members and attencjee~ in the recordings have a justifiable expectation that 

release of the materials - in direct contravention of the NAF confidentiality agreements -will 

result not only in harassment and violence but reputational harms as well. See, e.g., Dunn Deel. 11 

9-i0;41 Reeves D~cl. 117. 

Defenda,nts miss the point in their attempt to shift the responsibility to overly zealqus. third­

parties for the actual and likely injury io NAF and its members that would stem from disclosure of 

the NAF materials. If defendants are allowed: to release the NAF materials, NAF and its members 

would suffer immediate harms, including the need to take additional security measures. The · 

"causal connection,, be~een NAF's- and its members' irreparable injury /ffid t?e cqnduct enjoined 

(release ofNAF materials) has been shown on this record.42
. . 

011 the other side of the equation is defendants' claim 9f irreparable injury. They focus on 
' > ' •o I ' 'o o 0 

their First Amendment right to disseminate the information fraudulently obtained at the NAP . ' 

Meetings, and the injury to the pu~lic of being deprived of the NAF recordings.· ·But freedom of 

speech is not absolute, especially where there h?,s' 9een a voluntEJ,ry agre~ment to keep information 
. . 

.confidential. While the disclosure of evidence of criminal activity or,evidence of imminent harm 

'to public health and safety could outweigh enforce~ent ofNAF's confidentiality agreements (as 

discussed above), there is no such evidence·in defendants' r~.cordings. Viewed in a light 11:ost 
. . 

favorable to defendants, what does appear is information that is already in the public domain· that 

defendants characterize as showing a ''de-sensitization" as to the work performed by abortion 

41 Defendants object to paragraph 9 of the Dunn Declaration as Jacking in person·aJ knowledge, 
improper expert testimony, inadmissible hearsay, improper opinion testimony, and under the best 
evidence rule. Those objections are overruled. . · 
42 The sum of defendants' argument and evidence on this point is that they cannot be blamed for 
the "hyp~rbolic comments of anonymous Internet commenters'.' and that "hyperbolic 'death 
threats' on the Internet and through social media heis become an ubiquitous feature of pnllne 
discourse." Oppo. Br. at 44-45. But t~e misleading nature of the Project videos that they have 
produced - reflective of the misleading nature pf defendants1 repeated assel'tions that the 
recordings at issue show significant evidence of criminal wrongdoing- have had tragic 
consequences, including th~ attack in Colorado where the gunman was apparently motivated by 
the CMP's cha1:acterization ofthe sale of''babyparts." 
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1 providers. The balance ofNAF's strong showing of irreparable injury to its members' freedom of 

2 association (to gather at NAP meetings and share their confidences), to its and its members' 

3 security, an~ to its members' abillty. to perform their chosen professions against preventing 

4 (through trial) defendants from disclbsing information that is of public interest but '!"hich is neither 

5 new or unique, tilts strongly in f~vor ofNAF. 

6 III. BALANCE OF EQUITIES 

7 Similar to the discussior of competing claims of irreparable injury, the balance of equities 

· 8 favors NAF. Defendants will suffer the hardship of being restricted in what evidence they can 

9 release to the public in support of their ongoing ~uman Capital Project, at least thro:ugh a final 

1 O determination at trial. However, the hardships suffered by NAF and i~s members are far more 

11 immediate, significant, and irreparable. 

ro 12 IV;· PUBLIC INTEREST 

i ] · 13 I fully recognize that there is strong public interest on the issue of abortion on both sides o.f u, .... 
, .~: 14 .i:i ~ that debate, and th~t members of the pu~,lic thei·efore have an interest in accessing the NAP 

Ill O 

~ .~ .. 15 materials. I also recognize that this case impinges on defe.ndants' rights to speech and the public's 
E. l'Jl 

$ i:i . 16 equa:lly important .interest in hearing that speech. But this is not a typical freedom of speech 
C/J El J ~ 17 ca~e. 43 Nor is this a typical cinewsgathering" case where comts refuse to impos~ prior restra!nts on 

O ~ 18 speech, leavipg the remedies for any defamatory publication or breach of contract to resolution. 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

26 

27 

28 

. ' 
43 None of the •cprior restraint" ~ases de.fendants rely on address the types of exceptional facts 
established here: (i) enforceable confidentiality agreements, knowingly and·voluntarily entered 
into, in which defendants agreed to the remedy of injunctive relief in.the event of a breach; (ii) 
extensive and repeated fraudulent conduct; (iii) misleading characterizations about the information 
procured by misrepresentation; and (iv) a strong showing of irreparable harm if the confidentiality 
agreements are not enforced pending trial. See 'Oppo. Br. at 32~35. Several of defendants' prior 
restraint cases expressly left open the possibiJ.ity of limits 011 speech where "private wrongs" and 
"clear evidence of criminal activity" occurred. See, e.g., Org. for a Better Austin v. Keefe, 402 
U.S. 415, 419-20 (1971) (overturned broad injunction prohibiting "peaceful" pamphleteering 
across a city where injunction was not.necessary to redi:ess a "private wrong"); CBS, Inc. v. Davis, 
510 U.S. 13 I 5, 1318 (1994) (emergency stay overturning prior restraint where damage to meat 
packing company was readily remedied by post-publication damages action and '1the record as . 
developed thus far contains no clear evidence of criminal activity on the part of CBS, and :the court 
below found none."); see also Bartnicki v. Voppel', 532 U.S. 514, 529-30 (2001) (striking down 
wiretap statutes to extent they penalized the publishing of secretly recorded phone conversations 
by reporters who played no role in the illegal interception; rejecting proposition that «speech by· a 
law-abiding possessor of information can be suppressed in order to deter conduct by a·non-law­
abiding third party."). 
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post-publication. See, e.g., C1!S, Inc. v. Davis, 510 U.S. 1315, 1318 (1994); see also Pion'totions; 

Ltd v. Conrad, 420 U.S. 546,559 (1975). , 

Instead, this is an exceptional case where the extraordina:ry circumstances and evidence to 

· date shows that the public interest weighs in favor of granting the prel.fminary injunction. 

Weighing against the public's general interest i-n disclosure of the recordings showing the ''de­

sensitization" of abortion providers, is the fact that there is a constitutional right to abortions and 

that NAP members also have the right to associate in privacy .and safety to discuss their profyssion . . ' 

at the NAF Meetings, and need that privacy and safety in ·order to s~fely practice their profession. 
. ' 

On the record before me, NAF has demonstrated the release of the NAP materials will irrepai·ably 

impinge on those rights. 

The conte~t of how defendants came into possession of the NAP materials cannot be 

ignored and directly supports preliminarily pr.~venting the disclosure of these materials, 
' . 

Defenda1;ts engaged in.repeated instances of fraud, including the manufacture of fake documents, 

the creation and registration with the state of California of a fake company, and repeated false. 

.sta,tements to a numerous NAP represe~tatives and NAF members in order to infiltrate ~AF and· 

implement their Human Capital Project. The products of that Project- achieved in large part from 

the infiltration -thus far have not been pieces of journalistic integrity, but misleadingly edited · 

videos and unfounded assertions (at least with respect to the NAF materials) of criminal 

misconduct. Defendants did not- as Daleiden repeatedly asserts - use widely accepted 

investigatory journalism techniques. Defendants provide no evidence to support that assertion and 

no cases on point.44 

44 Defendants rely on cases where rep01ters misrepresented themselves in the course of undercover 
investigations, but those cases do not show the level ·of fraud and misrepresentation defendants 
engaged in here. For·example, in Med, Lab. Mgmt. Consultants v. ABC, 306 F.3d 806,812 (9th 
Cir. 2002), reporters ·posed as employe~s of fictitious labs, in order to investigate whether an 
existing lab was violating federal regulations and misreading pap smear tests. There is no . 
evidence that the reporters in the Med. Lab. case did anything other.than verbally misrepresent 
themselves to the lab owner; the reporters did not create fictitious documents, register a fictitious 
company, or intentionally agree to confidentiality agreements before making their imdercover 
recordings. Id. at 814 n.4 (noting the plaintiffs failed to obtain confidentiality agreements from 
defendants). It is also important to note that while the Ninth Circuit affirmed the district court's 
order granting summal'y judgment to defendants on plaintiffs' intrusion on seclusion, trespass, and 
to1tious interference claims under Arizona law, the district court denied in pa1t defendants' motion 

39 . 
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V. SCOPE OF INJUNCTION 

A. Coverage of Third Party Law Enforcement Entities and Governmental Officials 

Defendants and the Attorney Generals of the states of Alabama, Arizona, Arkansas, 

Michigan, Montana, Nebraska, and Oklahoma'.(AG Amiot) argue that any continuing injunction on . . 
the release of the NAF materials should not run to third-party law enforcement entities or 

government of~cials because NAF has not shown that disclosure of the NAF materials to Jaw 

enforcement entities or government officials will result in irreparable harm and the public interest 

strongly favors governments.being free. to exercise their investigatory powers. See AG Amici 

Brief (Dkt. No. 285). 

The Protective Order and the injunction in this case do n'ot hinder the ability of states ·or 

other governmental ·entities from conducting investigations. Nor do they bar defendants from 
. . . 

· disclosing materials in response to subpoenas. from law enforcement or other government.entities. 

Instead; those orders simply i~pose a notice requirement on defendants; re.quiring them to notify 

NAP prior. to ·def~ndants' production of the NA~ materials so tl).at NAF may (if necessary) 

challenge the subpoenas in the state court at issue. Contrary to the A'G Amici position, these 

limited procedures do not purport to bind the states .or prevent them from conducting 

investigations or seeking relief i~ their own courts. The Protective Ordi::r and i.njunction simply 

create an orderly procedure to allow production of rel~vant ipformation to state Jaw enforcement 

as to plaintiffs' fraud claim. Id. at 812. In J.H. Desnickv. Am. Broad Cos., 44 F.3d 1345, 1348 
(7th Cir. 1995), the reporters posed as patients of an eye center and secretly recorded their eye 
exams. The misrepresentations in that case simply do not rise to the level of the 
misreprese11tations here or the fraudulent lengths defendants went through to secure their 
recordings. Also, in that case, the Court of Appeals. remanded the defamation claim for further 
proceedings, and affirmed the dismissal of the trespass, privacy, wil'etapping, and fraud claims 
based on an analysis of the facts under the state and.federal laws at.issue. The district court.did 
not dismiss the breach of contract claim. Id. at 1354. FinaHy, defendants' citation to Anin:ial · 
Legal Def. Fundv. Otter, No. l:14-CV-00104-BLW, 2015 WL 4623943 (D. Idaho Aug, 3, 2015), 
for the proposition that using deceptive tactics to conduct an undercover investigation "is not · 
'.fraud' and is fully protected by the First Amendment," is not suppoited. In that case, the district 

· court struck down a ste,te law that criminalized the use of cimisrepresentation" to gain access to and 
record operations in an agricultural facility. In striking down the law as a content-based regulation 
of protected speech which failed strict scrutiny, the court noted that the law did not "limit its 
misrepresentation prohibition to false speech amounting to actionable fraud/1 and any harm from 
the speech at issue would not be compensable as "harm for fraud or defamation" because the harm 
did not stem from the misrepresentation made to access the facility. Id. at * 5-6. That case did not 
hold that undercover operations could not result in actionable fraud, breach. of contract, or libel. 
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or other governmental entities. As far as I am aware, that procedure has :worked well and · 

negotiations are ongoing betwecm NAF, defendants, and the two states that have issued subpoenas 

to CMP, Arizona and Louisiana.45 

B. Expansion of Injunctive Relief 

NAF also se~ks.to expand the injunctive relief to prevent defendants and those acting in 
. . 

,concert with them from publishing or disclosing "any video, ·audio, photographic, or other 

recordings taken of members or attendees Defendants first made contact with at NAF meetings" 

and "enjoin the defendants from attempting to gain access to any future NAP meetings." lyfotion 

at ii 2. 

On this recordi NAF has not demonstrated that an expansion of the injunction is warranted. 

NAF does not identify (under seal or otherwise) the NAP members or attendees whom it believes 

have been recorded and whom defendants "first made contact with" at a·NAF Annual Meeting. A 
', 

request for injunctive relief must be spe'cific and reasonably detailed, but NAF's request would 

import ambiguity into the scope ·of the injunction .. Absent a more specific showing supported by 

evidence, I will not expand the preliminary injunction to. ban CMP from·releasing unspecified 

recordings of unspecified NAF members or attendees defendants "first made contact with'l at the . . . .. . 
NAF Meetings. 

Similarly, NAF has not shown that an "open-ended" expansion oftJie injunction to prohibit 

the udefendants from attempting to g~in access to any future NAF meetings," is necessary. 

Defendants and their agents are now well known to NAP and· its members and absent evidence 

· that defendants intend to contin_ue to attempt to infiltrate NAF meetings, there is no need tp extend 

.the preliminary injunction .. at this juncture. 

45 Similarly defendants appropriately notified the Court that CMP was subpoenaed to testify in 
front of a grand jury, and explained tha't if Daleiden was called upon to disclose information he 
learned at the NAF Annual Meetings in responding to the grand jury's questions, Daleiden 
intended to do so absent further order from this Court. Dkt. No. 323-5. This Cotnt did nothing to. 
prevent Daleiden from testifying fully in front of that grand jury. 
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CONCLUSION 

Considering the evid~nce before me, and finding that NAF has made a strong showing on 

all relevant points, I GRANT the motion for a preliminary injunction. Pending a final judgment, 

defendants and those individuals who gained access to NAF's 2014 and 2015 Annual Meet/ngs 

using aliases and acting with defendant CMP (including but'not limited to the following 

individuals/aliases: Susan Tennenbaum, Brianna Allen, Rebecca Wagner, Adrian Lop.ez, and 

Philip Cronin) are restrained and enjoined from: 

(1) publishing or otherwise disclosing to .any third P.arty any video, audio, photographic, or · 

other recordings taken, or any confidential information learned, at any NAF annual meetings; . 

(2) publishing or otherwise disclosing to any third party the dates or locations of any future 

NAF meetings; and 

(3) publishing or otherwise disclosing to any third party the names or addresses of any 

NAP members learned at any NAP annual meetings. 

IT IS SO ORDERED . 

Dated: February 5, 2016 ~. IA I""'\ /) ··~··"··~ ~AMR.ORRICK ... 
United States District .Judge 
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'-'EXHIBIT A-2 

2 

·3 

4 

5 

6 

EXPERT/CONSULTANT ACKNOWLEDGMENT OF CONFIDENTIALITY AND 
. AGREEMENT TO BE BOUND BY PROTECTIVE ORDER 

I,--------------' declare: 
I reside at _____________ _ 1. 

2. I have read the Stipulation and Protective Order ("Order,,) in National Abortion 

7 Federation v. Cent~rfor Medical Progress et al., Gase No. 3:15-cv-3522-WHO, pending in the 

8 Northern District of California. 

9 3. I am familiar with the contents of the Order and agree to comply and be bound by 

Io the pro:visions, thereof, 

11 4 I will not divulge to persons other than those specifically authorized by the Order, 

12 and will not copy or use except solely for the purposes of this litigation and only as expressly 

13 permitted .by the terms of the Order, anY, Confidential or Highly Confidential Information 

14 obtained pursuant to the·Order. 

15 5. By signing below, 1 hereby agree to submit to the jurisdiction of the ·United States 

16 District ~ourt for the Northern District· of California for resolving any and all. disputes regarding 

17 the ,Order and this Acknowledgment of Confidentiality. · I further agree that any and all disputes 

18 regarding the Order and this Acknowledgment of Confidentiality shall be governed by the Jaws of 

19 ·the State of California, and that the district court for the Northern Distri~t of California shall be 

20 the sole and exclusive v~ue for resolving any .disputes arising ~ro1n the Order and this 

21 Acknowledgment of Confidentiality. · 

22 I declare under penalty 0f perjury ·under the laws of the State of California that the 

23 foregoing is true and correct. 

24 

25 

26 

27 

28 

Executed on at at ------- -----------

Name: 

Address: 

STIPULATED PROTECTIVE ORDER FOR EXPEDITED DISCOVERY 
CASE NO. 3:15-cv-3522-WHO . · 
sf-3563261 
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Sue Feldmann 

From: 
Sent: 
To: 
Subject: 

Heather Saunders Estes, Planned Parenthood Northern California <lnfo@ppnorcal.org> 
Friday, April 291 2016 9:00 AM 
AttorneyGeneral 
Kamala, What Will Inspire You? 

Above: U.S. Senator Barbara Boxer, Acts of Courage 2016 

SAVE THE DATE 

Acts of Courage 

WHAT WILL INSPIRE YOU? 
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Sue Feldmann 

From: 
Sent: 
To: 
Subject: 

Latanya Mapp Frett, Planned Parenthood Global <pponllne@ppfa.org> 
Wednesday, May 18, 2016 4:59 AM 
AttorneyGeneral 
Our response to the Zlka crisis 
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· s th~· thr~~t ofi1k~ ...... : .. .- ,:-: :·. 
,·. s·preads ·and··c:o·ngre·ss·: .... ; ·: .· 
_:.:_.:coritinueiffo' debate·the·,.:.' 
::· U.S: .. r~sponse/'rnlllion~·\': ..... 
·:. q'f\Nprr1e1 .~t~i. ~~·~b,1.e ·~p.: <~' 

.:· a.ccess acteqLJatEf$eXual ;:,,: 
,;.,'~nd ~eprqdu'ctiva tj~c;\l~h:'. '( 

, : c~r~-}; /\ · : A/it'. t,;{ ··. · 
.-'.:,· Make.'a gift to.Planned:;:··· .. 
').': Parenthoocl 'G.lobal·: :t./:!:. i .. 

:::: .. 'nd'·h'eiii:en.su·r~· th.ei:-(/ ;,:-;'.: 

s~:~!~:t,%}~rr~~i\1 ~: 
~I ' 

1 
::~ ~•'.,;• '• :':•:'•~j.j i 

Dear Kamala, 

The Zika vlrus, which is transmitted 
by mosquitoes and linked to a 
condition affecting brain 
development in babies, continues . 
to spread throughout Latin America 
and the Caribbean. Yet many 
governments in affected areas 
ha~e only one piece of advice for 
women at risk:. Don't get pregnant. 
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Don't get pregnant- but we won't 
help you access birth control. Don't 
get pregnant- even though 
abortion is illegal. Don't get . 
pregnant- and 'if you do, you're 
on your own. 

With reprqductlve and maternal 
health services so far out of reach, 
millions of women are bearing the 
burden of family planning or:i their 
own shoulders. And it's only 
making t~ls public health ~risls 
worse. 

Planned Parenthood Global, the 
international division of Planned 
Parenthood Federation of America, 
is fighting to change that. You can 
stand up for healthv m?ms 

. pverywhere by making a taxi;: 
deductible gift to help women -
In Latin America. the Caribbean, 
i\',nd all over the world - access 
itte _q,are they des·erve. 

Every country should ensure that . 
its p~ople have·access to a full 
range of reproductive health care, 
including contraceptives and safe 
and legal abortion services·. That's 
especially critical in times of 
emergency - times like now, as 
millions of women who are 
pregnant or may become pregnant 
face the threat of the Zika virus. 

But in areas where governments 
can't- or won't - meet that 
need, Planned Parenthood 
Global and our partners are 
there to help. In countries around 
the globe, we're working with over 
100 local partners to provide over 

., one million women, men, and 
3 
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Sue Feldmann 

From: 
Sent: 
To: 
Subject: 

Planned Parenthood Mar Monte <development@ppmarmonte.org> 
Tuesday, May 03, 2016 1:28 PM 
AttorneyGeneral 
The Big Day of Giving is underway! 

"I first came to.Planned Parenthood when I was 16 for STD~screenfng and birth control. I needed to go 
somewhere 'where·.1 was anonymous, private and safe .:. and wtiere people would really take. care of me. I to· 
that place." 

When you donate to Planned Parenthood Mar Monte you are fulfllllng the promi$e to familres In our coml'.11un 
that there Is a safe place to go. You are opening the doors for the more than 8,000 patient visits that will ha 
In our health centers just this week alone. 

That's why it's so Important that you give your gift now. Without your support, vltal health care services wo1 
be available for tens of thousands of people who need It. Still not sure you're making a difference? Learn wh 
your gift can help ai::hieve in only one week. · • 
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Sue Feldmann 

From: 
Sent: 
To: 
Subject: 

Planned Parenthood Mar Monte <development@p.pmarmonte.org> 
Tuesday, May 03, 2016 12:01 AM 
AttorneyGerieral 
The Big Day of Giving Is herel 

''After a flnanclally debffltat/ng divorce, I walked through your doors. My birth control pre~crlptlon had run ol 
and I no longer had Insurance. Kindness and understanding greeted me, and I was grateful. Thank you so rr 
for being avalfable to women In need." 

When you donate today, you'll be part of more stories like this one. You'll .ensure that over 200,000 peqple i 
communities wlll get the h~lp they need. You'll guarantee that our patients - including 74% who live Gin less 
$12,000 a year - do.n't have to live without health care. . , 

your gift wlll help transform thousands of lives every week. Your generosity makes possible the services 
hlnhllnhti:,rl in thlc:i' nni= mln11t"' \llrl"'n 
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Sue Feldmann 

From: 
Sent: 
To: 
Subject: 

Planned Parenthood Mar Monte <development@ppmarmonte.org> 
Wednesday, April 27, 2016 4:40 PM . 
AttorneyGeneral 
The Big DOG is One Week Away! 

Your Inspiring generosity during last year's Big Day of Giving event - a day when communities come togethE 
support local non-profits and charities - raised enough for Planned Parenthood Mar Monte to provide 275 
pregnancy tests, 165 lmmunizatic;ms and 91 emergency contraceptive visits for our neighbors who can find t 
quality care nowhere else.· 

That's why we're reach.Ing out today'to remind you to join us next week, Tuesday, May 31 for the Big Dax< 
§bl!.!19. 2016. 

Without your support, health. care services and education programs for thousands of families In mld-Callforn 
and northern Nevada would be·ellmlriated every year. 

We're anticipating a day of buzz and feel-good giving on May 3! We're ex'clted to share with you the many w· 
your .support helps keep families safe and healthy. · 
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Sue Feldmann 

From: 
Sent: 
To: 
Subject: 

Dear Kamala, 

Planned Parenthood Mar Monte <development@ppmarmonte.org> 
Wednesday, May 04, 2016, 1:?1 PM 
AttorneyGeneral 
The Big Day of Giving has been extended! 

Thank you for your interest in donating to Planned Parenthood Mar Monte through The ·s1g Day of Giving. DL 
technical difficulties, The Big Day of Giving has been extended until 3:00 p.m. today, Wednesday, M~y 4. 

If you ha,ven't given your glf~, but would like to, please click here. We appreciate your patience i;md generos 

Sincerely, 

Planned Parenthood 
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Sue Feldmann 

From: 
Sent: 
To: 
Subject: 

Planned Parenthood Advocates Mar Monte <publicaffairs@ppadvocatesmm.org> 
Monday, May 23, 2016 9:58 AM. · 
AttorneyGeneral 
Take action for #PP!=apito1Dayl 

Dear Kamala, 

Today Is our annual #PPCaptto!Day, when we throng the State 
~apltol to advocate for our priority legislation In 20161 We're 
working on Important bills that Increase access to birth control, 
improve telehealth care and .protect privacy. Do you have a 
moment to stand with us In support of this legislation? Click here 
fo take action now! 

Right now· more than 450 grassroots activists and 'Planned 
Parenthood Mar Monte staff are in Sacramento, urging leaders to 
support significant policies that ·wm Improve California's laws. This 
is a day to e·ngage anc;I educate supporters to spur change! ,Even If 
you can't join us In ·Sacramento you can support these effgrts · 
by taking ,ction vlrtyall'l to let legislators know you 
support these bills. · 

On social media? Track tPPCapitolDay on Twitter throughout the 
day to keep up with the latest news and see photos of the 
actiVlties in Sacramento. 

Finally, did you know that·May 23 is the :voter registration 
deadline for the June primary election? Are you registered? 
Have you moved recently end need to re~reglster? It's fast and 
easy to register onllne so you're ready to vote on JunEl! 7. 
Register oow! · 
Thanks for all you do, 

The Planned Parenthood Mar Monte Public Affairs Team 
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Sue Feldmann 

From: 

Sent: 
To: 
Subject: 

I 
! 

Heather Saunders Estes, CEO, Planned Parenthood Northern California 
< pride@ppnorcal.org > 
Thursday, May 12, 2016 8:04 AM 
AttorneyGeneral · . 
March with Planned Parenthood In the SF Pride Parade,. 

Mark your calendars! Join Planned Parenthood Northern California at 
the San·Franclsco Pride Parade on Sunday, June 26th, Earl~ 
registration Is now open to our .§!Jperstar supporters. Kamala, 
that means you! ' 
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Sue FelcJmann 

From: 
Sent: 
To: 
Subject: 

Linda Williams <development@ppmarmonte.org> 
Wednes_day, May 25, 2016 7:33 PM 
AttorneyGeneral 
Statement from Linda Williams on Today's Arson Attack 

Dear Kamala, · 

You may have already-heard about the arson attack at our 
Modesto health' center rn the very · 
early hours of this morning, May 25. I 
want to fill you In on what we know at this 
time: 

1) Though, thankfully, no one was hurt 
and there appear;:; to be no structural , 
damage to the building, there was enough 
damage - including to computers and tlie 
lobby (shown here) - to force us to close 

· the health center for at least one week. 

2) The fire was reported shortly before. 4 
a.m;, and fire Investigators at the scene 
found that someone had apparently 
thrown a gas can through one of the glass 
doors and ignited it. The fire damage was 
contained to the Immediate area, and, as oft~n happens during 
this type of Incident, the rest of the damage appears to be caused 
by the sprinkler system. · · · 

3) The Incident is being investigated as arson. 

4) When the Insurance adjuster Inspects the building we will have 
a clearer Idea about the extent of the damage and what wlll be 
needed to restore it. 

This Incident is only the latest attack on Planned Parenthood 
health centers across the country as threats and attacks against 

· ·our services, staff and sites have escalated nlneMfold over the past 
year. These assaults are the result of a well-orchestrated smear 
campaign by anti-reproductive rights zealots that has spread to 
Congress and the violent fringe, resulting In four arson attacks 
within three months at our health centers around the country, The 
attack In Modesto makes It five. · 

I want to assure you that we will not be intimidated by extremists 
who try to shut.down our services. Because of yo4r ste.adfast and 
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communities that rely on us. 

With Gratitude,· 

~.· 

Linda Williams 
President and CEO 
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' CA.fo!OJ...c.. JOPflf., PhD 

Joffe' is ,a professor In the Adv.ancin-g 
New Standards in Repr.C'ductlve Health 
(ANSIRH) program :in the department of: 
obstetrics,· gynecology,,an d reproductive 
sciences · at UC San Fra·nclsco's Bixby 
.Center ·fo~ Glob.al Reproductive Health, ' 
and 8 p.ro'fessor emerita of S'OCiology at 

UC Davis. She has spent .a career studying reproductlv,e rights 
and politics and is an exp,ert on the history of abortion in the U.S. 
A ,defender of reproductive rights ,end an advocate for abortion 
providers, sh~ stre:sse·s the need :to end thair marginalrzation 
from the mainstream ,m.edi,cal ,.com.1;111:mity. Wrii:ing for both 
academl,o.a,udle·nces and the gene.ral pillblic, Joffe has published 
several b>ooks, ln~Judlng Do.ctors of Co.nscien,r;e: The Struggle :to 
Provide Abortion BefrmundAf.te.r Roe 'ii.' W:ade; an'd Dispatches 
from the Abo.rtlon Wars: The CQsts of Fa.natlclsm to Do.ctQr.s, 
P.atlents ana the ,Re~t of Us.' She ts a Pe:9ular .co·r.itr.lbutGr to the 
Los Angeles Times,-t~e Washingto.r.i Post, The New ,York 'Tfmes, RH 
Reality Ch.e:ck, Huffi.ngtcm 'Pi:rst,.Slate., and othe.rs. 

The r,e·cipfi=-~t of n.urnerous ~wards,, sf).e recelv.ed the 201.5 David 
G.u.nn Lifetime Achle11er.r:1E1'nt Award fro.'m the Abc,rtl.on .·C.are 
Ne:twotk, g'lvem In memory of.Dr, David Gufto, the f.lrst a·bo·rtlon• · 
providl·ns ,physk:ian tci ·.b.e murdered in ~h.e U.·S'., to a p.erson 
whose work in suppor:t ofab.or,tion c.are hfilS be:er.i exe:mplary. Sh.a 

· rec.el~ed her-'Phl:> ·In so.ciole>.gy frc,m UC BerJQeley . 

... -------·-------·-·----·--- .. : 
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Dr.' Willie J. Parker is ·a board-certified 
OB-GYN, women's health advocate, and 
,abortion provider ·w~ose c;Je.drcatlon to 
reprQductlve justice led him to relocate 
from ChicE1.901 .Illinois to his hometown 
qf Birmlrng·ham, Alabama. There, he 

can ens.ure the women in Alabama and 

neighboring states continue to get :the reproductive aar.e they 
need, despite an unpr.ecedented 0nslaught,of new res'l;rictions on 
i3bortion provider~, which '11as for.oed many clinics to close. He is· 

the physician plaintlff ln a federal lawst1itto ke~p Mississippi's last 
r.emainl.ng abortion clit:1ic op.en, a case pending before tl:re U.S. 
'Supreme Co.urt. His .unflinching dedication •to serving l0w-income 
women and· women :i;f .Go!o.r has been the focus ·o'f numerous 
print and ,Ol'lli'ne ar.ticles. 'He is also feat.ured In Trappec/, a ·new 

docur.r.ier.itary about th.a .er.osl.c>n of re~roductiye rights in ·the U.S. 

Dr. P.ar.ker holds cle,grees frorn :the UA·i1ter~lt~ .. of l.owa Co.11.ege 
of Medicine, Har11a~d 'School of Public Health, the Unlver-!ll'ty of 

'Cincinna:ti, and th.a 'U~Jver.slty sf Mlchigai:i, 

'~--~·------,-~------
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1:>l~EC1"101',!:, TO THE' HIL'r,tlN li»O.N Ot~GO &MYf"l:/.061r'l' 

One Park Blvd., San Diego, CA 92101 

t:>P.l'l,/ll~G s.om·~ 01\l H'1'1rYlRS1.tl'.f'iU, 

Take Front St./Givlc Center exit. Stay on Front St. to Harbor.Dr. Turn left 
onto Harl.ior Dr. (Pass' C0nvention Center .Qn right)Tur.n right onto 

Park Blvd. 

. . 
t)~llflf,QG

0

.SO!JT'H ON .STATE nour:11: 163 

Fi.>llow 10.th Ave. to.Market St. Turn·rlght on Market St. :to Front St 
Tur.n left.o·n Fr.or.itS:t. to Harbor Dr. Turn lf;lft onto Harbor Dr. (Pass 
C~nv.ention Center .on r.ight.) Turn 119 ht .onto Park Blval. 

Olilnt:U>.\G il\lt11m•l O:Ni 1111-'Y'!l!t~srAll& .£/ 

Take Ces.ar Chavez: Pkwy. exit. Attraffic:sl;nal turn left onto Cesar 
· Chavez P-kwy::rurn ri_ght onto Harb.or !)r. Turn lert onto .l"-ark Blvd. 

P~J;l~UNG 1N'.FOGM.~TIOI\I 

Valet ser)J'iC!:l ls $15. After turning onto P.ark Bl:vd., go past piarkln.g 
structure entrance :ani:l 'turn l~ft on -Gull St. Drop .off car .a:t-v-afet.station 
Just 1.:tn?er brid.9e. Lo.0k for our'help,ful ,gr1:1eters.-

Self•parkin9 is·$1 O. After-turning onto Park Blvd., take flrs:t left intG · 
:!!he p.arking sitru.cture be:fore ho.tel. 'f.ake parking s-tr.ucture ele¥ator to 
tplr·d-flo·or sky bridge, whi.ch will take yo.u,to front o'f ho±el. Look fer .our 
helpf1,rl gr.eaters. · 

,,, 

. ,· 





M~@.R(l(RY Ofil.itiR 
K. Al'\'clt.ew Aohte~rohen 

Sl!leanna & Mlot.11.tE!J ·FIJaster 
•R0sette'tllal'Clia,& ti.>anieH~lsner, MID 

·RI. .8/ah:ie·Hansi:.m, MD & 
li!r1,1oe 'A. F.lG1bl!llns, M.D . 

'lilolllltla.y ·~rplly Feunaa'ti6r.i 
Ohlisl;y •\"valt<l>A 

P.at WIison & ·rai:eg 'R0Se 

GH».:MP10N•Gf llWl~QE 
·F-li:ta Atklnser:i . 

·Be.VGl"ijl'lt 
Nlar'lsa. & BIii Rastef):er 

Vl$1'0W.R:it' 
.S'G>ialt/Je •& Jci'>M SlllD:ert 

Jaffe Pamlty 
.te111nr ·& WesiM1:t~g& 

tl>a.vlrd,·& Sr,ierry ~lt.ikler 

1$NEl9ASW-@'Pl 
/.>:Fwny.rnllll1S 

.:l.0ar.i ~e~an Bemste:ln. 
Plt:lb.ett:~lan~ti.Br,cl &,.J.ynGla F0r.sl'la 
. .f!ist,'Jit • .f$iw,,~ ,Nell: 'Sar.iMla 

'Rke,.rbJ:raJi:i:ll>ertt,f~··f11ml1Y · 
.f.lalii~S,·(}Ja:f.k,•a"l'Gn'l·,M~d.df~, ·MS 

mr. .Gllfferd & l'.:i!ilrailyn ·Golw.el/ 
ti.my QQJ!tan,'& Gal<I Iii/Ii!/ 
Jask.le & Si;en ·9r(!)sch 

'Phy.Ills E!p,stell'I 
Jwdy ·Felc.lman 
P.atllfne fo$ter 

·K:fmberly A. Goowln 
LynA QQJ:gUz~ & Hon. SeGtt Peters 

MarJ«i>rle A, hltmfim!;'lt-Or:i 
stac;y Jae1:1b.s, c:>.D 
Wnda-& N\~I Katiz 

l'llari !ls Grial'les ·~liffman 
$11lar.o.R & J'G>.sl L.aoovlti 

13af.b.ar.a & Matt.law •L<i>Grliri 
Nate M~Glay & JEiQkle Br.ll!lge 

Slle & ,t..n'l:om Millnk 
· Sar.a Maser 

• !ilet;ll'{!JB & Olndy Olmstear!J . 
Olarloe & SIii P,.eti~111s 

Ar.lene ·& f\GA 'Pr:ater · 
Ors. Qa.vid .& Ca:1:ellina. 'Pt~~II 

Marcie f.l~tlilmaf.l 
·Peter Salvati & 1P.li!l'bil'l Her:lsley 

sf.ieeyt & :attic S:t.,arano 
Kathi~ L Str.awse, p.{qllJ 

far. ·P1alill·~.A'J:1lta .. '!Str,E1t1S& 

Abby &,'Ray Wi;,iiss 
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Planned Parenthood of the Paclflo Southwest 

Please RSVP by Friday, Maroh 25, 2016 

TABLES (table of ten) 

Advisory $i }50 
Patron $2,500 
Benefactor* $5,000 

QTY . TICKETS 

$175 
$~50 
$500 

QTY 
_1__· 

•Honorary Committee: $5,000 minimum oont~butlon. lnoludes II table of 1 Gl, name In tho 
dinner program, and Invitation to private reception held on the same day. 

·I am unable to attend but wish to make a donation of$ ------
Name_-'--------------~~--~ 
Address-------------"-------
City __ --'------ State1ZIP _. -------
Phone Emal! __ __.:. ____ _ 

Please make check payable to Planned Parenthood or PPPSW, 
D Vjsa D MasterCard O American Express D Discover 

AmOllltlD ha o~ · 
Acct.# ~ 
Exp. Date , 

Signature -
. . 

Visit plann"'d.org/d!nnerto purchase tickets or tables onttne. 

For more Information, please call Bi 9.88i .4500 or 
. emeJI events@planned.org. All tickets are held at the door. 

The value·of goods and services Is $1 oo per ticket or $1,000 per table, 

PLEASE LIST GUEST NAMES ON REVERSE. 

I , 
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GUEST NAMES ,/ 
Vegetarian? 

·o -~-:-----~-~ 

---------:--0 

-------:-----D 
_________ o 

--~----:------'--D 
_ _:__ __ ---,.. _ ___.:_~- D 

_ __:_ _____ ~_o 

-----:----------·D 

----:-----~--:--D 
_ _;_ _____ -,---- D 

(,3 Planned . 
. Parenthood 

.Paolffo:5CUlllWGllt 



'THIE COMMUNITY ACTION :FUND ·.oF ·PLA:NNED P.ARENTH0.09 :oF 
ORANGE °JlND"S:AN ·.BERN'A:BDINO .OOUNf.lES PRESENTS 

~: :, ... 

.P.r~iaw: · BA2016-/0 Jll.Dl/ 
Rec'd:./(dlv.S: E/i,3/,t, 

. ,•,, 



Please Join us in celebrating the 25th .anniversary of 
the Community Action Fund of Planned P.a11enthood 

· of Orange and San Bernardino Gounties, 

KEYl\!OlE .SPIEZ\!KE" 
.Ueu:te:nant G.m1,erno.r Gaviri N.E/lwsom 

M1$11RESS PF iGEREMONIES 
Senator·conn1le Leyva (SD .20~ 

HONOREES 
Orange County Woments -Health Pr.dject 

for standirag up for oamprellensive 
sexual health .education .by .advoqating ·for AB 329, 

·the California Healthy Yo~th Act. 

Tricia Nl0:hols 
for leading tl:le esta:blishmen:t of the 

,Com111unit.Y Action Fund ~5 years ag.o. 

. .. ·~.r· .· 



.Protecting Aubllc Health 
and ,Empower.Ing ·O.ommu~lties 

f.RIDAV, MAY .q, 2016 
1 · Hiltoi, Costa Mesa 

:3050 Bristo( Street., Costa Mesa 
.Complimentary self-parking an~·valet is available .. 

Spor:isors1 VIP ,Ctnampagne Reoe~tion: 1'1~QO a.m. 
Lun.cheon Hegistratlon: 1~:30 a.m. 

Luncheon and Program -Begins: 12:00 p.m. 

:for mor.e it:ifo1'.m~tlon., v.isit u~ at ;GommunlfyAeifiooF,1:1od.org. 

ABOUT THE COfi/!M.U,l\!iTY .ACTION fUfqD 
:fhe .Qomrmmj'ty Action 'FL1np is 'the political ,ar.r:n of P.1.ar:med 
Pa:r.enthood of Orange and .San Bernardlrio 'Counti'es. ·1.t .Is an 
li1de.pe.ndertt, nonprofit, :ncmpartlsan organlzati.on -dedicated 

~P prot~cting and expallding lndlvldual 1iights to r:e;pr.oduotiv.e 
choice .and access to family plannln·g. ·The Gor.nmunit¥ Action 
Fund raise~ funds .in s.c1pport of ,progressive candfdates ;1:1,at 
va:lue access to .affordable reproductive health services. smd 

c.ompreh.ensive sexual health ,edµcatio1:1 .. 



COMMUNITY AGTIOT\I f.UND BOA'RD OF DJREGl'Of.!S 

'Mlcf:Jelle Bartlett, Ohair 

Thy Bui 

Jane 6,gly 

Carina Fre:nok-Pantone 

Mikey Herri['lg 

Christina Hernandez 

Dianne Lar.ider.os 

~ynne 'Riddle 

Oha'hira 'S.o·ih 

Jeffrey Van H6oseai· 

Nancy Ruth White· 

t:ltPlanned · 
U.J P.arenthood11 

. . 
Communltv Actl011.Fund of Pla1111Dd Parenthood 
Orangn nod San Born!ltllino·Gnun!lllll . 

·o.011tr.lb.ut1.011s to the ,Community Action Fund ,of Planned .Parenthood 
of Ora!llge ancl San ·Bernardino Co1:111tJ.es a1·e not tar--dedL1oti)ille for 

ft1daral inoom.ra tax purposes beo.ause they fund lobbying and electoral 
work: We .can aooept c.on'tr(butlon.s fro111 lndlvlduals, buslnesse~ ,and 

labor .organizations. One hL111dred percent (100%) of eaot, contrlbutlor1 
,will be deposited fnio our state PAC (ID #1282464) to support state Md 

local -a(ector.al work.and advocacy on ballot ln'ltlatlves. 

' '' 
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SPONSORSHIP .OPPO!ffUNITIES 
All &ponsors and table captains will be recognized in printed and 
digital event materials. To assist with ys:>tir recognition, please 
complete your gift by April .1. For addltlonal lnfonnatlon, please call 
714.633.6373, ,ext. 400 01· email PublicAffafrs@p13osb6.org. 

0 VICTORY SPONSOR $2~1000 
Includes program reoognltlon, 20VIP tickets to.tt,e event, ·and ;o 
hwltatlcms to the VIP:25th Anniversary champsgne 1·eceptlon. 

0 CHAMPION SPONSOR $10,000 
lr.ioludes ,program rec.o.g nition, 10 VIP tickets to the event, and 1.0 
Invitations to the VIP.25th Annlversa!'y champagr.ie reception. 

0 LEADER SPONSOR $5,000 
Includes pr.ogram recognition, ilv.e tiakets i:o the .event, and five 
hwltatlc-ms to the VIP .25th Anniversary champagne rece,ptior:i. 

0 ,AD.VOCATE SP.ONSOR :$2,500 
Includes program recognition, four tloke'ls to -the eve11t, and tiMo· · 
Invitations to the \I.IP .25th.Anniversary :dhampagne reception. 

0 FRIEND.SPO!i1SOR·$1_,000 
Includes pro~ram reoognlth,m, ·two tlo.kets to the .event,. and two 
)1:iviteitions t.o the YIP .2sth..Annlversary .cl:tarnp~ne r-eception. · 

f:;Y'El\lt .. A11'fflMNCE.A'NilGIF1llS . 
O'Yesl I wowld .11!1a to purchase tloket(s) 1otf:Je 25th 

Annlversar,y Celabrettlon at $95 eadl1. 

0 I 01:in'it att.enc!,•but w.lsh·to rnake,.a•mm tax-<!iedLICtable donation oT $. __ _ 

.G .Sign me up !to :l.'J.e a table c.aptalr.il I wa11t to help fill a table' of 1 C:l and · 
be.reco;gnlzed 1n·tt,,e pirogram. Contact Pub:lioAffairs@ppQsb.o.or.g 
or c.a!I 71.4.633.6373, ex,t,·400 for:mo.re Information. 

If you would like t~ pwrobase tlokets or make a gift onllne., you can 
also visit us at·Communi~yActipn'Fund,org today! 

/ 



DONOR INFORMATION 
Name:. ______ , 
Street: ___________________ ,......, __ _ 

City, State:. ______________ Zlp: -----
Phone:_ Emall: __________ _ 

Preferred recognition namei:·--------------

Oco1:1patlon:· __________________ _ 

Employer:• 
,If self-employed, :name ofihe company or foundation:•------

"'l"h)s lnfo1·m11\lon lo required by llilw for r~portlni:, i1urpoees. 

P.AY.MIENT INF.ORMAilON 
"My ,gift of'$ wlll be made by: 
.o Cash or·of;ieok payable to: P.POSBC C:AF PAC ID #i2824B4 
0 Visa .0 MasterCard ·O American Express O Discover . 
Name on car.d: ______ ,--,. _________ ......,_,.. 
OFedltoard #: __________ E,\p.:Date:. ___ _ 

,Signature:--------------------

My reserva'llon lncl1:1des the ·followirrig guests: 
Rlassa indicate /f.requestlng1a vegetarian M, vegan (ve)1 r,rgluten-free (gf) meal 
next to guest name(s). · 
1. :.6. __________ _ 

:2. ·y. -----------~ 
a & 
4. .9. _________ _ 

.5._..,,.:___,;,.,....,..., 10: ___ ~-,...,...-~.,.....--

:Please. list tt-ie nem,es of e.v!)nt.attende(;ls you weuld 1111e·to 1;1lt with. We will 
try ovr l;,est 10 aocemmodate your requ(;lst. 

qfyou woU'ld llk,to,!:lendyc;iurguest l)ar,nes at a lat,rd~e, please call' 
714.633.S.37!3, ext, ·400 or .email P.ublioAffalrs@pposbo.or.g • 

. O.ontrlbu.tfo1,s 1\1> the Qonimunl!y
0

Aotlon ,P.ur.11:I !i?f Planned. Parentho!i)d .o.f 
,Orange and' S.an Betnan:Ul'.lo Countles .are not tax~cleduotlb!e ,for fe![leral 
.Income 1:ax purposes because they fund lobbying and electoral wor.k. 
We can accept a.ontribLltions from Individuals, .businesses .ancl ,lab6r 
organ1za:tlpnii. One ht,incjre:d percent (1.0Q%) of 

1
eaah opntrlbution Wlll be 

de,pqs1te<;I Into our~tat.e PAO (li;:><#1282464) to support state iind looal 
electoral wo1'k and .advocacy on ballot lnltlativ,es. 

..,ei,., .. 
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Site Feldmann 

From: 
Sent: 
To; 
Subject: 

Planned Parenthood Northern California <info.@ppnorcal.org> 
,Saturday, April 16, 20161Q:OO AM 
AttomeyGeneral 
You're Invited ~ Stand Up! with BATS lmprov 

Kamala., You're lrivited! · 
,Come lc1;1,1g'h and r:aise a gla~sl Join the Napa ·va:11.ey Board ·bf 

Advocates for a ,night of,comecly tp telebrate the lire saving work 
·of Planned Parentho·od Nort:her..n Call,fornia. 

Thursday, .May 12, 201'6 

Dinner 5:30.:7':3·0 

Show 7:·oo-s: 15 

After Party 8: 1'5-9 ~30 

:Buy your tickets today!. 
See you at Stand .Up! 

s·ince.rely, 

·1 S1t(toiloJn.1777 
~~. cf,.(Sr 1 b · 



........ 

President and CEO 

2 
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AttorneyGeneral 

From: 
Sent:­
To: . 
Subject: 

Heat.her Saunders Estes, Planned Parenthood Northern Callfornla <lnfo@ppnorcal.org> 
Tuesday, May 03, 2016 4:41 PM 
AttorneyGeneral 
Kamala, Don't Miss Your Chance to Stand Up! Plus, Special Group Pricing! 

1 



,a . 
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. 

. . 

Planned Parenthood Northern ~antari1~a 
presents 

AN. EVENtNG .. -UF· IMP.HOV THEATrt·g· W.lTH 
,,• ' ' • • ' ' I : . 

• • . ,' • ·ll• •'. • . 

. :tAUG'H WlJlf U.Sl. 
Thi ... : ;..;.,~i.il~ii. M·. ·.· '';:', \1··:1:;· .(;)rn.-!t:~· . . ·U r'9,~.~J·,. . ,. :av . · ·~;, ¥::,,,.ut 1J,lt 

. Come Laugh with Us 

at our Annual Stand Upl event 

on. Th1:1rsday, May 12th. 

No need to drive Irita San Francisco to laugh out loud with the Impressive fmprov 
hysterics by BATS. 

Instead support our Stand Up! event by purchasing a $150 ticket for the 
performance and a rockln' after party, or a special discount on 4 tickets for $5001 

2· 



Scargle palred'wlth VIP seating and after party fun for $750. 

No auction - live or silent - just a lot of laughter and a Fund-A-Need. 

Get In on the joke I We are almost at capacity-. don't miss your chance to Stand 
Up! 

Buy your tickets today! 
P.S, Bring your mobile phone - we have games to entertain you! Those of you not 

at the dinner, we've got you covered - a glass of bubbly Is waiting for you. See you 
there! 

3 



Sue Feldmann 

From: 
Sent: 
To: 
Subject: 

Heather Saunders Estes, Planned Parenthood Northern California <info@ppnorcal.org> 
Monday, May 09, 2016 6:39 PM 
AttorneyGeneral 
Get Your Laugh On! 

"There ls nothing in the world so Jrreslstlb!y contagious as 
. laughter and good humor. 11 

• 

Char/es Dickens 

We can't wait to laugh with you this Thursday evening at CIA's 
newest venue at the 

former Copla site, 50.0 1st St, Napa 

Check ln·wlth your funny side and ·enjoy a glass of bubbly before 
the show. se·ating begins at 6:45pm. 

Bring your fully charged cell phone (yes, bring It to the 
performance) to participate In the evening's Fund A Need to 

· support Planned Parenthood Northern California. 

Napa Casual - of course 

Haven't purchased your tickets yet? There's still time to get In 
on the fun! 

1 
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Sue Feldmann 

From: 
Sent: 
To: 
Subject: 

Planned Parenthood Northern California <lnfo@pp-sp.org> 
Frtday, April 01, 2016 9:01 AM 

· AttorneyGeneral 
Join us for Stand Up! with BATS Improv 

Planned Parenthood Northern California 

presents 

Dear Kamala, 

On Thursday, May 12, 2016, Planned 
Parenthood Northern California, in 
coordtnation with the Napa Valley Board 

· of Advocates, will host Stand Up!' an 
.,.,,.:,nlnn nf rnm.::.,h, :::1r rho m11t"h-::nM:::1lrcirl 

1 l 

BATS lMP.RbV 



(• 

,• 

Culinary Instltue of America (formerly 
Cop!a). Join us for an Intimate dinner and 
customized show celebrating Planned 
Parenthood and our work in Napa. 

The evening will feature BATS Improv, 
who will perform on-the-spot comedic 
skits with the help of audience 
suggestions, BATS Improv Is a 
pr9fesslonal theatre company and an 
artistic community that cultivates and 
innovates the craft of Improvised theatre 
through engaging, playful, creative 
performance and training. 

Come experience Stand Up as you never 
have before. There are two ways to 
experience Stand this year. 

• Laugh and party with us. Click 
b.m for tickets. 

• Eat, laugh and drink with us. To · 
enjoy the gourmet dinner, be sure 
to purchase tickets at the Jub/lant, 
Sassy, or Individual Reservation -
Dinner, Performance & After-Party 
levels. · 

Seats are filling up fast and we are 
nearing capacity. Please click here and 
RSVP today to reserve your place. All 
tickets lnch,ide admittance to the 

. performance and after party. If you have 
any questions, please contact the Events 
Manager at (415)920-2068,: 

You may also receive a Paperless Post 
tnvltatlor,i, these ·invitations are for the 

. same event - Stand Upl 2016. 

Sincerely, 

Heather Saunders Estes 

President and CEO 

2 
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P.rom: 
Sent: 
To; 
'Su~em:r 

Daat Madam .Attamey Get!rerat, 

~r:ie·er,,. I<:at~M, ~k&tl:iy.~kr-ie.ef@ili?.P.~C:?CA·;O'RG.r>. 
.Pr.l(jay,Jt1l.tl'.Z; i2it?!I:~ ·S1J-$ R~ 
Kamala ·r,1:ar,r,js 
U,p.Cilate·i'.t(l).rrl F!lai:ined,·1Par,en1l:hll1~t!l:',·r.e: ... 'v'jd:l;lG,i\ttaek 

SW PCDW y.el.\l may·bctY:~ ·laec!r,ld;,abw.utJID:r,l~aiJe:searn".a·:.heaMiJ¥ ,edlt~t;l·.~id.el!>:~fn>.r. ... ID.e'lf>.snal;i 1N~~a!tc.:Jl~,..s.er1Jer·1db;~et~r·df 
mecl.icl;l·l.sew.i.~e·Sfll),riP.!an1aed;,.P.•a'11~(;rt)hpp:d.·~~q~~itlbJ'.1,!1if:~.m:e.~ia~.;·,W~i~M·,Vi/Bi:;!·,·li~l~1;1~et'.l'!tl\lis·.11Af~~~l~¥,~lil~©.l:el~n·1zatll;)'tl.:.ea'.Ulro,g 
ltse,lf'th.e.G~te:rf!'-:r rvte:dltal-~Qgnl:iss.;. W.e:W.i:f11tte'lllw;0Mt 10.:Jtre'\',i:t',:'iil.'m'e:m.tl¥. f:r.im·!lf.Sjtb~'lr~b,e:iGJl:a;it:r.ls1'.beirl~·ml!iMe-;a:re:Glear.l¥ 
outrl;!gee,14Vil:l'l'\!l .i;rntru.e. 

As·Y,Ptl .k~e?W, f'.Ja111n~ ,P~rEl~Q~.a4~~ t~!9tP.ll.l~~·i~.~b~·¢~~P,a~~~?~-~r,e;flit,ra;t'1w.e,1PSW.~i~1'?i'~:·.lilb\ls.e!.~Q·.l.~Ulit!lr.l 
:Ca'11f~'rr.ifar,is,,e.Vl;!lJ¥··¥i,l!tf. •. ll'l·i\l:i~t-Vlclep,, ·,lf:rE:Sll~if.t.-ar!S:p.\'eiil<$,il~ :i;t·.wi1r,:tlh1it"'s.~a,nltf.t' t;ijftei~\$ia 1.~~l!T-li~~ssi«::1h~.r·~al"e.;tJ:i;a;t: ,we. 
·kn~.w·~p.1,1.~p~~rhl:s.:ta·,t.1flaGG1.~µJ:a.~l~·~o,,qM~)i)~·~e·~:l!l.0;l:qegfie;,i(li)r.11i!~tetlli.ri~-.an~:i'i:~r.:•,~r.n~.l'!lt$., 

J t.. ,-1,J.it.. !W ... ,.,.,,,41. ·.i:· . ··,:1.!j/1.··r.1',l.li.:, .. ..,. ·"' .. • ·:l41.i.:. •• ,;;·.ii"'"" ·· .. ;i, ·'A' .,;if., ., .. 1 ..,, .. ,~.lo . t "'l:t/J · .. . . . i:..~i......,.. . 1... "I 0 :,-ie:"i .~i:11sla.~ta.i ,/J,~::~·-.(;l.Qrr,ln;lfi);l:l:lt<~'""''l'N.ll';}.f:1~f·,P.l,•t~.t~\!~P,?,·.1C~'Wli:!.~ie,,"'1:1~·\;,t.:-·~.l,Y.ili!',1~~1:111:l?.1'1ll!'l'.i;'<11.1S.":i:4,!r':·~~l.'$.'.~r~Ttl,;~. 'l(J,G;•lf.~$~rie<i1,~wp,~ :!ilj!]:t: f,r~ .. P' 
lead to r.tred.iaal b.re.a:i«ih't.etjgfuis, .is.l!l~k.:as·\tt$.~~:emt,s:~r.f/ic:ie.l:f.i;e.s\-ff1n•~~rli~lll.Siptj~~~~ •. igil)'qt ~;f;S.eMer.i:•Calff:P.'tnl,f.~Ja.,nr:1:~a. 
Par>Clm:tb,Ja~ .. a!ffiltiat~ hav.§!· r.$'!iatililJ?S.hlt~ '.'!'f.{~~,:~~:~~ 'f:i~~~r,~~.1i!F11lih:~a.\<\n'fl.sr,tili!l.h·~t".fz!ll.~~fft,,IW,e;~yfogr ~~tf.l;\Js.e~g~.~~~!11 ,®'.ll 
anlll otrr~·r:t.,es·eard1 1.:J:iat ls .alm:i1e~.,at,pu~n,~:~.ea;i'1.1:i,clijs.e.asl:}, .s0m·J3·1@n:i::!'Mt1·:j[z~:e,:i.1;r:re.K...s:,a.nd. :e'tf.'\'er.ite:~h~,,iffse~.~es., ·N-eiit'hi:i'r 
Planfl'ecl ·P.arer:i:t.1wG:d .. .rn,.r·.0'4r· i,:i·aMent~·fir:iaMi~:lly./p~.m:eflt,fr.ti1t:iil·itri\'1?Se:~.~.l1)<1ti¢i·p~ .• 

.. 
Pia l'lirre'cl Pa.r,~At1'1'o:G).d·-affl,lla:1!es wblmJ1 ,P.arJ.11::lpa.'ll~·i;lil the p1c~g1wJ'illJ..S t!ger.o.u:sll/ ,fl:,:U[)w ,all ·:st.attNmr.;l•:f.eqera:l lp.ws:Wie .-QJnta1'to1 
.cei.nsent'fro.rn Pia'lil.enits uslng tl:!e bJghelit e,thltii!J.·a1;rd. 'lega'l,~ta:l'.flpi.ar:cl5. .. ·S"!ilm,.·aff.Jnij-.i:ir.1;1;flgh:r;i.~r,e1cJpate ln ci~a~tl~n · . 
pr:ogr.:e.ms, d.e .r.ecel!ile a mode.st f.~e, but'tba:t:.ls·1fQtr ad:mlr.ilstl"la\tb1.e1.a.r.id vr.ans.·p.~rtlla~il!1n Jw.sts. 'T.l:l.e::aR~ga:tten1f.iat :P.l.ijtn,etj 
·P:ara.n·tn:0.s:d in .a:mf w.a.y,to-r.e'fits,·fr.0m•thes.e·d~n~'lli(!)t:is<ls,$si:i'L~Jy,lt/!rtt'T'\:I~ · ' 

··11:1:isd11:ea~ly e.!il:lte1cl·.Y-J;d.eGJw{as .. crir,ei~$$'1~ 'cJ:Ft~ p,r,l;!,rA!f>teril·,iby.-a:.we:IJ..:..-liur-u;t~~;gr<!ll::!,~ ,WlJG>Jie1$.0le 1p.!i:!11.Jq.P:~~· is: t.ei .di:l:n.J~ge ·:P..l.iirr~~d 
P.a·n:e,ri:J;:h.o:o-.d''.s .r.$..p:t;J;.t.a~i.(;)u ,~:~ii ~G,1~f.ijy~rtt,ws:ft9tn .. riJ:r.,e~l'~JJlWiP.:re.v;~\iti~ei?.:r'l.\:l .. 'fi.ept1i1.~:µo.~\v,e.,i\t e~~:t! h :.s.erii~~~'il!~11t..w.om $'.r.i 

'tieed aJ:'lliJ·,.~~sem1.e . .,...:;l)e:a1Jth .s~!r.N..lll~~sJ!l.¢.h:;as:·~11~.a,s.t;ijml·i~li?tw.)C~l.1.6q'nP1e:r:1,c,F.e~l11g~,:~~\te'gipg,.qm(l "tJi.f;fltr:ra:erJt.,.'M.rt':la 
Ge At1;0 I· a:nd .pe),1;µ81 he,~lth: eGli.!ic.~1/il;!h .• W,e.· k~1p.W't)il·e,Jr-:real .,age,r.i#i,~,:~·r:fd ·i1\liJ~y t:l:Ja;ve;~e~.er'~een;,~C:l.1'1,C::~.lin~itl:XliJlih:-Pr.mtecl.lijg 

. the health,a:n.d· ~fe.ty· o:f-,w.'>~en. 'T:belr ,r,n:ls~lo:n. i$-1t;0!.b~m .~t;,:o:r;t{P:m:·cC:l.m:tJP1le:t:e:ly are1cl.,.Gt:ft.·W(:)T:J!l.'&;1 e';ff,.ft.om,,i:a:r:~··a~i,P,la:nn:ed 
Pa renthoocll a,r.l'd. t1ti.he:r· hraa·l~.t:i,~ia.l:.i'l;e!r.~. · 



Pr-eslde.l'.lt.arnd :GEG 
F?.Iannecl Papen~l:1000 -Affillate:Si•sf. c~ 

I 
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'Ftbm:: ·. 
... Sent · 

Robert Sumner . . I • ·: :· ' • ' : 
.. •,. 

·.•'.: 

' · To:-
Tuesday, March 29, 2016 4:29 PM1.,· ·:. :··::·, : • : . • . • • : •• ,;.' 

Romero, C:hrlstir:ia · · · ::·.. ·. ·. ··· ·. · · . .. . · · . · · :: · ·. ·:, •. · ,,:·· 
RE::call wltl:l:R:ob~rt ~umner {AG's·0~ce1 ~~:.~.~1.:l.'61;1'.!]:llegal'Vitleo T.aP.ing) ':.. .. ': .. _.; · ..•.. , ·:t 'd 
:••--::N:'? ,.•:•, '•.'" • • ~ '• ' y: ', .,, ': ',,,\.: •' ": ,,,' '~"'" ,' •' I, • :,'·.,\ /•'., 

Subjec:b · .··· 

.. 
JIII.Hablg@doj.ca.gov I 

.... 
.. ,, 

.... ,, '. . ... 
from: Romero1 Christina [malltoiChrlstlna.Romero@PPACCA:OP,G] · 
Sent: Tuesday, Marnh 29., 2016 4:28 PM 
To: Robert Sumner · . 
Subject: RE: Call with Robert sumner'(AG's Office) RE: AB 1671 (Illegal Video Taping):.· · . . . . 
Absoll,rtely,l If you senq me her email I can 'add her to the' Invite •. @ · , ·· 

I I • I 

I '''°, .... : ... . . ... . . 
'\o I 

· Christina Romero,·Legisl~tlve Director . ·· · 
Pla.nned Parenthood Affiliates of California .1 555 ~ I Sacram~nto, CA 95814 .. 
916-446-9247 l'916-441-0632fax- . · .. ·. : .. 
www.pgactlonca.org 

:•. 

·-...-.!-...... -·-:----·--_:.._......:_._:. __ ,~J,,,.:..:..~, .. --·----...:..-~ .. ;__-·-. --~-_..: .. ~---.--~-.. -·-. ____ __,__ 
From: Robert Sumner [ma!lto;Robert.Sumner@dol.ca.go'l) . . : 
Sentnuesday1 March 291 2016 4:27 PM ·., · ·· : 
!fo: Romero, Christina. · .: . ·· ,. .. : .. 
Subject: iRE: Call with Robert Sumner {AG's Office) RE: AS 1671 (Illegal Video Taping} 

Cool if I i_nyite Jill Habig i.n case she can jl'!in? 
. . 

----Original Appotntmeryt----~ • •, ... ,• 

From: Romero, Christina [mallto;ChrJstlna,Romero@PPACCA.ORG] 
Sent: Tu~sday, March. 29, ~016 4:26 PM · · 
ro: RomerorChristlna; Robert Sumner) Parker, Beth; PPAC un·e 
Subject: Call with Robert Sumner (AG's Office) RE: AB 1671 (Illegal Video Taph:ig) 

. When: F.rlday1 April 081 20:1:6 3:30 RM-4:00 Pi".'( (YTC· • . r~"·~""' 

Where: In person: 555 Capitol Mall Over the phone: 
•: I t 

. . 

. 

CONFJJDENTIALITY NOTICE: This communication with its content.s niay .cont~ confidential and/or legally 
. privileged information. It is solely f 9r the use of :tl:ie :intended r~cipient(s ). Unauthorized io.terceptlon, review,· 
.. use or disclosure is prohibited and may violfl.te applicable laws including the Electronic 'Communi.eations 

Privacy Act. If you are not the intended recipient; please contact the sender and destroy all ~oples of ,the 
. 06:tnmunication. · · · '' · 

1 

.. .. .. .. . . 
'• 



From: 
Sent: 
to: 
Subject: 

JIii and Robby 

Parker, Beth <beth.parker@PPACCA.ORG> 
Tuesday, July 21, 2015 9:42 AM 
JIii Habig; Robert Sumner 
Planned Parenthood: videos 

A second video was released today. We believe we are fully compliant wlth all federal and state laws and are 
Investigating the situation. Please; feel free to reach out to me If you have any questions or concerns. 

Beth 

Beth H. Parker, Chtef Legal Counsel . . 
Planned Parenthood Affiliates of California I 55$ Capitol Mall, Suite 510 I Sacramento, CA 95814 
916.446.5247 -I 916.441.0632 fax I - cell 

Plann-ed 
~h~WI 
-·Nlli~f.iP.k. 

i'Jw,lld llim:ii!llMdJIMlilllltlS!lilCilfflulmtlJ 

The cor,tents of this e-mail message, ino!udlng any attaotimenta, .ire Intended eofely for the use of the per8on or e'ntity.to whom thee­
rn$il was addressed. lt contains Information that may be pr~tected by the l,'!ltorney-ctler;it privilege: work-product doctrine, or other 
prlvllages, and may be restrlctoo from qlsclosure by applicable state and federal law. If you are not the intended recipient 9Mhls 
message, be advised that any dissemination, distribution, or use of the conten~ ofthls message Is strictly prohibit~~- If you have 
received this message In error, or are 11ot the named reclplent{s), please notify the sender immediately by reply e-mail or by phone at 
(916) 446-5247 ext. 108 and delete this message from your comput~r. Thank you. 

' 

1 



.. J1.11 .. H.a.b ... ig"---..-----..,.....,.-------··:·-··-: ·-------------·· ......... . 
Robert Sumner . , . : :· , .. : . . ,, . .. ·.: ·Frt:>m: · ·. 

.. Sent:· Tuesday, March 29, 2016 4:29 PM\,··:. ·"!.", . · · · , ... · ... ·''.' 

Romero, Ghristir.ia ·. · _.: .... ·. ····· ·. · · . · · . · · :: ·. ,;. , · /· . · To:, 
Subject:· RE:.Call wltl:l:Robert ~uroner (AG's·Offi.ce)· RE:,A:B.J6Jl'J111egal'Video T,aping) ':.. .. ': .... ; · ..... , ·.~··,·, 

.... ,.,,~:"·.·:,:···· .... , ..... 

1 

o ~ '•' ~·::'.· •• :,,·::,.rr:.: ., ~: . .. : ·:.,, .. ,1 ~· o ' ,•', > :~ ..... • ·.~ • . . 
..... 11.t ..; ., ... f • ~ ', , • :. 'lo O o 

JIII.Habig@doi.ca.gov I 
.... ,. 

....... 
,•,', •: -·-------.;.._.:._ ____ _.,_ ______________ __;.. __ _, ... _____ _ 

From: Romero, Christina [msilltmChrfstlna.Romero@PPACCA;ORG] 
Sent: Tuesday, Mare::h 29, 2016 4:28 PM 
To: Robert Sumner · . 
Subject: RE: Call with Robert Sumner (A_G1s Office) RE: AB 1671 (Illegal Video Tap!ng):. · · 

Absoil,Jtely.l lfyou sen~ me her email I can ·add her to the.invite,·© . .. ·· 

•' . 

· Christina Ron:iero, · Leglsl~tlve Director . 
Planned Parenthood Affi{iates of California I 555 Capitol Mall, Suite 510 I Sacramento, CA 95814. 
916-446-5247 1· 916-441-0632.fax 
www.ppactionca.org 

... . ' 

:·' 

. ' . ' 
• ... - ....... J ............ _,,..,..... • .. ,_ .................. __ _., .................. ~ .................. _ .... ,-......... _ ..... •J O •• .... ___ ,,_ .................... Hl--••-<,0000-.. ,-.. ,-.. O "'"'"'" • ........... ,-................. - ..... ,m .............................. ~-""-''"'""''"' .... -1~0f'"0 , ............... ',, ........ , .. .__, ___ ,..hMohm .. ~ .............. M .. 11..:IMl~O-

From: Robert Sumner [mallto:Robert.Sumner@doi.ca.gov] . .. : 
Sent: Tuesday, March 29, 2016 4:27 PM 
.10: Romero, Christina. · .. . 
Subject: RE: Call with Robert Sumner (AG's Office} RE: A8 1671 (Illegal Video Taping) 

Cool If I lnylte Jill Habig i.n case she can j~in? 

·····Original Appointment···-- . 
From: Romero, Christina [mailto:Chrlstlna.Romero@PPACCA.ORGJ 
Sent: Tuesday, March 29, 2016 4:26 PM · · 
To: Romero, Christina; Robert Sumner; Parker, Beth; PPAC Litre 
Subject: Call with Robert Sumner (AG's Office) RE: AB 1671 (Illegal Video Tapii:,g) 
When= Friday, April 08, 20l:6 3:30 P.M·4:00 P~ (l[fC· . 
W~ere: In person: 555 ~apltol Mall Over the phone: 

CONF.IDENTIALITY NOTICE: This communication with its content.s niay .cont:am confidential and/or legaily 
privileged information. It is solely .f<;>r the use of :tlie intended recipient(s). Unauthorized interception, review, 

· · use or disclosure is prohibited and may violate applicable laws including the ~lectronic Coinmuni~~tions 
Pdvacy Act. If you are not the intended recipient; please contact the sender and destroy all popies of.the 

. c6tnmunication. · ·' · 
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Print Message : Dell Archive Manager Page 1 of2 

~. Email 
From; Kneer, Kathy Sent:7/17/2015 3:27:15 PM 
To: Robert Sumner 
Subject:Update from Planned Parenthood re: video attack 

1-,.;;;;.,.,., may ,,.;toln ,,,,.., thot .,. h,~-;;;;;;,.ttad,m'"" may ,ot dl,playoom,;;;.--·1 
~mage003.png 121Kbl 

Planned 
Parenthood~ 
A.ct. No matter what 

Dear Robert, 

By now you may have heard about or have seen a heavily edited video of Dr. Deborah Nucatola, senior director 
of medical services for Planned Parenthood Federation of America, which was released this week by an 
9rganizatlon callln& itself the Center for Medical Progress. We wanted you to hear directly from us that 
the claims being made are clearly outrageous and untrue. 
As you know, Planned Parenthood1s top priority is the compassionate care that we provide to close to 1 million 
Californians every year. In the video, the staffer sp~aks In a way that does not reflect the compassion or care 
that we know you expect. This ls unacceptable to us and we apologize for her tone and her statements. 

In health care, it's common practice for patients to have the option to donate tissue to scientific research that 
can help lead to medical breakthroughs, such as treatments and cures for serious diseases. Four of seven 
California Planned Parentnood affiliates have relationships with bona fide research centers that conduct 
lifesaving, cutting edge stem cell and other research that is aimed at curing heart disease, some cancers, 
Alzheimer's and other genetic diseases. Neither Planned Parenthood nor our patients financially benefit from 
these donations. . · 

Planned Parenthood affiliates which participate in the programs rigorously follow all state and federal laws. We 
obtain consent from p·atients using the highest ethical and legal standards, Some affiliates which participate in 
donation programs do receive a modest" fee, but that is for administrative and transportation costs. The 
allegation that Planned Parenthood in any way profits from these donations is absolutely untrue. 

This heavily edited video was created and promoted by a well-funded group whose sole purpose Is to damage 
P.lanned Parenthood's reputation and to prevent us from providing preventive and reproductive health services 
that women need and deserve -- health services such as breast and cervical cancer screenings, STD testing and 
treatment, birth control and se~ual health education. We know their real agenda, and they have never been · 
concerned with protecting the health and safety of women. Their mission ls to ban abortion completely and cut 
women off from care at Planned Parenthood and other health centers. 

Sadly we do not believe this is the end to their charges against Planned Parenthood. If you have any questions 
or seek additional information, please do. not hesitate to call us. 

http://archivemanager.rescs.ca1doj .local/PrintMessage,a~px?CheckStm1s=6da:f2b 1c"6576-7. .. 6/27/2016 



Print Message : Dell Archive Manager 

Sincerely, 

Kathy Kneer 
President and CEO 
Planned Parenthood Affiliates of CA 

Page 2 of2 

http://archivemanager .rescs.caldoj .local/PrintMessage.aspx?CheckSums=6daf2b 1c-6576-7 ... 6/27/2016 



Robert Sumner 

From: Robert Sumner 
Sent: 
To: 

Tuesday, March 29, 2016 4:13 PM 
'Romero, Christina' 

Subject: RE:2016leg 

Perfect. © 

' ..... ,, .. ~ . . . .. ... ..... .. . . .. .... . . ....... '" ~... " .. .. .. 
From: Romero, Christina [maHto:Christina.Romero@PPACCA.ORG] 
Sent: Tuesday, March 29, 2016 4:12 PM 
To: Robert Sumner 
Subject: RE: 2016 leg 

Hey Roberti Vve bee·n meaning to email you since yesterday! 11 l'tn going to· give you a call and will also send to you. 

Christina Romero, Legislative Director 
Planned Parenthood Affiliates of California I 555 Capitol Mall, Suite 510 I Sacramento, CA 95814 
916-446-5247 I 916-441-0632 fax I 

Planned 
Parenthood# 

Froi;n: Robert Sumner [mailto:Robert.Sumner@doj.ca.gov] 
Sent: Tuesday, M areh 29, 2016. 4:10 PM 
To: Romero, Christina 
Subject: 20.16 leg 

Hey Christina! Do you have a breakdown of PPAC's legislative priorities this session? Looking to check in on what you all 
are sponsoring/supporting, just generally in the Interest of being helpful where I can. Thanks I 

Robby 

Robert Sumner 
Special Counsel for Legislation 
California Department of Ju'Stice 
Office of Attorney General Kamala D. Harris 
1300 I Street 
Sacramento, CA 95814 

CONFIDENTIALITY NOTICE: This commtmication with its contents may contain confidential and/or legally 
privileged information. It is solely for the use of the intended recipient(s). Unauthorized interception, review, 
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~se or disclosure is prohibited and may violate applicable laws including the Electronic Communications 
Privacy Act. If you are not the intended recipient~ please contact the sender and destroy all copies of the 
communication. · 
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Robert Sumner 

From: 
Sent: 

Romero, Christina <Christina.Romero@PPACCA.ORG> 
Tuesday, March 29, 2016 4:13 PM 

To: Robert Sumner 
Subject: RE:20161eg 

Just called you. Give me a call when you have a chancel 

Christina Romero, Legislative Director 
Planned Parenthood Affiliates of California I 555 Ca 
916-446-5247 I 916-441-0632 fax I 
www.ppactionca.org 

,,_ . .,,,.,,._._ ____ , ___ _ 
From: Robert Sumner [mailto:Robert.Sumner@doi.ca.gov] 
Sent: Tuesday, March 29, 2016 4:10 PM 
To: Romero, Christina 
Subject: 2016 leg 

Hey Christina! Do you have a breakdown of PPAC's legislative priorities this session? Looking to check in on what you all 
are sponsoring/supporting, just generally in the interest of being helpful where I can. 1hanksl 

Robby 

Robert Sumner 
Special Counsel for Legislation 
California Department of Justice 
Office of Attorney General Kamala D. Harris 
1300 I Street 
Sacramento, CA 95814 

CONFIDENTIALITY NOTICE: This co:mr:nunication with its contents may contain confidential and/or lega,J.ly 
privileged information. It is solely for the use of the intended recipient(s). Unauthorized interception, review, 
use or disclosure is prohibited and may violate applicable laws including the Electronic Communications 
Privacy Act. If you are not the intended recipient, please contact the sender and destroy all copies of the 
communication. 

1 



Robert Sumner 

' ' 
From: Romero, Christina <Christina.Romero@PPACCA.ORG> 
Sent: Tuesday, March 29, 2016 4:32 PM 
To: Robert Sumner 
Subject: RE:20161eg 

Here are our priority bills this year. Happy to send fact sheets on any you are interested inf 

Christina Romero, Legislative Director 
Planned Parenthood Affiliates of California I 555 Ca 
916-446-5247 I 916-441-0632 fax I 

Planned 
Parenthood· 

l 
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Robert Sumner 

From: 
Sent: 

Romero, Christina <Christina.Romero@PPACCAORG> 
Tuesday, March 29, 2016 4:33 PM 

To: Robert Sumner 
Subject: RE: Call with Robert Sumner (AG's Office) RE: AB 1671 (Illegal Video Taping) 

Donel 

Christina Romero, Legislative Director 
Planned Parenthood Affiliates of California I 555 C~lO I Sacramento, CA 95814 

916-446-5247 I 916-441-0632 fax 1- . 
www.ppactionca.org . 

______ .. _____ , ---

From: Robert Sumner [mallto:Robert.Sumner@doj.ca.gov] 
Sent: Tuesday, March 29, 2016 4:29 PM 
To: Romero, Christina 
Subject: RE: Call with Robert Sumner (AG's Office) RE: AB 1671 (Illegal Video Taping) 

Jill.Habig@doj.ca.gov I 

From: Romero, Christina [mailto:Christina.Romero@PPACCA.ORG] 
Sent: Tuesday, March 29, 2016 4:28 PM 
To: Robert Sumner 
Subject: RE: call with Robert Sumner (AG's Office) RE: AB 1671 (Illegal Video Taping) 

Absolutely! If you send me her email I can add her to the invite.© 

Christina Romero, Legislative Director 
Planned Parenthood Affirates of California I 555 C 
916-446-5247 l 916-441-0632 fax I 

. . . - . 

From: Robert Sumner (mailto:Robert.Sumner@doj.ca.govl 
Sent: Tuesday, March 29, 2016 4i27 PM 
To: Romero, Christina 

I Sacramento, CA 95814 

Subject: RE: Call with Robert Sumner (AG's Office) RE: A~ 1671 (Illegal Video Taping) 

Cool if I invite Jill Habig in case she can Join? 

1 



-----Original Appointment~----
From: Romero, Christina [msiilto:Chrlstina.Romero@PPt\CCA,QRG] 
Sent: Tuesday, March 29, 2016 4:26 PM · 
To: Romero, Christina; Robert Sumner; Parker, Beth; PPAC Line 
Subject: Call with Robert Sumner (AG's Office) RE: AB 1671 (Illegal Video Taping) 
When: Friday, April 08, 2016 3:30 PM-4:00 PM (UT 
Where: In person: 555 Capitol Mall Over the phone 

1: •• .... ..... ! ....... 

CONFIDENTIALITY NOTICE: This· communication with its contents may contain confidential and/or legally 
privileged information. It is solely for the use of the intended recipient(s). Unauthorized interception, review, 
use or disclosure is prohibited and may violate applicable laws including the Electronic Communications 
Privacy Act If you are not the intended recipient, please contact the sender and destroy all copies of the 
communication. 

CONFIDENTIALITY N9TICE: This communication with its contents may contain confidential and/or legally 
privileged information. It is solely for the use of the intended recipient(s). Unauthorized interception, review, · 
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
Parenthood® 
Act. No matter what. 

Plmmed Parenthood Afflllates of California 

March 30, 2016 

The Honorable Reginald B. Jones-Sawyer 
Chair, Assembly Committee on Public Safety 
1020 N St, Room 111 
Sacramento, CA 95814 

RE: AB 1848 (Chiu) - SUPPORT 

Dear Assemblymember Jones-Sawyer, 

'. 

On behalf of Planned Parenthood Affiliates of California (PPAC) and our more than 115 health centers throughout the 
state, we are pleased to support AB 1848 (Chiu). This bill will require local law enforcement agencies to track the 
handling of sexual assault ev!dence kits and to provide annual reports to the California Department of Justice. 

These sexual assault evidence kits, which are also known as "rape kits", can be a useful tool that law enforcement 
utilizes to provide Justice to victims; However, forensic examination using such kits usually involves a number of highly 
lnvasive·procedures and can last up to several hours. In many cases, survivors of sexual assault experience re­
traumatlzation when undergoing the forensic evidence collection process. This does not undermine the value that these 
kits have but rather places an expectation on law enforcement to utilize these sensitive pieces of evidence. When these 
kits go unanalyzed, with no explanation for victims and further adds to the trauma endured by survivors seeking justice. 
In California, no comprehensive data Is currently available about the number of sexual assault evidence kits law 
enforcement agencies collect annually or how many of those kits are analyzed. Further, no comprehensive data exists 
about the reasons some sexual assault evidence kits are not analyzed. 

For these reasons, the scope of this problem cannot be properly estimated and the need for AB 1848 ls <::!ear. By 
requlrlng'law enforcement to track and report the status of these kits, agencies would be able to better Inform victims 

. and pollcy makers so that they have the relevant information necessary to address this problem, For these reasons, 
PPAC supports AB 1848 (Chiu) and respectfully requests your AYE vote. 

Sincerely, 

Christina Romero 
Legislative Director, Planned Parenthood Affiliates of California 

cc: The Honorable David Chiu 
Members, Assembly Committee on P'ubllc Safety 

555 Capitol Mall, Suite 510 · Sacramento, CA 95814 · (916) 446-5247 · (916) 441~0632 , www.ppactlonCA.org 



Robert Sumner 

From: 
Sent: 

Parker, Beth <beth.parker@PPACCA.ORG> 
Friday, April 08, 2016 3:39 PM 

To: Robert Sumner 
Subject: 'RE: Call with Robert Sul')'lner (AG's Office) RE: AB 1671 (Illegal Video Taping) 

I didn't realize you were claling In. Christina said yo~ were coming to office 

From: Robert Sumner [mailto:Robert.Sumner@dol.ca.gov] 
Sent: Friday, April 08, 2016 3:37 PM · 
To: Romero, Christina <Christina.Romero@PPACCA.ORG>; Parker, Beth <beth.garker@PPACCA.ORG> 
Subject: RE: Call with Robert Sumner (AG's Office) RE: AB 1671 (Illegal Video Taping) 

This is actually really lovely hold music so I'm doing fine, but let me know if folks plan on dialing in. 

-----Original Appointment··---
From: Romero, Christina [maUto:Chrlstina.Romero@PPACCA.ORG] 
Sent:. Tuesday, March 29, 2016 4:27 PM , 
To: Romero, Christinaj Robert Sumner; Parker, Beth; PPAC Line 
Subject: Call with Robert Sumner (AG's Office) RE: AB 1671 (Illegal Video Taping) 
When: Friday, Aprll 08, 2016 3:30 PM·4:00 PM (UTC 
Where: In person: 555 Capitol Mall Over the phone: 

1: II •. u• ., • 1.1. 

« FIie: 2016_03_15_AB_1671_proposed_language (1).docx » 

CONFIDENTIALITY NOTICE: This communication with its contents may contain confidential and/or legally 
privileged information. It is solely for the use of the intended recipient(s). Unauthorized interception, review, 
use or disclosure is prohibited and may violate applicable laws including the Electronic Communications 
Privacy Act. If you are not the intended recipient, pleas·e contact the sep.der and destroy all copies of the 
communication. · 

1 



Robert Sumner 

From: 
Sent: 
To: 
Subject: 
Attachments: 

Here is current draft. 

Parker, Beth <beth.parker@PPACCA.ORG> 
Friday, April 08, 2016 3:51 PM 
Robert Sumner 
FW: 2016-03-15 AB 1671.docx - REVISED LEG. COUNSEL DRAFT 
1610296.insert.docx 

From: Joseph, Lori [mailto:lori.ioseph@legislativecounsel.ca.gov] 
Sent: Wednesday, April 06, 2016 6:30 PM 
To: Parker, Beth <beth.parker@PPACCA.ORG> 
Subject: RE: 2016-03-15 AB 1671.docx- REVISED LEG. C0UNSEL DRAFT 

Hi Beth~ 

Sorry- I. attachad the wrong draft! I've highlighted my correction in yellow on the attached. 

Lari 

From: Parker, Beth [mailto:beth,parker@PPACCA.ORGJ 
Sent: Tuesday, April 05, 2016 10:02 AM 
To: Joseph, Lori 
Subject: FW: 2016-03-iS AB 1671.docx 

1 



AB 1671- CONFIDENTIAL COMMUNICATIONS 
DISCLOSU~DRAFT LANGUAGE 

632.01. Notwithstanding any other law, a person who, intentionally and 
without the consent of all parties to a confidential communication described in 
subdivision ( c) of Section 632, does either of the following shall be punished as 
provided in subdivision (b) of Section 632: 

(a) (1) Discloses or .att~mpts to disclose, or distributes or attempts to 
distribute, in any manner, in any forum, including, but not limited to, Internet Web 
sites and social media, or for any purpose, the contents of any confidential 
~ommunication o~t.l.i.l~ied:bfflilf p·~fso.il 1*·:Viol!ttt9.n ~f $U~~M~(jiti::(tl}··4t',$.e~tfoii 
'j'' 6, .. ~~ 

(2) For purposes of this subdivision, "social media" means an electronic 
service or account, or electronic content, including, but not limited to, videos or still 
photographs, biogs, video biogs, podcasts, instant and text messages, email, online 
services or accounts, or Internet Web site profiles or locations. 

(b) Aids, abets, employs, or conspires with any person or persons to 
unlawfully do, permit, or ca.use to be done any of the acts described in subdivision 
(a). 



Robert Sumner 

From: 
Sent: 
To: 
Subjed: 

1. 

Robert Sumner 
Wednesday, April 13, 2016 6:37 PM 
Romero, Christina 
Accepted: AB 1671 call Robby and Christina 

. 1 



Robert Sumner 

From: 
Sent: 

Romero, Christina <Christina.Romero@PPACCA.ORG> 
Thursday, April 14, 2016 10:00 AM 

To: Robert Sumner 
Subject: FW:AB 1671 

Here ls what I got from Sandy. Make sense? Please don't share. 

Christina Romero, Legislative Director 
Planned Parenthood Affiliate of California I 555 Ca 
916-446-5247 I 916·:-441-0632 fax 

---·--·----~·-.. --
From: Uribe, Sandy [mailto:Saridy.Uribe@asm.ca.gov] 
Sent: Thursday, April 14, 2016 9:54 AM 
To: Romero, Christina 
Subject: RE: AB. 1671 

The case I argued on PC 654 was People v. Jones (2012) 54 Cal.4th 350. I'm forwarding via separate email from Lexis 
because I can't figure out how to attach it to this email. 

Jones is distinguishable because the prosecutor alleged the multiple violations occurred from a single act. But l did lots 
of research in this area in order to prepare for the case. PC 654 applies to both literally one act, and also has a second 
a pplicatlon which lool<s to the intent and objective of the defendant. Neal v. CA {1960) 55 Cal.2d. 11, is the seminal case 
on this second application. There is an exception for when the course of conduct involves multiple victims. 

Here is a blurb from a more recent case which would be applicable to the situation at hand, illegal recording and 
subsequent disclosure. 

Section 654 provides: HN'fii "An ~ct or omission that is punishable in different ways by different provisions of law shall be punished 

under the pro.vision that provides for the longest potential term of imprisonment, but in no case shall the act or omission be punished 
under more than one provision." The purpose of the statute "is to ensure that a defendant's punishment is commensurate with his 
culpability and that he is not punished more than once for what is essentially one criminal act." (Peop_le v. Kwok ( l 998) 63 

Cal.Aw.4th 1236, 1252 [75 Cal. Rptr. 2d 40](Kwok).) . \ 

{1).~ ( 4) lf,N8'i Section 654 precludes multiple punishments for a single act or omission or for an indivisible course of 

conduct. (People v. Deloza(l 998) 18 Cal.4th 585, 591 (76 C~!. Rptr. 2d 255, 957 P.2d 945) (Deloza).) "'Whether a course of criminal 
conduct is divisible and therefore gives rise to more than one act within the meaning of section 654 depends on the intent and 
objective of the actor. If all of the offenses were incident to one objective, the defendant may be punished for any one of such 

offenses but not for more than one.' (Neql v. State of California f(l 960)1 55 Cal.2d [111, 19 [9 Cal. Rptr. 607, 357 P.2d 839].)" (Kwok. 

supra, 63 Cal.Am1.4th at p. 1253,) "W11ether the acts of which a defendant has been convicted constitute an indivisible course of 

1 



conduct is a question offact for the trial court, and the trial court1s findings [(whether express or implied)] will not be disturbed on 
appeal if they are supported by substantial evidence." (Id iit pp. 1252-1253.) 

As this applies to your bill, I would say that in most situations th~ purpose of making a recording is to disseminate it to 
others. The person is not surreptitiously making a recording to listen to it himself. 

If you have questions on this aspect, I'm happy to discuss this afternoon. 

Sandy 

From: Romero, Christina [mailto:ChrlstinRJ.Romero@PPACCA.ORG] 
Sent: Thursday, April 14, 2016 9:20 AM · 
To: Uribe, Sandy 
Subject:: RE: AB 1671 

Sandy, do you have the court case that you were speaking to Beth about.? I keep getting asked oo my end but I'm not 
familiar with the conversation. 

Christina Romero, Legislative Director 
Planned Parenthood Affiliates of California I 555 Capitol Mall Suite 510 I Sacramento, CA 95814 
916-446-5247 I 916-441-0632 fax I 
www.ppactionca.org 

Planned 
Parenthood' 
Act };-? rn:.i~r.lt . .., .. ~'lt:~t 

From: Uribe, Sandy [mailto:Sandv.Uribe@asm.ca.gov] 
Sent: Wednesday, April 13, 2016 10:07 PM 
·ro: Romero, Christina 
Subject: Re: AB 1671 

Thank you for your email Christina. I hope so too. I honestly never thought I would be in a posrtion to raise concerns 
about a PP bill. Besides personal friendship with Paul Knepprath, I used PP facilities both in college and law school. Also 
a college classmate was killed working at a PP facility in Boston shortly after graduation. So I get the sacrifice folks in 
your organization make. That being said, my Job is to look at the legal fssues. 

I am available to meet around 1:30 or 2:00. I have to meet with the Chair again after session. 

Sandy 

Sent from my iPhone 

. . 
On Apr 13, 2016, at .9:39 PM, Romero, Christina <Christina.Romero@PPACCA.ORG> wrote: 

Good Evening Sandy, 

i 

I spoke to Assemblymember Gomez tonight and he said ChaJr Jones-Sawyer wanted us.,to meet 
tomorrow to clarify some of the language in our bill. What tinie is good for you? We are available from 
11:4!?-lpm and 1:30pm-Spm, tomorrow. 

2 



If those times don't work for you Beth and I can see if we can move some of our meetings 
tomorrow. We look forward to talking and I thank you for all your attention to this bill. This Is Planned 
Parenthoods number one priority bill in California because of all the suffering our staff has e~dured 
through the video attacks we have sustained. Thank you again. I really hope we can worl< this outl 

Christina Romero, Legislative Director 
Planned Parenthood Affiliates of California I ·555 Capitol Mall, Suite 510 I Sacramento, CA 
95814 
916-446-5247 I 916-441-0632 fax I 
www.ppactlonca.org 

<lmageOOl.png> 

From: Uribe, Sandy [mailto:Sandy.Uribe@asm.ca.govl 
Sent: Tuesday, April 12, 2016 4:33 PM 
To: Romero, Christina 

· Subject: RE: AB 1671 

Hi Christina, 

The committee Chair allows two witnesses per side and gives them each two minutes to testify. 

The staffer for Asm. Gomez offered to set up a meeting with you and me to discuss the 
bill. Unfortunately, because their office waited so long to amend this bill, I honestly don't have time to 
meet. I am not trying to be rude, but l have less than two days to draft the analyses for all my assigned 
bills we are going to hear next week. This Is our biggest hearing because it's our last. I'm happy to 
speak with you on the phone, though. 

Feel free to give me a call at your convenience. I will be here until about 7:30 tonight, or all day 
tomorrow. My direct line is-

Sandy 

Sandy Uribe 
Committee Counsel 
Assembly Committee on Public Safety 
1020 N Street, Room 111 
Sacramento CA 95814 

{916) 319-3745 -fax . 

... 0 '"'~"""''"'"I' I I .. ,0 ....... ~ ...... I, " •IO l, ... A I "'" .. ~ ""' 0 "'""'"''""'" .... ~,,0 0 , 4,,,~, ...... , .. " I '" •, • IH, ...... ,.,r, O ''"""' 0 .. " M ... O O• ••- ,•O O ,O, o 00 "''"'" > o , " "' o o •••, , o •oM '"',.,,..,,I "< .. o , 

From: Romero, Christina [mailto:Chrlstina,B.Qmero@PPACCA.ORGJ 
Sent: Tuesday, April 12, 2016 10:30 AM 
To: Uribe, Sandy 
Subject: AB 1671 
Importance: High 

Hello Sandy, 

3 



I 
I 
I 
I 
I I 

I hope you are well. I'd love to come chat with you about this bill that we are sponsoring, AB 1671 
(Gomez). Additionally, I can't find the committee rules posted and wondering how many witnesses the 
chair allows and how many minutes each witness has to speak. Looking forward to chatting with you 
and providing our perspective. 

Christina Romero, Legislative Director 
. Planned Parenthood Affiliates of California J 555 Capitol Mall, Suite 510 I Sacramento, CA 
95814 . 
916446-5247 I 916-441-0632 fax I 

<image001.png> 
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Robert Sumner 

From: 
Sent: 
To: 

Rotenberg, Deborah <deborah.rotenberg@PPACCA.ORG> 
. Tuesday, May 24, 201.6 2:45 PM 
Robert Sumner 

Subject: RE: Hi Robbie, meet Deb 

This ls great. Thanks so very much for your help! 

From: Robert Sumner [mailto:Robert.Sumner@doj.ca.govl 
Sent: Monday, May 23, 2016 5:16 PM 
To: Rotenberg, Deborah <deborah.rotenberg@PPACCA.ORG> 
Subject: RE: Hl Robbie, meet Deb 

Went down to the library and found it+ scanned it myself. (Which explains why it's a rough scan; let me know if this is 
adequately readable I) That's personal service from your constitutional officer, right there. 

Robby 

..... ~~· ·-· ~ .... ,-.~-. .......... "' ·~·"'" ,~,, .. ,~·~ ................. ~ ~ ................. . 
From: Rotenberg, Deborah [mailto:deborah.rotenberg@PPACCA.ORGl 
Sent: Friday, May 20, 2016 9:12 PM 
To: Robert Sumner 
Subject: Re: HI Robbie, meet Deb 

As a matter offact, I do! 

· Office of the Attorney.General of the State of California. Opinion No. CV 74-305, May 20, 1975. 

I really appreciate your help with this! 

Thanks so much, 
Deborah 

Sent from my !Phone 

On May 20, 2016, at 8:21 PM1 "Robert Sumner" <Robert.Sumner@doi.ca.gov> wrote: 

Lucky for you we have one at DOJ; let me check on Monday. Any idea of details beyond that? 

Sent from my iPhone 

On May 20, 2016, at 7:33 .PM, Rotenberg, Deborah <deborah.rotenberg@PPACCA.ORG> wrote: 

HI there! Glad to e-meet you. The opinion I need is from the 70s. Law library, eh? 

Sent from my iPhone 

On May 20, 2016, at 6:37 PM, "Robert Sumner" <Robert.Sumner@doj.ca.gov> wrote: 

l 



HI Debi I can look back as long ago as 1989 before having to start 
pointing you toward law libraries. Any additional details you can 
provide? 

Unless it's the opinion attached from 2000, in which case I'm a wizarcl. 

Robby 

Robert Sumner 
Director, Of/Ice of Legislative Affairs 
California Departrrient of Justice 
Office of Attorney General l<amala D. Harris 
1300 I Street 
Sacramento, CA 95814 

.,,,.,.,,,.,....,,.,.,.,.,~ ,,.,.,.,,,•i"t•'"' 4•• , •,,..~,,.,,A• <'t • H-.•/'>J.,.,AN\ .. _., •, "'•'f .,,\,h,A"'"'' /t,,,,,i<,,l,Jl,N• ""•I••,, •••M'tf'/.'lf.l',i1"•mN> ,~l,.,_,,,..,,,"'iNO•~·'"'"'• """'Y"~'-" '"" 

From: Hucheli Sarah [mallto:Sarah.Huchel@sen.ca.gov] 
Sent: Friday, May 20, 2016 1:53 PM 
To: Rotenberg, Deborah · 
Cc: Robert Sumner . 
Subject: Hi Robbie, meet Deb 

She needs an AG opinion from long ago and far away about both our 
~eco.nd favorite subject, CPM. Could you please advise? 

Sarah Huchel 
Principal Consultant 
Senate Committee on Business, Professions, 
and Economic Development 
State Capitol, Room 2053 
Sacramento, CA 95814 

F: 916.266.9343 

CONFIDENTIALITY NOTICE: This comm1.U1ication with its 
contents may contain confidential and/or legally privileged 
information. It is solely for the use of the intended recipient(s). 
Unauthorized interception, review, use or disclosure is prohibited 
and may violate applicable laws including the Electronic · 
Communications Privacy Act. If you are not the intended recipient, 
please contact the sender and destroy all copies of the 
comm1.U1ication. 

<00-206.pdf> 

CONFIDENTIALITY NOTICE: This communication with its contents may contain confidential 
and/or legally privileged information. It is solely for the use of the intended recipient(s). 
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Unauthorized interception, review, use or disclosure is prohibited and may violate applicable 
laws including the Electronic Communications Privacy Act. If you are not the intended recipient, 
please contact the sender and destroy all copies of the communication. · 

CONFIDENTIALITY NOTICE: This communication with its contents may contain confidential and/or legally 
· privileged information. It is solely for the use of the intended recipient(s). Unauthorized interception, review, 
use or disclosure is prohibited and may violate applicable laws including the Electronic Communications 
Privacy Act. If you are not the intended recipient, please contact the sender and destroy all copies of the 

· communication. 
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cnses· upholding the unlimited power uf the Legislnture In workmen's 
on mncters nre: Domlnq11en. Pt11do/it1 46 Cal. App. 220 ( 1920) (parties 
,rived of the constitutional tight to a jury trial); Lee v. S11pel'iol' Cot1rt1 

i (1923) (limitation of constitutional grant of nuthorlty to the superior 
8dly v, lndttstritlf. Ace, Com,, 41 Cal. 2d 118 ( 1953); Sac,·ainetl/o v. 
ice, Com., 74 Cnl. App. 386 (1925) (clty charter provisions subordlnnte 
1g provisions in the compensation act); Fe,.,;, v. I11dt11t!'ial Act. Com., 
pp. 2d 427 (1965) ( presumption in Workmen's Compensation Act 
:o certain public employees not sui,jecc to conscltutionnl nttack ns being 
:e), 

ion Code section 12919 is confiucd to situations where the cmploi•ee 
eath "in the course of his employment." The quoted words or simllnr 
are commonly found In lnws concetned with woi:kmen's compensation. 
, section 21; '.Labor Code§ 3600; Longshoremen's and Harbor Workers' 
on Ace, 33 USC § 902; 58 Am. Jur., Workmen's Compensation § 209. 
creates a benefit for the dependents of a workman because of n death 

1 the course of employment and as such It can be upheld as an item 
1's co111pensatlo11 legislation lmm~ne from the gift and extra compensa­
ons of the Constitution. 
:ode sectlon 3600 limits lndusU'ial Jnjt1rles to those ''arising out of a11d 
;e of, .. employment, ... " Article XX, section 21 ls nor as restrlctlve; 
s the Legislature to create n system of workmen's cdmpensatlon for 
talned la1 the cot1rse of employment. '.T.'he i11jury need not arise our of 
nenc. 
the compensation statutes of most states require the injmy to nl'ise our 
: In the course of employment some /11risdlcrlo11s permit reto'Very If only 
:ondltlons ls met, that ls, an li1j11ry is ~ompensable If it either ~dses out 
In the comse of employment. 58 Am. Jut,, Workmen's C1lmpensncion § 

tion Code section 12919, ln amhorfalng the,paymenr of compensation 
ulrlng a showing that death atose out of employment, finds legislative 
1 the latter clnss of enactmeuts. 
ictlon 12919 ls found in the Education Code rather than In workmen's 
)n portions of the Labor Code, sectio11 3201 01 seq., does not mllitate 
,elng a workmen's compensation measure, .A. stamte otherwise val!d 
because it is found lti any particular cocle; codification ls for the coo­
the people and 110 one of the codes ls limited to a particular subject. Iii 

,/1 28 Cal. 2d 91 (1946); P1'oc1orv. Jt1s#ce'J C01/l't1 209 Cal. 39 ( 1930); 
lttlle v. Mer1'ill, 141 Cal. 396 (1903); People v. Dm·b,•, 114 Cal. App. 
52), As was sald ln People v. Dal'b,•1 sttfmt, nt 424, "Whnt the Legisla­
the lnw, wheresoe.ver It be found." 
, of the foregoing, It is concluded that Education Code section 12919 is 
u1der Article XX, section 21, and ls not in conflict with other constito• 
siolls above cited. · 
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Opinion :No. CV 7·i-30.'i-11ta)' 20, l Q75 

SUBJECT, ~LINICS-~HYSICJANS-Ph1•siclao and surgeon mny be emplored 
hy duly licensed clime whlch orerates as oonprolit corporatl<ln, limits its sen·ices 
m membm of specific gruup, and bases charges on patient's ability to PB)', 

Requastedby: EXECUTIVE SECRETARY, STATE BOARD OF .MEDJCAL 
EXAMINERS 

Opinion by, EVELLB J. YOUNGER, Attorney General 
.Ma)'a S. Vnsq11ez, De1,ut)• 

Honorable Raymond Reid, Executive Secietary of the State Board df .Medical 
Examiners, has requested the oplulon of this office on the following question: 

May ,, community clinic lawfully employ a licensed physician and s111·i;;eon, 
and Jf so, uncle.r what circumstances? 

The conclt1slon Js: 

A community clinic ma)' JawfoJly emp.loy n licensed physician and surgeon 
prol'Jded that ci1e cllnic is duly Jlcensed, that charges, If any, nre based on ti,; 
patient's ability to pay, and that the medical ser.vices nre avallable to• s1,edf1c grou1, 
but 1101 co the general 1,ublic. 

ANALYSIS 
.Although this question is not presented wlth reference to a specific community 

clink, the issue orlglnnlly arose In connection with two particular nonprofit clinics 
created for the medical care of migrant farmwtltkers, and funded ln part by· federal 
grants, Sln~e there nre now sevetitl such cl!nlcs ~·lthln this State, the question has 
been presented, and ls treated, ge11ernlly, · 

Analysis of this issue invoh•es the longstanding pmhlhition of the practice of 
medicine by al'tipclnl legal entities. Pnc/fir, Employm In,. Co. v. C•,.P•ntor, 10 Cnl. 
App. 2d 592 (1935), .ln People v. l'11r.ifia Health Cot'f>., 12 Cal. 2d 156, 160 (1938), 
the court dl'ew n distinction between a "private pro.lit corporatia11" and a "phlfan­
throplc association" ln considetlng what co!lStitutes the corporate practice of medl­
dne. "Phllanthropk associations" "'e1·e defined as "fmternnl, religious, hospltnl, 
labor and ,,imilar benevolent ol'gnuizatlons furnishing medical services to members." 
The court stated at page 160: 

"The prlnclpal evils attendant upon corporate practice of medicine 
spmng from the confflct between the professional standards and obligations 
of rhe doctors nnd the profit iiiotlve of the corporate employe1·." 

Since this conlllct does not orlse wlth n nonprofit corporation, the comt concluded 
thnt 11ollcy objections to the corporate J>,actice of me<llclne should not apply to 
nonprofit lnstltlltlons. 

A 1951 nnieodment to Business nnd Pmfesslons Code section 2008 provided 
n flll'ther exception ns follows: . 
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"Corporations and othe1· artificinl legnl entities have 1io profosslonnl 
rlghcs, privileges or powers; provide<!, however, that the board muy ln 
lts sole discretion, alter s11ch examltlation, invilstlgation ·and document,uy 
evJdence us Jt may requjre, and under mies a11d regulations adopted 'by it, 
gtnnt 11ppmval of the cmployme1>t of physlduns and surgeons on n sulury 
basis by licensed ch,ritnble and eleemosynary instimtlons, foundations or 
c!lnics or by npprnved medical schonls operntlng clinics therewith, H no 
charge for professlunnl services rendered 1>ntlents ls made by any sudi 
institudon, fo,indntlon, clinic or school." 

It bas been previonsly stated by this office ,hat, puisuant to the express pro· 
vision of section 2008 of the Business and Professions Code, a nonproJic phllan­
throplc association may employ·on a salary basis a licensed physician nnd s1u·geon to 
render medlcal services co lts members. 54 Ops. Cnl. Atty. Gen. 126, 127 ( 1971); 
55 Ops. Cal. Any. Gen. 324,327 ( 1972); 55 Ops. Cal. Atty. Gen. 39, 40 ( 1972/. 

Prlor to 1971, the concept of a community clinic, fonded by· both grants of 
1,ubllc fonds nnd chnrltabl~ contributlons, and Intended to serve a J>•t\iculnr group 
defined by Its so~fal and economic charactedstics, was not widely known. Private 
pay clinks, permitted to operate until 1953, wete effectively abolishe<l ln that yenr 
by excluding them frc>m the classes of cl!nks enumerated In Health 1u1d Safety Code 
section 1203, The only clinics eligible for licensure under the provisions of the 
Health and Safety Code were those classed as charitable, teaching and. research, 
employer's and employees' clinics. However, by 1971, the Leglslarme snw n need to 
c14r.Jfy the status c,f exlsdng commlmlty clinics by- amending Health and Safety Code 
sectlm, l 203( a) to rend as follows: · · 

"In) A com1m1nity dlnic is n clinlc opernted by a uonprofit cnrporn­
tioo, supported nncl malntnlned in whole or in purr by d<!nntlons, beq1tests, 
gifts, gtnnts, fees, or cbntdbutions, 1n a conmrnnlty clinic any chn1·ges for 
adv lee, diagnosis, trentment, mcdlclnes, drugs, applfances 01· apparatus con· 
cerning bodily and mental dlsense and injuries are bnsed on abillt)'. of 
the patient to pny or such services are given witliout chaige. No corpol'a­
tion, <>ther than a nonprofit corpotation, no pnrt of the net c,1tnlJ\gs of 
whlch inure, or may lawfully inm-e, to the benefit of any private share­
holder or individual, shall operate a cc,mmunity dlnic. No natural person . -
ur pe1·sons shall operate a C{)Jmnunity clinic." 

In 25 Ops. Cal, Atty. Gen, ]98 /19~5/, this c,llicedetermitie<l that a physlclnn 
mny be,en1pk1yed on a snlaty basis by an e1nployer's m· employees' clinic, a slmution 
annlogous to tlm presented here. Although published before the 1971 amendment 
of Health and Snfety Code secticl11 1203 /a/, thn, opinion Is significant Jrnre because 
of its reliance upc>n 'the distinction between private p1·06t corpc>J-ntions amt nonpwfit 
cmporntlons. 

Io ndditicm, that opinion defined the relntlcmshlp between Health and Safety 
Code secdon 1203 nncl Business and Professions C.ode section 2393. Tt wns d•· 
tcrmlned, In 15 01;s, Cul. Atty. Gen, nt pngc 2(),J, thar ~ctlon 2:l93 is violnted 011,ly 

.'I 

1 
' 

when n li~titlo11s name ls 11scd to Identify the pe1·son of a prncti;loner 
nucomatically violated by designntion of the facility i? which he p~a 
Jictirlous title. V(lhere a designation refers to the establishment or fRCJI 
no l'lnlntion of the group prnctice proyislons of section 2393. 

A Jegisl•tive enactment supported chis conclusion by speci~caUy 
those phrsicians employed by a COll)01Unity clinic from the prov1sion1 
2393, Amended by urgency legislation effective Match 12, 1974 (S~at 
62/, section 2393 now states the requlre.ments !or a permit to use a fict 
as folfows ln relevant part: 

"(b) The place m· establishment, or the portion thereof, Jn w? 
applicant or applicants piactice, is owned or lensed by the a~phc 
nppllcants, and the practice conducted at such pince or estabhshm 
p,utlun thereof, is wholly owned and entl,ely conm'.lled by the ~P. 
or •ppJJcanrs provided, however, rha\ where the applicant ls work10 
community clink, as defined ln subdh•ision (a) of Section 1203 
Health and Saf_e,y Code, wbich contracts ,vlth · or employs Ind 
licensed physicians and smgeons to render medknl care, this subd 
shall nor apply. · 

" ( c) The name undet which the applicant or applicants proi 
operate contains at least one of the following designations: 'n 
group,' 'medical clink,' 'podiatrists' g1·oup,' 'podiatry IJ!'Oup,' 'podl 
clinic,' or 'podiatry clinic'; provided, however, that where the ap_ 
ls worklng for a community clinic, as defined Jo subdivision l 
Section 1203 of the Health and Safety Code, and ls subject to ch, 
limitations of Title 1.7, Cullfotnin Administrative Code, Section le 
subdl-'{ision shall not apply. In no case shall the name under whl 
apJ)Jicant or applicants propose to opernre contain the name or na. 
any of the physicians working for or employed by the comm11nity , 

The intent of. the I.egislature appears to be stated in the red· 
constin1tlng the necessiq, of designating the section 2393 amendment as 
statute. Section· 2 of Stats. 1974, ch. 62, sttttes as follows: 

11,f(;. * .. 
"There are several medicnl--free cllnlcs wl,lch aro being chal 

on their use of the desillnation 'cl!nk' and without such use th 
unable to effectively inform those citizens who are in need o 
setvices abo\11 the nvailabillty of tl,e services which they offer. Ir. 
that these medical-free clinics may achieve their goals it is necessa 
this act go Into immediate effect," 

The foregoing discussion of the stat11tory and Jndlclal authorlrles 
lends 11s to conclude that a community clinic mny employ a llcensed p~ 
s11tgeon, 

W/e a1·e also asked 1mder whnt circumstances a community clinic rr 
employ a Ucensed physician and surgeon. Acco1\{ingly, we refer R! 
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oq,o,atil\ns nnd !Jthc, nitlficinl legnl ontitlos l1ave no profes;Jonnl 
ptiyileg~s 01 powers, provJded, howovet, that the board may in 
disctetlon, ofter sud1 examh1atlon, ilwcstigatlon nnd documentn,)' 

:e ns it may require, and under mies a11d regulations adopted by Jt, 
pprova! of the employment of physicians and surgeons on a salary 
1 licensed dwlcable· nnd eleemosynary ,Institutions, foundations or 
01· by •Pl'roved medlcal schools operatlug clinics therew Ith, if 110 

for 1,rofessionul servkes rendered patients is made by auy such 
ion, founcladot1, dllllc or school." 

ieen prevhmsiy stated by this office that, pursuam to the express pro­
ctlon 2008 of the Business and Professions Co~e, a nonprofit phllan­
:lntlon may employ-on a salary basis a licensed physician and surgeon to 
cal services to its members. 5,J Ops. Cal. Atty. Gen. 126, 127 C 197l ) ; 
Atty. Gen. 324,327 (1972/; 55 Oj,1s, Cnl. Atty. Gen. 39, 40 ( 1972), 

l 1971, the concept of a community clinic, funded by both grants of 
, and charitable contributions, and intended to servo a particular group 
ts social and economic chatnctedstlcs, was not widely known. Private 
permitted to opernte until 195:>, were effective!)' abolished In that year 
, them from the classes of clinics emun'erated h1 Health and Safety Code 
l. '.fhe 011ly clfoics e11gible for llcensure under the provisions of the 
Safety /:ode '\\'ere those classed as charitable, teaching and research, 
nd employees' clir1ics. However, by 197 l, the I.egislat11re saw a need to 
ams of existing community clinics by amending Health and Safety Code 
(a) to rend as follows: 
n) A community clinic ls a clinic operated by a nonptolit corpora· 
pported and mailualned In whole or ln part by donations, bequests, 
:ants, fees, 01· contiib11tlons. In a community clinic any charges for 
diagnosis, treatment, medicines, drugs, appliances or apparat11s con-
bodily and mental disease nnd Injuries are based on ability of 

lent to pay or such services are gh·en without charge. No corpor•· 
her than a nonprofit corporation, no pntt of the net earnings of 
.nure, or may lawfully Inure, to the benefit of any private share, 
)r Individual, shall operate a·community clinic. No nntt1ral person 
ons shall operate n community cllnlc.''· 

)ps, Cal. Atty. Gen. 198 (i955), this oflice determined thar a physician 
loyed on a salary basis by an employer's or empJoi•ees' clh1lc, a slcuatinn 
that p1·esented here. Although published before the 1971 amendment 

.d Safety Code section l203(n/, that opinion is significant here because 
e u11011 rhe dlstlnctlun between J,riyate pi·ofit corpomtlons and nonprc,llt 

tlon, that opinion defined the relationship between Health and Safety 
1 1203 and Iiuslness and Professions Code section 2393, It was de-
25 01,s. Cal. Atty, Gen, at 11a~e 2QII, that section 2393 ls violated onlr 

.:t 
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when n lictltinu~ nnmc is used to ldc11tlf)' the person of • pntctltlilllt1· nml I., not 
nutomntlcnlly Yiolated by deslgnaclon of the facility Jn which· he pmtlces b}' n 
lictldous tJde. Where a designation refers to the establbhment or fncilit)', there is 
no 1•iofatio11 of the group practice provisions of secrhm 2393. 

A le[!lslntiYe enactment supported this conclusion by speclficnUy exempting 
those phrslcla11s employed b)' n community clinic from rhe provisions of section 
2393, Amended by urgency legislation effecth·e Marcl1 12, 1974 (Stats. 1974, ch. 
62), section 2393 now states the requirements for a permit to use a fictitious name 
ns fo!Jows in tele1•ant pnrt: 

" ( b) 'l'be pince or esrnb!Jshment, or the portion thereof, in which the 
applicant or applicants practice, ls owned or leased b)• the applicant ot 
•PJ?licnnts, and the prnccice conducted at such place or establishment, ot 
pOftion thereof, is wholly owned nnd entire!)• controlled by the appllcnnt 
or applicants pwvided, however, that where the applicant ls·worklng for n 
cc>mmunlti• clinic, as defin~d in subdivision (a) of Section 17.03 of the 
Health and Safety Code, which contracts with or employs l11dlvidt1al 
Hccrisecl physicians aud surgeons to render medical care, this subdivisio11 
shall not apply. 

" ( c) The name under which the app!lcn11t or applicants propose to 
01,ernte comains at !east one of the folJowJng designnrfons: 'meclicnl 
grC>up,' 'medicnl dJnJc,' 'podJnrrlsts' grot1p,' 'podiatry group,' 'p()cllatrists' 
clinic,' or 'podlntry cllolc'; provided, howeqer, that where the applicant 
is working for a community clinic, as defined in subdivision (a) of 
Sectklll 1203 of the Henlth and Safet)' Code; and is subject to the sftlne 
limitations of Title 17, Cnllfornin Ad.minlstrative Code, Section 161, this 
subdivision shall not apply. In no case shall the name under whlch the 
applicant ot applicants ptopose to oper~te contain the name or names of 
any of the physlciuns working for or employed by the community clinic." 

The intent of the Legislature appears to be stated in the recital of facts 
constituting the necessity of desi1111ntlng the sectiun 2393 amendment ·as an 11rge11ci• 
statute. Section 2 of Stats. 1974, ch. 62, states as follows: 

11,j(l * • 
"There are several medical-free cllolcs which are being challenged 

on their use of the deslgnatlon 'cllnlc' nncl without such use they are 
unable to effectively inform those cltbens wl10 ate in need of their 
servlces about the avaJlabllity of the services which they offer. In ordei 
that these meclical•free cllnics may achieve their goals it is necessary that 
this act go into immediate effect.'' 

The foregoing discussion of the statutory and judicial authoriclcs in this area 
lends us to conclude that a communlty cilnlc mny employ a licensed 1,hi•sidnn and 
s11rgeon. . 

We are also nsked under what circumstances a community cllnic may lawfully 
rm1,lm, a liren.~rrl 11hvsirlnn and snrveon Arrordinvlv. we refer avnlM ro chr 
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statement qumed nbc,ve, designatlng the section 2393 oi:nendmcnt ns urgeocy 
foglsJatlon. it appears the Legislature intended that these clinics should serve 11 

specific group, thnt is, "those citizens who ate in need of their services." That 
these clinks should limit their sen•Jces to u 1,nrclcular group ulso uppears to be 
necessary by the distinction drawn in P•opls v. P11cific He<1!th Corp., !llpra, between 
a profit corporation and a phllanthroplc associadon, the lntter described as follows 
nt page 160: " ... medical service is rendered co n llmlted and par1iculu1· group 
.os a result of cooperative assoclntion through membership in the fraternal or 
other association, or as II result of employment by some corporation which 'hns 
an Interest ln ,the henlth of its emJiloyees." See also, 25 Ops. Cal, Atty. Gen. 1981 

205-206 (1955/; 54 Ops. Cul. Atcy. Gen. 126, 127 (1971); 55 Ops. Cal. Atcy, 
Gen. 324, 327 (1~72); 55 Ops. Cal. Atty. Gen, 39, 40 (1972). Generally, thls 
requirement Is easlly met as most community clinics are intended to provide 
henlth cor.e to persons of a particular income level, occupadonal group, or geo­
grnphic ru:ea. 

There remnlns some doubt whether o communicy cHnlc may l'equlre chai·ges 
or fees. :Business and Professions Code section 2008, quoted above, provides 
that no charges shnll be made by charitable dln1cs for pl'ofessionnl services. Health 
nnd Safety Code section 1203 (n), above, provides: 

", . , nny cbarges for advice, diognosis, treatment, medicines, drugs, 
appliances, or opparntus concerning bodily nnd mental dlsense and fojuries 
are bnsed on ability of the patient to pay or such services are given wlthout 
charge." 

The former section ls prohibitive, while the latter is permissive. 

Alihough 17 Ops. Cal. Atty. Gen. 211 (1951) wns published before the 
omendment of Heolth nnd Sofecy Code section 1203(a), ic does offer some 
guidance. That opinion stnted that a clwge of an ndministratlve fee _did not 
prevent classification of a clinic as cbnrl«tb!e if the charge bore a proper relation• 
ship to actual ndministrative costs. 

Until lagislntlve enacrments bring Business nn<l Professions Code section 
2393 and Henlth nod Safety C,ide section 1203 ( a) into J,armony, we can r~solve 
this doubt by stating that n community clinic should charge only those foes based 
on ,the patient's ability to pay or the so.vices should be xenderecl without charge. 

Notwlthstnndlng the Issue of fees, we can ser 0111 the following cltc11mstnnces 
under which a community cllnlc may employ a l>hysician and surgeon;. 

1. 'rhe clinic must be licensed pursuant to section 1203 ( a) and operated as 
n nonprofit corporation. 

2. The clinic should limit Its services 10 members of.• specific gl'Oup, defined 
by such characteristics ns Income, occupational stams, or volunta1·y assodatlon. 

o. Churges, If ony, sho11ld be based on the ablllcy of che pnti~nt to pay. 

Opinion No. CV 74-289-May 8, 1975 

SUBJECT: FINANCIAL DlSCLOSUR.E-Governmenc Code section : 
uot require 11ss!,rnnt county u,.lmlnlstrntlve otncer to file linundnl 
statement. 

Requested by: COUNTY COUNSEi, YOLO COUNTY 

Opinion by: EVELLE ·J. YOUNGER, Attoxney Ge11eral 

Richard C. Creeg/jlln, Deputy 

· The Honoxable Chndes R. Mack, County Counsef of Yolo Cc 
requested n_n opinion on the following quesdon: 

Is an assistant county administrative officer req11ired by Governrr. 
section 3700 (Moscone Governmental ConAid of Interests and Dlsclosw· 
file a finnncial dJsclos.,ue st,ltei>lent? 

Out conclusion is: 

An assistnnt county administrative officer is not required by Governrr 
section 3700 to file a financial disclosure statement, 

ANALYSIS 
Yom· request states that Yolo County has by ordinance estubli 

office of County Executive under Government Code section 240001 subdlvl! 
designating an ndministrative oAicer ns a county officer. The problem ; 
concerns the appllcabillty of section 3700, a port of the Moscone Gove 
Conflict of Interests mid Disclosure Act, to n deputy or assistant of s11c 

Section' 3700 requires those persons enumerated in subdivision ( a; 
to file in Aprll· of each yenr • financial dlsclosui·e statement, This sut 

, which specifically includes county chief ndministtotlve officers, rends ns 

"'fhis section is npplicnble to constitutional ollicets, county su 
visors and chi,f t1rlmi11/Jt1'ati1'e offlc•l'J, mayors, city council meml 
members of planning commissions and planning o/licers of counties 
cities, an<l managets ond chief administracive officers of general ln\l 
charter cities." (Emphasis added.) 

While the provisions of the ~foscone Governmental Conlllct of 
und Disdos4re Act are to be liberally conmued to fully protect th 
interest (§ 3602), section 3700, subdivision /n), does not mention n d 
assistant county administrative officer, It therefore nppenrs that such 1,ositi, 
not intended to be covered by that section, applying the famillar rule of con 
that where a stntllte enumerates those things up1m which It is to ope1~ 
10 be const;ued as excluding from Its effect nil those not especially mt 

'All section references ore to the Government Cod, unless otherwise lndlcRte, 
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From: 
Sent: 
To: 
Subject: 

Kneer, Kathy <kathy.kneer@PPACCA.ORG> 
Friday, July 17, 2015 3;27 PM 
.Robert Sumner 
Update from Planned Parenthood re: video a:ttack 

Pla.nn.e:d 
P.arenthoodt 
Act. No matter what. 

Dear Robert, 

By now you may have heard about or have seen a heavily edited video of Dr. DeborahNucatola, senior director of 
medical services for Planned Parenthood Federation of America, which was released this week by an organization calling 
Itself the Center for Medical Progress. we·wanted you to hear directly from us that the claims being made are clearly 
outrageous and untrue. · · 

As you know, Planned Parenthood's top priority Is the.compassionate care that we provide to close to 1 million 
Californians every year. In the vldeo,..the staffer speaks In a way that does not reflect the compassion or care that we. 
know you expect. This Is unacceptable to us and we apologize for her tone and her .statements. 

In health care, it's common practice for patients to have the option to donate tissue to scientific research that.can help 
lead to medical breakthroughs, such as treatments and cures for serious diseases, Four of seven California Planned 
Parenthood affiliates have relationships with bona fide research centers that conduct lifesaving, cutting edge stem cell 

· and other research that ls aimed at curing heart disease, some cancers, Alzheimer's and other gene'tic di~cases. Neither 
Planned Parenthood nor our patients financially benefit from these donations. 

Planned Parenthood affillates which participate in the programs rigorously follow all state and feder.al laws: We obtain 
consent from patients using the highest ethical and legal standards. Some affiliates which participate In donation 
programs do.receive a modest fee, but that Is f,or administrative and t'ransportatioh costs. The allegation that. Planned 
Parenthood In anyway p'roflts from these donatl9ns Is absolutely untrue. ·· 

This heavily edited video was created and promoted by a welHunded group whose sole purpose is to damµge Planned 
Parenthood's reputation and to prevent us from providing preventive and reproductb,e health services that women 
need and deserve "" health services such as breast and cervlca I cancer screenings, STD testing and treatment, birth 
control and sexual health education. We know their real agenda, and they have never been doncern,ed with protecting 
the health and safety of women. Their mission ls to ban abortion completely and cut w9men off from care at Planned 
Parenthood and other health centers. 

Sadly we do not believe this is the end to their, charges against Planned Parenthood. If you have any questions or seek 
additional information, please do .not hesitate to call us. · 

Sincerely, 

Kathy Kneer 

1 



President and CEO 
Planned Parenthood Afflllates of CA 
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From: 
Sent: 
'to': 
Subject: 

JIii and Robby 

Parker, Beth <beth.parker@PPACCA.ORG> 
Tuesday, July 21, 2015 9:42 AM 
JIii Habig; Robert Sumner 
Planned Parenthood: videos 

A second video was released today. We believe we are fully compllant with all federal and state laws and are 
investigating the situation. Please feel free to reach out to me If you have any questions or concerns . 

. Beth 

Beth H, Parker, Chief Legal Counsel . . 
Planned Parenthood Affiliates of California I 555 Capito I Mall, Suite 510 I Sacramento; CA 95814 
916.446.5247 ext. 102 office I 916.441.0.632 fax I - cell 

111e1mad llilmil111ladJlffill®'Slll\ !l1tl~ur,nti, 

i'he contents of this e-mail message. Including any attachments, are Intended solely for the use of the person or entity.to whom thee· 
m1i!II was addressed. It contalM information that may be pr<;iteotad by the f:!ltorney-ollei;it privilege, work~product doctrine, or other 
priVlleges, and may be restricted from tjisclosure by applicable state and federal law. If you are not the intended recipient 9f this 
message, be advised that anY, dissemination, distribution, or use of the content$ of this message Is strlotly prohlblt~,d. If you have 
received this message In error, or are not the named reciplent(s), please notify the sender immediately by reply e•mall or by phone at 
(916) 446·524'7 ext. 108 and delete this message from your compLtter. Thank you. . · 

I 

' 
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.Ji_ll .. H .. a_b_l.,g--~-----..-.... -------···-·,· ...... · -··------------.. : .. ::.~~= 

Robert Sumner . : : .... : . . ',,. 
',•',l 'Fi'bm:. ·. 

.. Sent:· Tuesday, March 29, 2016 4:29 PM\,·:. 1·:., - • • • •• • • · . • • ••••• ;· 

Romero, G:hristir.ia '· · ,.:.. .. ·. ·.... ·. · · .· · . ·. :: ·. ,;. , · ,,:·· · To:, 
Subject:· RE:.Call wltb:~ob~rt ~umner (AG's·Of(ice)' ~~:.~B.J6,71'..(Illegal'Vic!eo Taping)\ .. ': .... ; ·:,-.. , ·t ·,·, 

0 ,.r,.,,,..,=J/,, • '°,:~ • '' ," 1 ~ ,,'• , ' ,' ', ' :,:::, 
1

1 
I : I ' , 

1 

110
~J.,: ,t '- o , • 

0
' , , , o , ,' : ~ 1 

1 
' 1 

,.,,.,,,./ ..: .. ~,: f' '"', 0 ' ', j lo I t ' ', ' . ... ..··· . ,,· '.' ., ..... 
'•t, 

. - . . ' ~ Jlll.Habjg@dol.es1,gov I • •,'. • ~ ' • • • f 

From: Romero, Christina [mallto1Chrlstlna.Romero@PPACCAiORG] 
Sent: Tuesday, Mar<::h 29, 2016 4:28 PM 
To: Robert Sumner · . ·· 
subject: RE: Call with Robert Sumner (ft:G's Office) Rf::: AB 1671 (Illegal Video Tap~ng):. · · 

Absoli,Jtely.J If you senq me her email I can ·add her to the· invite.@ . .. · 

· Christina Ro~~ro~·Legisl~tive Director . 

,,,• 

' . ,, . 

Pla.nned Parenthood Affll.lates of California I 555 ~ I Sacramento, CA 95814 .. 
916-446-5247 1· 916-441-0632 fax - . ·. . . 
www.ppactionca.org 

Planned 
Parenthood"' 
Acit, l\'o mtntcrw1w.: . 

From: Robert Sumner [mallto:Robert.Sumner@dol.ca.gov] . . : 
Sent: Tuesday, March 29, 2016 4:27 PM 
lfo: Romero, Christina. · .. .. 
Subject: RE: Call with Robert Sumner (AG's Office} RE: AS 1671 {Illegal Video Taping) 

Cool If I lnylte Jill Habig l.n case she can J~ln? 

·----Original Appointment-···· . 
From: Romero, Christina [mailto;Chrlstlna.Romero@PPACCA.ORG] 
Sent: Tuesday, March 29, ~016 4:26 PM · · 
To: Romero, Christina; Robert Sumner; Parker, Beth; PPAC Line 
subject: Call with Robert Sumner (AG's Office) RE: AB 1671 (Illegal Video TapiJJg) 
When: Friday, April 08, 2016 3:30 PM-4:00 PM (~TC- • . 
W~ere: In person: 555 ~apltol Mall ?ver the phone: 

.. ' · .. 
:·' 

CONFIDENTIALITY NOTICE: This communication with its content.s niay .cont.ain c~n:fidentlal and/or legally 
privileged information. It is solely f9r the use of.tlie intended recipient(s). Unauthorized interception, review, 

. . use or disclosure is prohibited and may viol!:!-te applicable laws including the ~lectronic Cornmuni~~tions 
Privacy Act. If you are not the intended recipient; please contact the sender and destroy all ~op'ies of the 

. communication. ' '' . 
. 1 

... ,, ' ,, .. 
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XA VIBR BECERRA 
Attorney General of California 
ROBERT MORGESTER 
Senior Assistant Attorney Geni:,ral 
JOHNETTE V. JAURON 
Deputy Attorney General 
State Bar No. 183714 

455 Golden Gate Avenue, Suite 11000 
San Francisco, CA 94102 
Telephone: (415) 703-1662 
Fax: (415) 703-i234 . 
E~mail: J ohnette,J auron@doj.ca.gov 

Attorneys for the State of California 7 

8 

9 

SUPERIOR COURT OF THE STATE OF CALIFORNIA 

SAN FRANCISCO SUPERIOR COURT 

10 

11 . THE PEOPLE OF THE STATE OF 
· CALIFORNIA, 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

V, 

DAVID ROBERT DA.LEIDEN and 
SANDRA SUSAN MERRITT, 

Plaintiff, 

Defendants. 

Case No. 

CRIMINAL COMPLAINT 

Date: 
Time: 
Dept: 
Judge: 

19 ·XAVIER BECERRA~ ATTORNEY GENERAL OF THE STATE OF CALIFORNIA, upon 

20 oath of the undersigned, information and belief complain against the Defendants, DAVID 

21 ROBERT DALEIDEN and SANDRA SUSAN MERRITT, for the crimes as follows: 

..,. 23 On April 6, 2014, in the County of San Francisco, in the State of California, defendants 

24 DAVID DALEIDEN and SANDRA SUSAN MERRITT did commit a felony in violation of 

25 Penal Code section 632(a) in that each did intentionally and without the consent of all parties to a 

29 confidential communication, by means of an electronic amplifying and recording device, 

27 eavesdrop and record the confidential communication between themselves and DOE 1. 

28 
1 

Daleiden Complaint SF2016300608 



1 COUNT2 . 
2 On April 6, 2014, in the County of San Francis<:9, in the State of California, defendants 

3 DAVID DALEIDEN and SANDRA SUSAN MERRIT!', did commit a felony in violation of 

4 Penal Code section 632(a) in that each did intentionally and without the consent of all parties to a 

5 confidential communication, by means of an electronic amplifying and recording device, 

6 eavesdrop and record the confidential communication between themselves and DOE 2 . 

. 7 COUNT3 

8 On April 7, 2014, in the County of San Francisco, in the St~te of Californ~a, defendants 

9 DAVID DALEIDEN and SANDRA SUSAN MERRITT, did commit a felony in violation of 

10 Penal Code .section 632(a) in that eaeh did intentionally an,d without the consent of all parties to a .. 

11 confidential communication, by means of an electronic ampli~ying and recording device, 

12 eavesdrop and record the confidential communication,between themselves and DO~ 3. 

~ 00Ufil4 

14 On A~ril 7, 2014, in the County of San F:rancisco, in the State of California, defendants 

15 DA VIP DALEIDEN. and SANDRA SUSAN MERRiTT, did commit a felony in violation of 

16 Penal Code section 632(a) in that each did intentjonally and without the consent of all parties to a 

17 confidential eommunication, by means of an electronic amplifying and recording device, 

18 eavesdrop and record the confidential communication between themselves and DOE 4. 

19· COUNTS 

20 On Apri~ 8, 2014, in the County of San Francisco, in the State of California, defendants 

'21 DAVID DALEIDEN and SANDRA SUSAN MERRITT, did commit a felony in violation ot' 

22 Penal Code section 632(a) in that each did intentionally and without the consent of al! parties to a 

23 confidential communication, by means of an electronic amplifying and recording device, 

24 eavesdrop and record the confidential communication between themselves and DOE 5. 

25· COUNT6 

26 On April 8, 2014, in the County of San Francisco, in the State of California, defendants 

27 DAVID DALEIDEN and SANDRA SUSAN MERRITT, di_d commit a felony in violation of 

28 Penal Code section 632(a) in that each did intentionally and without the consent of all parties to a 
2 ' 
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.. 

1 confidential communication, by means of an electronic amplifying and recording device, 

2 eavesdrop and record the confidential commu:o;ication between themselves and DOE 6. 

3 COUNT7 

4 On April 8, 2014, in the County of San Francisco, fa the State of California, defendants 

5 DAVID DALEIDEN and SANDRA SUSAN MERRITT, did commit a felony in violation of 

6 Penal Code section 632(a) in that each did intentionally and without the consent of all parties to a 

7 confidential communication, by means of an electronic amplifying and recording device, · 

8 eavesdrop and record the confidential communication between themselves and DOE 7. 

9 COUNTS 

10 On April 8, 2014, in the County of San Francisco, in the State of California, defendants 

11 DAVID DALEIDEN and SANDRA SUSAN MER.R+TI', did commit.a felony in violation of 

12 Penal Code section 632(a) in tha,t each did intentionally and without the consep.t of all parties to a 
13 confidential communication, by means of an electronic amplifying and recording device, 

14 eavesdrop a~d record the confidential com1;t1unication between themselves and DOE 8. 

15 COUNT9 

l(j On July 25, 2014, in the County of Los Angeles, in the s·tate of California, defendants 

17 DAVID DALEIDEN a1:1,d SANDRA SUSAN MERRITI', di~ commit a felony in violation of 

18 .Penal· Code section 632(a) in that each did intentionally and without the consent ofall parties to a 

19 confidentiai' communication, by means of an electronic amplifying and recording device, 

20 eavesdrop and record the confidential comrpunication between themselves and DOE 9. 

21 COUNTlO 

22 On. February ~. 2015, in the County of Los Angeles, in the State of California, defendants 

23 DAVID DALEIDE~ and SANDRA SUSAN MERRITI', did commit a felony in violation of 

24 Penal Code section 632(a) in that each did intentionally and without th~ consent of all parties to a 

25 confidential communication, by means of an electronic amplifying and recording device, 

26 eavesdrop and reco~d the confidential communication betw~en themselves and DOE'lO. 

27 II 

28 II 
3 
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1 COUNT 11. 

2 On February 6, 2015, in the County qf Los Angeles, in the State of California, defendants 

3 DAVID DALEIDEN and SANDRA SUSAN MERRITI, did commit a felony in violation of 

4 Penal Code section 632(a) in that each did intentionally and without the consent ofall parties to a 

S confidential communication, by means of an electronic amplifying and recording device, 

· 6 eavesdrop and :record the confidential communication between themselves an<;'! DOE 11. 

7 COUNT12 

8 . On May 22, 2015, in the County of El Dorado, in the State of California, defendants 

9 DAVID DALEIDEN and SANDRA SUSAN MERRI'IT, did commit a felony hi violation of 

10 Penal Code section 632(a) in that each did intentionally and without the consent of all parties to a 

11 · confidential communication, by means of an electronic amplifying and recording device, 

12 eavesdrop and record the confidential communication between themselves and DOE 12. 

13 COUNT13 

14 On May 22, 2015~ in the County of El Dorado, in the State of California, defendants 

15 DAVID DALEIDEN and SANDRA SUSAN MERRITI, did commit a felony in violation of 

16 Penal Code section 632(a) in that each did infentionally and without the consent of all parties to a 

17 confidential communication, by means of an electronic amplifying and recording device; 

18 eavesdrop and record the confidential communication between themselves and DOE 13. 

19 COUNT14 

20 Qn May 22, 2015, in the ~aunty of El Dorado, in the ·state of California, defendants . 

21 DAVID DALEIDEN and SANDRA SUSAN MERRI'IT, did commit a felony in violation of 

22 Penal Code section 632(a) in that each did intentionally and without the consent of all parties to a 

23 confidential communication, by means of an electronic amplifying and recording device, 

24 eavesdrop and record the confidential communication between themselves and DOE 14. 

25 COUNT15 

26 On and between October 9, 2013 and July 22, 2015, in the Counties of San Francisco, El 

27 Dorado, and Los Angeles in the State of California, the.crime of CONSPIRACY, in violation of 

28 · Penal Code section 182(a)(l) a felony, was committed by DAVID ROBERT D:ALEIDEN AND 
4 
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5 
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7 
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10 

li 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 · 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

26 

27 

28 

SANDRA SUSAN MERRITT, who did Willfully and unlawfully conspire together to comm~t the 

crime of Recording a Co:Q.fide:f!-tial Communications, 632( a) of the California Penal Code, a· 

felony, pursuant to and for the purpose of carrying out the objects. and purposes of the aforesaid 

conspiracy, defend~nts committed the following over,t act(s): 

1. On or about October 1, 2013, DAVID DALEIDEN accessed and took, documents 

from Stem Express email system using a password from a term~ated Stem Express employee; 

2. On.Qctober 11, 2013, DAVID DALEIDENfiled Biomax Procurement Services,. 

LLC, as a Business Entity in the State of California, with the Agent of process as Philip Cronin 

and CEO as Susan Tennenbaum; 

3. On and between November 27, 2013 and March 27, 2014, individuals who 

represented themselves as Biomax employees corresponded with employees of the National 

Abortion Federation (NAP) using the email address of biomaxprocurementservices@gmail.com 

and susan@biomax.com, to apply for exhibit space at the San Francisco NAF conference as 

Brianna Allen and Susan Tennenbaum; 
( 

4. On February 5, 2014, DAVID DALEIDEN and SANDR;A SUSAN MERRITT signed 

an Exhibitor Agreement listing Susan Tennenbaum as CEO of BioMax, Robert Sarkis as Vice 

President, and a $3235 registration fee paid using Philip Cronin's VISA ci:µ-d; 

5. On and bett:veen April 5, 2014 a~d April 8, ~014, defendants DAVID DALEIDBN 

and SANDRA SUSAN MERRITT posed as BioMax employees to gain access to the NAF 

confer~i;ice· in San Francisco, where they secretly video recorded conference speakers, vendors 

and attendees; 

II 

/I 

II 

II 

II 

II 

II 
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" 

1 6. On and between July 25, 2014 and October 3, 2915, defendants DAVID DALEIPBN 

2 and SANDRA SUSAN MBRRITI, posing as BioMax employees, set up and secretly video 

3 recorded private meetings with health care professionals in Century City (Los·Angeles), Pasadena 

4· (Los Angeles),El Dorado (El Dorado), and San Francisco. 

5 

6 

7 

8 

9 

10 

1i 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20· 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

26 

27 

28 

Dated: March 28, 2017 
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Respectfully SulJmitted, 

XAVIER BECERRA 
Attorney General of California 

(_r~-~~~ 
1~-Z::r:t.::121&-'i4-'if'~O:..=c>--
Deputy Attorney General 
Attorneys for Plaintiff 
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A#idavit in Support of Arrest Warrant 
City and County of San Francisco 

I, BRIAN CARDWELL, declare: 

That I am a California Peace Officer per California Penal Code section.830.1, employed 
as a Special Agent by the California Department of Justice (DOJ), Bureau of Investigation (Bl), 

· eCrime Unit ( eCU), and 'I allege and state the :following: 

1. S....ummary of Probable Cause 

On December 2, 2015, the CA DOJ received a request to investigate whether David 
DALEIDEN, his organization, the CeI1ter'for Medical Progress (CMP), and any co~conspirators, 
broke California laws regarding the surreptitious audio/video recordings of healthcare and 
biomedical services employees in California. DALEID~N alleged publicly and to law 
enforcement that the employees were transferring aborted fetal tissue for profit in violation of 
California law. Special Agents :from Bl initiated an investiga~on into DALEIDEN and his co~ 
conspirators. 

During the course of this investigation~ agents from BI learned that DALEIOEN created a 
phony fetal tissue procurement company, BioMax Procurement Services (BioMax), for the sole 
purpose of gaining access to various conferences hosted by Planned Parenthood, the National 
Abortion Federation (NAF) and others affiliated with women's healthcare services. DALEIDEN 
created a website, www.biomaxps.com, misrepresenting the company as a legitimate biomedical 
research service. He, and at least two others, used fraudulently created California driver's 
licenses (CDLs) fo the name of Robert Sarkis (DALEIDEN), Susan Tennenbaum (Sandra 
MERRITT) and Briana Allen ~riana BAXTER) to obtain a BioMax vendor booth at the NAF 
conference in San Francisco, California, April 5 through April 8, 2014. While at the San 
Francisco conference, DALEIDEN, posing as Robert Sarkis, and MERRITI, posing as Susan 
Tennenbaum, used covert video/audio equipment to secretly record conversations they initiated 
with eight conference attendees. . . 

From July 2014,. through September 2015, D.ALEIDEN and MERRl'IT exploited the 
vetting procedures and connections they made as BioMax representatives to induce meetings 
witli ~ix individual healthcare and biomedical re~earch providers in Los Angel~s, California, and 
El Dorado, California. DALEIDEN and MERRITT, while wearing concealed audio/video digital 
recording devices, secretly recorded the meetings they initiated under false pretenses. Several of 
the secretly filmed video segments were edited and subsequently released for public viewing via 
CMP' s website in July of 2015. Immediately afterward, several of the healthcare providers who 
had been named arid identified in the edit~d videos, began receiving personal death threats. 

1 



The relevant identifying inforniation for the 14 victims is contained in the "Confidential 
Attachment" incol.J)orated herein. Declarant requests that the "Confidential Atta9lunent11 be 
brdel'ed sealed pursuant to California R1.:tle of Court 243 .1 ( d) in order to protect the confidential 
personal info1mation of the individuals. (See generally Pen. Code, §§ 293.5 and 964) 

II. poJ Investigation 
A. The Sham Corporation: BioMax Procurement Services 

DALEIDEN has admitted that in October of 2013, he communicated via FaceBook with 
Holly O'DONNELL, a recently te11ninated employee of Placerville biotech fn111 StemExpress. 1 

O'DONNELL gave DALEIDEN the password to her fo1mer en1ployer's email account. 
DALEIDEN admitted using the password to access the StemEx:press internal system and take 
docu11:1,e:nts, read emails and download attachments contafrrlng confidential data. That stolen 
confidential data was subsequently published online a1+d appears to be the source for 
manufactured promotio;nal matedals profe1Ted by DALEIDEN in the name of Bi?Max 

. Procurement Services. 

Through their attorney, NAF provided DOJ emails regarding the registration BioM~ 
Procmement Services submitted for the 2014 NAF Conference in San Francisco. In those emails, 
representatives using the emails biomaxprocurementservices@gmail.com and · 

. susan@biomElXJ?s.com communicated the request to exhibit at the conference as a vendor. A · 
Febiuary 7, 2014 email introduces Robert Sarkis as the new Bio Max VP of Operations, with an · 
associated email ofbob@biomaxps.com. 

NAF also provided DOJ additional conference materials submitted by BioMa.x 
Procurement Services as pait of the registration process for the NAP conference. An Exhibitor 
Agree1nent signed on February 5, 2014, with the name Sttsan·Te1menbaum, CEO ofBioMax 
ProC1..11·ement Services, was suppo1ted by two photocopied California Driver's Licenses in the 
names of Susa11 Tem1e11baum and Robe1t Daoud Sarkis .. The conf~1·ence registration, purchased 
.as a co1mnercial fnm with an exhibit booth and attendance at extra educational events, 
documents payment of$3235 from the Visa card of Phillip Cronin. 

Aiticle oflnco1poration for BioMax., L.L.C., were filed in California 011 Octobe1· 11, 
2013, with a registered Agent of Process as Philip C1'oni11. Phillip Cro~n provided DOJ emails 
regarding the early development of the BioMax idea fi.-0111: DALEIDEN. In those emails, Cronin 
agreed to act as Agent of Process for BioMax until Daleiden told hin:1: he could resign il1 

1 Daleiden Dep. 286:8~288:12, Dec. 30, 2015, StemExpress LLC, et al. v. Daletden, et al., Case No.BC589145 (Ca. 
~~~ ' . 
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anticipation of the 11ext phase of'his project. The fil'st such email on August 26, 2013, came from 
david.daleiden@gmai1.com. Ill that email, DALEIDEN introduced himself and asked C1'oni11 to 
participate as Agent of Process i11 his new 001poration. After sevexal additional emails f:Uld 
meetings, Cronin agreed to serve as agent after receiving the representation from an individual 
named Katie Short that "David & Co. don't expect there to be anythmg served. because their . . 
corporation is not actually going to be conduct!ng any business. They are going to toy with 
conducting business, but stop well sho1t of signing any contr8:cts or the like." Cronin filed a 
rej!ignation as Agent of Process on July 7, 2015 1:1:t the instigation of DALEIDEN, who -sent an 
email on July 3, 2015, telling Cronin that he "may wish to resign now.because the project was 
drawing to a close." 

According to the internet domain history of the website Biomaxps.co1n, it was created 
front the same IP address as the CMP website through registra1· BlueHost on September 2, 2013. 
The website registrant setting, a Dom~ Privacy Service, was changed to David Daleiden on 
Elkhorn Blvd in Sacramento o,;i October 5, 2015. The piivacy setting was replaced on October 
24, 2015. 

During the investigation, DOJ BI agents served a ~earch wan·ant at DALBIDBN's 
residence at 8400 Edinger Pl 07, Huntington Beach, California, and discovered printed paper 
copies of the same fake CDL's that were presented by BioMax to NAF for the 2014 conference. 

· Also in the l'esidence was promotional documentation for BioMax. BioMax Procurernent 
Services business cards in the name of Robert Sarkis and Susan Tennenbaum., sophisticated 
recording equipmeJ:J.t, and several thousand gigabytes of digital evidence. · 

Because DALEIDEN's attomey has claimed that material subject to attoiney client 
privilege would be intermingled withln all but the video recordings, all evidence seized. by search 
warrant on April 5, 2016 was forensically acquil'ed and in1aged, but not searched. I have 
reviewed only those video files acquired from :the digital evidence seized from DALEID~N's 
residence, just over 2,300 video files, and I have dete1mined that there are fomteen (14) victims 
ofDALEIDEN',s and MERRITT's conduct within California: recording a confidential 
coi.wersation without knowledge or consent, a felony, in violation of Penal Code section 632. 

B. J!)ight San Francisco Victims 

On A:,ugust 29, 2016, I extracted just over 2,300 video files fro11.1 the digital evidence , 
seized from DALEIDBN's residence, and started l'eviewing the videos in an attempt to identify 
individuals who were stu1·eptitiously recorded by DALBIDBN an4 MERRITT. On September 

3 



15, 2016, I completed reviewing the videos and identified several victims who DALEIDEN and 
or MERRITI secretly recorded. I personally viewed the video files I was authol'ized to access. 2 

In reviewing the digital video evidence, I saw several individuals who appear to have 
been recorded without their knowledge in the sequestered conference EJXea at the April 2014 NAF 
Conference in San Fra11cisco at the Westin St. Francis hotel. Usil1g the names the victims used to 
h1troduce themselves in the recordings, and in reviewing the file names themselves, I was abie to 
identify and locate eight individuals. 

I reviewed a video file which appeared to have been taken of a conversation with DOE 1 
at the NAF conference on Apiil 6, 2014. On January 9, 2017, i'talked with DOE l regarding the 
April 2014 NAF Conference in San Francisco. She stated that she remembered talking with 
Robert Sarkis at the BioMax booth in the vendor area of the conference. She said that she did 
have an expectatio11 of privacy in the co1wersationin that she would not have had it in. public. 
She did not know she was being recorded and did not consent to it. 

· I reviywed a video file which appeared to have been taken of a conversation with DOE 2 . · 
at the NAP ~onference onAp1il 6, 2014. On November 10, 2016, I contacted DOE 2 and 
informed him that I believed he had been sw:reptitiou.sly filmed at the April 2014 NAF 
Conference in San Francisco·. I asked DOE 2 if he recalled meeting DALEID~ who 
represented himself as Robert Sa:rkis, an employee of BioMax. DOE 2 said he did not remember 
the conversation, but felt the conference was a p1ivate place whe1·e he could discuss matters in 
plivate With other conference attendees. He had no knowledge of the re.cording and did not 
consent to it having been taken. · 

I reviewed a video file which appeai·ed·to have been taken of a conversation with DOE 3 
at the NAP conference onAplil 6, 2014. On November 10, 2016, I contacted DOE 3 and 
hlfo11ned her about the investigation. I told DOE 3 that! believed she was surreptitiously 
recorded by DALEIDEN at the NAF conference hosted in San Francisco CA in Aplil 2014. I 

. asked DOE 3 if she recalled meeting DALEIDEN who rep1·esented himself as Robert Sarkis, an 
employee of Bio Max. DOE 3 stated a man approached her at the co11ference wl').o told her he 
worked for a fetal tissue procurep.1ent company, but she did 11ot recall his .name. DOE 3 said she 
absolutely felt the conversation was confidential, and that is why conference attendees are vetted 
before being allowed into .a NAF conference, so attendees do not have to won·y about issues such 
as being secretly recorded. DOE 3· stated she did not know she was being 1:ecorded and believed 
the conference was a pl'ivate place where confere11ce attendees could co1ru11mlicate privately. 

·
2 1 am aware of the provisicms of Penal Code section 633.5 under which recording Is authorized under limited 
circumstances, and I did not observe any of those enumerated circumstances to be present. 
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I reviewed a video file which appeared to have been take11 of a conversation with DOE 4 
at the NAF conference onAp1il 6, 2014. On November 16, 2016, I talked with DOE 4, an · 
employee of a California medical clinic, regarding the investigation. I asked DOE 4 if she 
recalled speaking with DALEIDEN, who posed as Robert Sarkis, an employee of Bio Max. DOE· 
4 stated she was at the NAF conference hosted in San Francisco, CA in April 2014, and recalled 
talking to DALEIDEN. DOE 4 stated DALEIDEN approached her at previot1s conferences and 
inquired about tissue procurement. DOE 4 stated she felt all the conversations she had with 
DALEIDEN, including the one in San Francisco, were confidential. DOE 4 stated she did not 
know DALEIDEN was recording her and did not gi:Ve him permission to do so. 

' . 
I reviewed a video file which appeared to have been taken of a conversation with DOE 5 

at the NAF conference on April 6, 2014. On.November 17, 2016, I talked with DOE 5 and 
informed her about the inves:tigation. I asked DOE 5 if she 1·ecalled speaking with DALEIDEN, 
who posed as Robert Sarlds, an employee ofBioMax. DOE 5 stated she was at the NAF · 
conference in San Francisco in April 2014, and recalled talking with DALEIDEN and MERRlTT 
at the BioMax booth. DOE 5 said D,ALEIDEN was interested in fetal tisst.1e procurement, ru.1d 
she believed the conversation was private. DOE 5 said she did not give DALEIDEN pennission 
to record her and already knew about the recording because video of her had been released on 
the internet.· DOE 5 said. after the video release, ·individuals protested at her facility, with her 

· name wdtte11 on signs. For her safety, DOE 5 had to hire security. 

I reviewed a video file which appeared to have been taken of a conversation With DOE.6 
attheN.AF conference onApdl 6, 2014; On November 16, 2016, I talked withDOB61·egarding · 
the investigation. I asked DOE 6' if he recalled speaking with DALEIDEN, who posed as Robert . 
Sarkis, an employee of BioMax. DOE 6 stated he was at the NAF conference hosted in San 

. Francisco, CA in April 2014, and l'ecalled talking to DALEIDEN at the BioMax booth. DOE 6 
stated DALEIDEN approached him at several conferences, ana' at times was assertiv.e with his 
questioni11g. DOE 6 stated he did not give DALEIDEN pe11nissio11 to record him and felt the · 
conversation he had with DALEIDEN in San Francisco was co1rli.de11tial. 

I reviewed a video file which appeai·ed to have been taken of a conversation with DOE 7 
at the NAF conference on Aplil 6, 2014. On November 10, 2016, I contacted DOE 7, and 
hlfonned hel' that I believed she had been surreptitiously filmed at the April 2014 NAF 
Conference in San Francisco. I asked DOE 7 if she recalled m~eting DALEIDEN who 
represented himself as Robert Bru:kis, an employee of Bio Max. DOE 7 said she did not 
relllember hiln, put that she felt the conference was a private place where she could discuss 
matters in private with other conference attendees. She did not know the video had bee11 taken 
. a11d did not give her permission for the conversation to be recoi-ded. 
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I reviewed a video file which appeared to have been taken of a conversation with DOE 8 
at the NAF conference on April 6, 2014. On January 19, 2017, I talked with DOE 8 regarding the 
Aplil'2014 NAF Conference in San Francisco. DOE 8 vaguely rernernbered having a 
conversation with DALEIDEN at the BioMax booth, and st(;lted it was a plivate conversation 
among her peers, and not a conversation she would have had :iJ.1 public. She did not know she was 
being recorded and did not give anyone pennission to reco;i:d it. 

C. Three Los Angeles Victims 

I reviewed video obtained :6:om the seized qigital evidence in which DALEIDEN and 
MERRlTT can be seen utilizing undercover audio/video recording devices during a meeting with 
DOE 9 at a~·estaurant 011 July 25, 2014. In the video, DALEIDEN and MERRlTT posed as. 
Sarkis and Te1menbaum, employees ofBioMax, and met with physician DOE 9 at the Kwft 
restaurant, 10100 Constellation Blvd., Century City, CA. 

On September 2, 2015, DOB 9 reported to Los Angeles Police Department in Report 
Number 15~916205, that she realized the meeting had been recorded after she began receiving 
numerous death tlu:eats via email. DOE 9 believed she received death threats because excerpts 
of the video were released for public viewing on CMP's website on July 14, 2015. On 
December 18, 2015, agents from BI interviewed DOE 9 who stated she believed the conversation 
at the l"estaurant was confidential, and the video was taken without her knowledge or consent. 

I reviewed video obtained from the seized digital evidence in which DALEIDEN and 
MERRlTT can be seen utilizing undercover audio/video recording de:vices during a meeting with 
physician DOE 10 and clinician DOE 11 on February 6, 2015. fa the video, DALEIDEN and 
MERRlTT posed as Sarkis and Tennenbaum, 111.et with DOE 10 and DOE 11 at the Bistro . 
restaurant, One Colorado, 41 Hugus Alley, Pasadena, CA. 

On August 25, 2015, clinicians DOE 10 and DOE lf reported to the Pasadena Police 
Depaii1ne11t in Report Number 15-011054, that they had beeri secretly recorded by DALEIDEN. 
DOE 10 and DOE 11 did not learn the 1neeting was recorded until CMP released edited portions 
of the video on their website in July of 2015. A.t the restaurant meeting initiated by Biomax, 
DOE 10 and DOE 11 believed they were meeting Robe1i Sarkis, VP of BioMax, regarding 
biomedical tissue donations. Unbeknownst to DOE 10 and DOE 11, the meeting was secretly 
recorded without their'pemtlssion via audio a11d video, Pasadena Detective Edgar Sru.1chez 
conducted followMup into copies of two fake CDL's presented to DOE 10 and DOE 11 in.the 
name of Sarkis and Tennenbaum. Detectives independently showed DOE 10 and DOE 11 photo 
lineups of DALEIDEN and MERRITT, who positively identi:fied them as the two posing as 
BioMax representatives Sarlds and Tennenbaum. · 
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D. The EI Dorado Conduct 

On May 21, 2015, DALEIDEN reported to the El Dorado County Sheriff's Departme11t 
(BDSO) that Placerville biotech company StemE:x:press was sellh1g human fetal tissue for profit. 
In Report BG 1506682, DALEIDEN admitted to secretly recording employees of Plru.med 
Parenthood, and provided to EDSO a thumbdrive of documents stolen from SteniExpress wpich 
he claimed proved his allegation that StemExpress transfen·ed fetal tissue for profit. Dtuing the 

· meeting, Detective Prencip~·speci:fically inquired about the consent of the employees he 
recorded. DALEIDEN responded that his sun:eptitious recordings had occun·ed in "1 party 
conse.nt" states, and that he knew California was a 'two party consent state for recording. After an 
investigation including at least fotu· sepai-ate employee interviews,the El Dorado Sheriffs 
Depru.iment determined that there was 116 violation of California law by. Ste1nE:x:press. 

I reviewed video obtained from the digital evidence seized :from DALEIDEN in which 
DALEIDEN and MERRITT can be seen utilizing undercover audio/video recording .devices 
dm'ing a meeting with three StemExpress employees on May 22, 2015, one day after 
,DALEIDEN reported the allegation about StemExpress to El Dorado. in the video, DALEIDEN 
and MERRITT posed as Sarkis and Tennenbaum, and met with DOE 12, DOE 13 and DOE 14. 
The meeting took place at Bistro 33, 4364 Town Center Boulevard, El Dorado Hills. CA. 

On July 19, 2015, accorciing to EDSO Repo1i BG 1506163, DOE 12 reported receiving 
multiple death threats over the course of the p1·evious week. She told EDSO that StemExpress is 
a Pla.cerv1Jle biotech company specializing in transfen'ing biomedical research specimens. 
Although StemExpress had' no affiliation with Planned Parenthood, her business was named as 
having conducted stem cell reseru.·ch in allegations released on the C:MP website. 

On May 24, 2016, I interviewed DOE 12 regarding her meeting with DALEIDEN and 
· MERRITT on May 22, 2015. She confinned that the audio/video recording of :this meeti11g was 
. done without lier cons~nt. She. stated that she realized DALEIDEN had secretly recorded her 

conversation at Bistro 33 when she recognized his voice in the edited videos released by CMP. 
She stated that she recognized his face in an interview he gave on the Bill O'Reilly show, and 
recognized many of the same questions he posed to the otl1er secretly reccirded victims. 

On November 2, 2016, I contacted DOE 13 regru.·dh1g the meeting she had witl1 
DALEIDEN on May 22, 201 S, which DALEIDEN secretly recorded. I i11fo11ned DOE 13 that I 
1:eviewed a statement she had made arid wanted to discuss the meeting she had with DALEIDEN 
and IvlERR1TT. DOE 13 stated she initially met DALEIDEN, posh1g as Robert Sarkis, and 
MERRITT, posing as Susan Tennenbaum, at an earlier women's health conference in Baltimore, 
Maryland. The two presented themselves as employees ofBioMax ~roc1.v:ement Services, and 
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expressed interest in collaborating with StemExpress. DOE 13 stated she told DOE 12 about the 
possible collaboration and coordinated a meeting with DALEIDEN and MERRJTT. 

DOE 13 stated cm May 22, 2015, at around 4:30 PM, DOE 12, herself and DOE 13, met 
' who they believed to be Sarlds and Tennenbaum from BioMax, at Bistro 33, located at 4364 
Town Ce11ter Boulevard, El Dorado Hills, California. DOE 13 stated the restalll'ant was not 
crowded and they were seated in an area of the i·estaw·ant that contained 110 other customers. 
DOE 13 told me she did not believe other customers could overhear or record their conversation, 
and ?elieved t~e conversation was confidential. DOE 13 said she did not give DALEIDEN or 
MERRJTT pennissio'n to rec.ord their meeting. · 

On November 7, 2016, I spoke with former StemExpress employee DOE ~4. who said he . 
and DOE 12 and DOE 13 believed they were meeting Robert Sru:kis of BioMax to discuss the · 
possibility ofBioMax: working with StemExpress. The meeting occun·ed on May 22, 2015 at 
around 4:30 PM, when DOE 12, DOE 13 and hhnself met the people he believed to be Robert 
Sarkis (DALEIDEN). and Susan Te1111enbaum (MERRlTI) to discuss the possibility ofBioMax: 
working with SteniEx:press with tissue procurements. The meeting was held at restaurant Bistro 
33 in El Dorndo Hills and, at the time, the restaurant was sparsely populated with customers. 
DOE 14 said the booth they were seated in was away from other customers and he believed other 
patrons could not overhear theb: conversation. DOE 14 said he belieyed the ~eeting was private 
and that no one could have reco1·ded their discussion. DOE 14 said he did not give DALEIDEN 
or MERRITT pennission to record their meeting. I told DOE 14 that I watched an unedited 

· video of the meeting, which I located on DALEIDEN,s computer, and noted that whe11 a 
custoinel' was eventually seated in a booth next to their booth, D.OE 14 mentioned to DOE 12 
that someone was sitting behind her in an effort to keep the conversation private. 

III. Conclusion 

I assert there is probable cause to believe that DALEIDBN and MERRITT entered into 011 

agreement to create a fictitious business for the sole ptupose o:f gaining ~c.9ess to individuals 
en1ployed in the healthcare and biomedical research industry to surreptitiously record private 
meetings in violation of Penal Code section 182/632, a felony. Additionally, I assert there is 
probable cause to believe that DALEIDEN and MERIUTT, on 14 sepru·ate occasions in the 
counties of San Francisco, Los Angeles and El Dorado, did covertly record confidential 
c01wersations with individuals who had 011 expectation ofp1ivacy in their' conversation in 
violation of CalifomiaPenal Code section 632(a), a felo1iy. 

Therefore, I request that a wal1'ant be issued ordering the ai1·est of David DALEIDEN and 
' . 

Susan MBRRJTT for the attached alleged felony violations charged in the accompanying Felony 
Complaint. 
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Blian Cardwell 
Special Agent 

COURT ORDER 

Based upqn a review of the above declaration this Comt finds that there exists an overtiding 
interest that overcomes the light of public access to the record; the overriding interest supports 
sealing the record; a substantial probability exists tl1at the overriding i~terest will be prejudiced if . 
the record is not sealed; the proposed sealing is na11·owly tailored; and 110 less l'estdctive means · 
exist to achieve the ovemding interest. 

The1·efore it is ordered that the following portio~1 of the declaration identified as the 
"Confidential Attach;tnent" be sealed and not be made part of the public record until further order . 
of this Comt or any other competent comt. 

DATED: '3b?0?- JUDGE: ~ h <:_, "'­
~ yf\4~ 
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From: 
Sant: 
to: 
Subject: 

JIii and Robby 

Parker, Beth <beth.parker@PPACCA.ORG> 
Tuesday, July 21, 2015 9;42 AM 
Jill Habig; Robert Sumner 
Planned Parenthood: videos 

A second video was released today. We believe we are fully compliant with all federal and state laws and are 
investigating the situation. Please feel free to reach out to me If you have any questions or concerns. 

Beth 

Beth H, Parker, Chief Legal Counsel . 
Planned Parenthood Affiliates of Californla I SSS Capitol Mall, Suite S10 I Sacramento; CA 95814 
916.446.5247 -I 916,441.0632 fax I - ~ell 

~ianned· 
F.!i~l'!!..,,..,.,*;ll!'lr,r!,ll;~i!\11~ 
r~111•·1§:J 1;.,w~ 
~·J',JoifAStief'ftl;lW, 

rlq1mcd ~U14ad-lllllllulllllm aniM11C11ta 

The cor1tents of tl'lls e-mail message, including ~ny attachments, are Intended solely for the use ~f the person or ehtlty .to whom the e­
rnall wai:1 addressed. It contains information that may be pr9tected by the ~tt'Omey-olienl privilege, work-produot doctrine, or other 
privileges, and may be restricted from qlscloaure by applicable state and federal law. If you are not the intended recipient 9f this 
message, be edvlsed that anY. dissemination, distribution, or use of the content$ of '!hie message ls strictly prohibited. If you have 
received this massage In error, or are not the named reoiplent(s), pleEtse notify the sender immediately by reply e-mail or by phone at 
(916) 446•6247 ext. 108 and delete this message from your computer. Thank you. 

I 
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From: 
Sent: 
To: 
Cc: 

Parker, Beth <beth.parker@PPACCA.ORG> 
Tuesday, February 16, 2016 6:00 PM 
Jill Habig 

Subject: 
Melissa Goodman 
Re: Llvingwell brief 

Thank you for sharing, Jill. 

Beth Parker 
Se?t from my iPhone 

On Feb 16, 2016, at 5:56 PM, Jill Habig <ji1Lhabig@doj.ca.gov> wrote: 

Beth and Melissa, 
Attached is the brief we filed today. We did not make the conduct argument, and focused on 
intermediate scrutiny under Pickup. We continued to make our commercial speech argument, 
but made every effort to distinguish between the FACT Act and more burdensome laws that 
would not warrant rational basis review. Please let me know if you have any questions. 

Thanks, 
Jill 

Jill E. Habig 
Special Counsel to the Attorney General 
California Department of Justice 
Office of Attorney General Kamala D. Barris 
455 Golden Gate Ave., Ste 14500 
San Francisco, CA 94102 

415-703-1008 
j ill.habig@doj.ca.gov 

CONFIDENTIALITY NOTICE: This communication with its contents may contain confidential 
. and/or legally privileged information. It is solely for the use of the intended recipient(s). 
Unauthorized interception, review, use or disclosure is prohibited and may violate applicable 
laws including the Electronic.Communications Privacy Act. if you are not the intended recipient, 
please contact the sender and destroy all copies of the communication. 

<DOJBrief2.16.16.pd£> 
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From: 
Sent: 
To: 
Cc: 

Melissa Goodman <MGoodman@ACLUSOCAL.ORG> 
Tuesday, February 16, 2016 6:47 PM 
Jill Habig 
Beth Parker 

Subject: Re: Llvingwell brief 

Thank you sharing Jill and for your efforts. 

M 

Sent from my iPhone 

On Feb 16, 2016, at 5:56 PM, Jill Habig <jill.habig@doj.ca.gov> wrote: 

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
would not wai:rant rational basis review. Please let me know if you have any questions. 

Thanks, 
Jill 

Jill E. Habig 
Special Counsel to the Attorney General 
California Department of Justice 
Office of Attorney General Kamala ·o. Harris 
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

<DOJ Brief 2.16.16.pdf> 
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From: 
· Sent: 

Pc1rker, Beth <beth.parker@PPACCA.ORG> 
Wednesday, February 17, 2016 4:38 PM 
Jill Habig; Melissa Goodman · · To: 

Subject: RE: Livlngwell brief · 

Thanks Jill 
..,....,,,,.~ .. ,·•.r, ..... 1 .... ,,.:....,1 .. ,:...u;,...,..,.,..,.,_,.J,,,;,,,,11,.,1,..i.. .. ,.,,..~ ... u.i...i,11,, .. 1.ir,1w...i.....w ~1<1u~ ........ u..1u,.-111ofJ.l,'1-1.v.-.-w..i~iw-i..41,,1,11,,,t..:r..1,i;,11.""1~:,a11H~11.1....ir1,,1i-11.iJ.Q~W"'.-..lo'""'"'"'-""''~'ll~U,,~-11,,.,.r,tt,'-,.,1.,ld...i,.,.,11,1,.u.,u,J...,i..1...,,•.,..•.,.l,o,,..,.,:4._Ml~i..-.. 1o,.;,.1111rMo1.S.~....i..l., ... ...,i., ' 

~From: Jill Habig (mallto:llll.hablg@doj.ca.gov] · · 
· Sent: Wednesday, February 17, 2016 4:35 PM 
To: Melissa Goodman <mgoodman@aclusocal.org> 
Cc: Parker, Beth <b'eth.parker@PPACCA.ORG> 
Subject: Re: Llvlngwell brief · 

And here's the AWF brief. 

Jill E. Habig 
Special CQunsel to the Attorney General 
California Department of Justice . 
Office of Attorney General Kamala 0. Harris 
455 Gold~n Gate Ave., Ste 14500 · 
San Franc,isco, CA 94102 

41S-703-1008 
j itl.habig@doj.ca.gov 

From: Melissa Goodman <MGoodman@ACLUSOCAL.ORG> 
Date: Tu~sday, February 16, 2016 at 6:47 PM 
To: Jill Habig <jlll.hablg@dol.ca.gov> 
Cc: Beth :parker <beth.parker@ppacca.org> 
Subject: Re: Llvingwell brief 

· Thank you s.harlhg JIii and for your efforts. 

M 

Sent from' my IP hone 

On Feb 1.6, 2016, at 5:56 PM, JIii Habig <Ull,hablg@doj.ca:gov> wrote: 

Beth and Melissa, . 
Attached Is the brief we filed today. We did not make the conduct argument, and focused on i'ntermedlate 
~crutlny under Pickup. We continued to make our commercial speech argument, but made every effort to 
distinguish between the FACT Act and more burdensome laws that would not W2Jrrant rational basis 
~evlew. Please let me know If you have any questions. 

Thanks, 
JJII 

Jill E. Habig 
Special Counsel to the Attorney General 

1 



California Department of Justice 
Office of Attorney General Kamala D. Harris 
455 Golden Gate Ave., Ste 14500 
Sim Francisco, CA 94102 · · 

415-703-1008 
i)l1Jiabi~@doj.ca.ggy; 

CONFIDENTIALITY NOTICE: This comrnuntcatton with Its contents may contain confidential and/or legally 
prlvltegeq Information. it Is solely for the use· of the Intended reclplent(s). Unauthorized Interception, review, 

• use or disclosure Is prohibited and mayviolate'appltcable laws including the Electronic Communications 
privacy Act. If you are not the Intended recipient, please contact the sender and destroy all copies of the 
communication. ' 

<DOJ Brief 2.16.16.pdf> 

CONFIDENTIALITY NOTICE: This communication with Its contents may contain confidential and/or legally prlvlleged 
lnformatlon. lt'ls solely for the use of the Intended reclplent(s). U'nauthorlzed interception, review, use or disclosure ls 
prohibited and m~y violate applicable laws Including the Electron le Communications Privacy Act. If you are not the Intended 
recipient, please contact the sender and destroy all copies of the,communlcatlon. · 
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From: 
Sent: 

Parker; Beth < beth.parker@PPACCA.ORG> 
Thursday, March 03, 2016 10:50 AM 

To: 
Subject: 

Jill Habig 
RE·: Whole Woman's Health 

Jill 

I think I can get that for you using a zipcode analysis of our patients. Let me find out. When do you need It? Interesting 
you ask as I was Just on a webinar about Whole Women's Health and this issue came up. 

Beth 

From: Jill Habig (mallto:jill1hablg@dof.ca.gov] 
Sent: Thursday, March 03, 2016 10:48 AM 
To: Parker, Beth <beth.parker@PPACCA.ORG> 
Subject: Whole Woman's Health 

Beth, 
Does PP happen to have any data regarding the number of out-of-state patients that come to CA for reproductive healthcare 
and whether It has Increased in recent years? I'm interested in whether we have something concrete we could point to as the 
CA impact of TRAP laws in other states. Let me know your thoughts. 

Thanks I 
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
iill.habig@doj.ca.gov 

CONFIDENTIALITY NOTICE: This communication with Its contents may contain confidential and/or legally privileged 
information. It is solely for· the use of the intended reciplent(s). Unauthorized interception, review, use or disclosure is 
prohibited ·and may violate applicable laws Including the Electronic Communications Privacy Act. If you are not the Intended 
recipient, please contact the sender and destroy all copies of the communication: 
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From: 
Sent: 
To: 

Parker, Beth <beth.parker@PPACCA.ORG> 
Thursday, March 03, 2016 10:59 AM 
Jill Habig 

Subject: Re: Whole Woman's Health 

Apparently there is this bizarre argument that wqmen can go to other states. Of course, traveling from Texas to 
California is only for the rich. I will see what I cart find out. 

Beth Parker · 
Sent from my iPhone 

On Mar 3, 2016, at 10:54 AM, Jill Habig <iill.habig@doj.ca.gov> wrote: 

If it's not too diffictilt, I'm thinking about using it for press purposes when we talk to reporters 
about the case this week and then later when the decision comes down. We got a couple reporter 
questions after oral argument yesterday that seemed to indicate they had assumed the ruling 
wouldn't have any effect on CA because we're pro-choice, so I've been thinking about ways to 
challenge that assumption beyond just saying that pro-choice leadership isn't guaranteed 
forever. If you have zipcode analysis, it might be fascinating to see how many women have 
come from TX since the law went into effect. I remember Sue Dunlap mentioning anecdotally 
about TX women coming to PPLA, but I'm not sure how large the volume is. 

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

jill.habig@doj.ca.gov 

From: Beth Parker <beth.parker@ppacca.org> 
Date: Thursday, March 3, 2016 at 10:49 AM 
To: JIii Habig <jill.habig@dol.ca.gov> 
Subject: RE: Whole Woman's Health 

Jill 
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1. 

I think I can get that for you using a zipcode analysis of our patients. Let me find out. When do you 
need it? Interesting you ask as I was Just on a webinar about Whole Women's Health and this Issue 
came up. 

Beth 

From: Jill Habig [mailto:llll,hablg@doj.ca.gov] 
Sent: Thursday, March 03, 2016 10:48 AM 
To: Parker, Beth <beth.parker@PPACCA.ORG> 
Subject: Whole Woman's Health 

Beth, 
Does PP happen to have any data regarding the number of out-of-state patients that come to CA for 
reproductive healthcare and whether it has increased in recent years? I'm interested in whether we have 
something concrete we could polnt to as the CA impact of TRAP laws in other states. Let me know your 
thoughts. 

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
· iill.habfa:@doj.ca.gov 

CONFIDENTIALITY NOTICE: This communication with Its contents may contain confidential and/or legally 
privileged information. It is solely for the use of the intended reciplent(s) .. unauthorized interception, review, 
use or disclosure is prohibited and may violate applicable laws including the Electronic Communications 
Privacy Act. If you are not the Intended recipient, please contact the sender and destroy all copies of the 
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
Su.bject: 

...... 

Parker, Beth <beth.parker@PPACCA.ORG> 
Thursday, March 03, 2016.11:54 AM · 
Jill Habig 
RE: Whole Woman's Health 

I already have zlpcode lists from one affil!ate for 2012 and 2015 so we are analyzing that. Another affllfate told me they 
see patients regularly from Arizona and heard a patient had flown in from Texas. · 

From: Jill Hablg [mailto:jlll.hablg@doj.ca.govl 
Sent: Th~rsday, March 03, 201610:54 AM 
To: Parker, Beth <beth.parker@PPACCA.ORG> 
Subject: Re: Whole Woman's Health 

.. ·---·---,..------------.. --.... _,. ____ _ 

if It's not too difficult, I'm thinking about using it for press purposes when we talk to reporters about the case this week and 
then late,r when the decision comes down. We got a couple reporter questions after oral argument yesterday that seemed to 
Indicate they had assumed the ruling wouldn't· have any effect on CA because we're pro-choice, so I've been thinking about 
ways to challenge that assumption beyond just saying that pro·c~olce leadership isn't guaranteed forever. If you have zlpcode 
analysis, Jt .might be fascinating to see how many women have come from ·TX since the law went Into effsct •. l rememb~rSue 
Dunlap mentioning anecdotally about TX women coming to PPLA, but I'm not sure how large the volume is. 

Jill E. Habig 

Sper;ial Sounsel t~ the Attorney_ Gener~/ 

California Department of Justice 

Office ofAttomey General Kamala D. Harris 

455 Golden G~te Aye., Ste 14500 

Sim Francisco, C~ 94102 · 

' . : 

415-703-ioos 

jill.habi.g@doj.ca.gov 

From: Beth Parker<beth.parker@ppacca.org> 
Date: Thµrsday, March 3, 2016 at 10:49 AM 
To: JIii Habig <illl.hablg@doi.ca.gov> 
Subject: :RE: Whole Woman's Health 

Jill 

. . 

I think I can get that for you using a zlpcode analysis of our patients. Let me find out. When do you need it? Interesting 
you ask as-I was just on a webinar about Whole Women1s Health and this issue came up. ·· 
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Beth 

·-----------·-... --... ,_ .. ___ .,_.,.__ .... _ .-1 .... ,.,,_ ___ .................. -~---·-... ----· ... ·--·---. _ ... ____ ........ _,_ .. _, __ . ·--·· ' __ ....,._ 
From: Jill Habig (mailto:illl.hfibig@doi.ca.govl 
Sent: Thursd~y, March 03, 2016 10:48 AM. 
To: Parker, Beth <beth.parker@PPACCA.ORG> 
Subject: Whole Woman's Health 

Beth, . 
Does PP happen to have any data regarding the number of out-of-state patients that come to CA for reproductive healthcare 
and whether It has Increased In recent years? I'm Interested In whether we have something concrete we could point to as the 
CA Impact of TRAP laws In othe~ states. Let me know your thoughts. 

Thanks I 
Jill 

JIii E. Habig 
Special Counse? to the Attorney General 
California Department. of Justice 
Office of-Attorney General Kamala D. Harris 
455 Golden Gate Ave., Ste 14500' 
San Franqisco~ CA 94102 

415 ... 703~1008 ·. 
jill.habig@doj.ca.gov 

CONFIDENTIALITY NOTICE: This cornmunl~atlon with Its contents may contain confidential and/or legally privileged 
Information. It Is solely for the use·ofthe Intended reciplent(s). Unauthorized interception, review, use or disclosure Is 
prohlbit~d and may violate applicable laws including the Electronic Communications Privacy Act. If you ar.e not the Intended 
recipient; please contact the sender and destroy all copies of the communication. 

CONFIDE:NTIALITY NOTICE: This communication with Its contents m~y contain .confidential and/or legally prl~lleged 
Information. It Is sole.ly for the use of the intended recipient($). Unauthorized Interception, review, use or disclosure is 
prohibited and may violate applicable laws including the Electronic Communications Privacy Act. If you are not'the Intended 
recipient, please.contact the sender and destroy all copies of the communication. · . · · . . . . 
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From: 
Sent: 
To: 
Subject: 
Attachments:· 

Follow Up Flag: 
Flag Status: 

Jill 

Parker, Beth <beth.parker@PPACCA.ORG> 
Thursday, March 03, 2016 3:21 PM 
Jill Habig 
-zip code data 
Zip Codes-2012 vs 2015.xlsx 

Follow Up 
Flagged 

Here is the zlpcode analysis for As you predicted, the number of the out of state patients has 
increased since 2012, but so have the general patient numbers. We are collecting Information from the other affiliates. 

Beth 

1 



AZ 2 

CA 2 

co AP 1 
CT AZ 12 
DC CA 53,733 
FL CN 2 

GA co 6 

HI CT 3 
ID DC 3 
IL FL 3 

KY GA 4 
LA GU 1 
MA HI 3 
MN ID 3 
NC IL 4 
NE LA 1 
NM MA· 5 
NV MD 4 
NY Ml 1 
OH MN 1 
SC MT 1 
TX NC 6 
UT NJ 1 

NM 1 
NV 9 
NY 16 
OH 3 
OK 1 
OR 3 
PA 11 
TN 1 
TX 3 
UT 1 
VA 2 
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From: 
Sent: 
To: 
Cc: 
Subject: 

Jill 

Parker, Beth <beth.parker@PPACCA.ORG> 
Friday, March 04, 2016 1:29 PM 
Jill Habig 
McCune, Mary 
Out of state patients for -

Here Is a record of out of state patients for the first 2 months fo .... It is 69. If you annualized It, it would be in the 
range of 414 visits per year~ 

Beth 

2016·1 

Alabama 1 1 
Arizona 1 1 2 

Colorado 1 1 2 

Florida 1 1 
Georgia 1 1 
Illinois 2 3 5 
Maryland 1 1 2 

Massachusetts 1 1 
Mississippi 1 1 
Montana 1 1 
Nevada 2 1 1 1 5 
North Carolina 1 1 
NULL 1 1 
Ohio 1 1 
Oregon 1 1 
Pennsylvania 1 1 2 

South Carolina 1 1 
Texas 1 1 2 
Utah 1 1 
Washington 1 1 

2016·2 

Alaska 1 1 
Arizona 1 1 1 1 2 6 

California 1 1 

1 



Colorado 1 1 

Indiana 1 1 

Kentucky 1 1 
Louisiana 1 1 2 
Maryland 1 1 

Michigan 1 1 

Mississippi 1 1 

Missouri 2 1 3 

Nevada 1' 1 

New York 1 1 

Ohio 1 1 
Oregon 1 1 

Pennsylvania ·1 1 2 
South Carolina 1 1 
Texas 2 2 4 

Utah 2 2 

Washington 1 1 2 
. 2016-3 

1 1 
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From: 
Sent: 
To: 
Subject: 

Parker, Beth <beth.parker@PPACCA.ORG> 
Friday, March 04, 2016 4:24 PM 
Jill Habig 
- patients from out of state 

For AZ, 188 patients in 2015. 60 of them went to 

In terms of "kept appointments", these are the main stats: 

107 total ABs from AZ. We believe these numbers are underreported. 

r, ........... : ................ : ............... , .... ,7 .. ,, ....... ~ ........... . 

~iCoimt .of state :· . 

i/~o~ La:~~ls /,i . Oi 

,'W· 

·10,601 7,358 248,244 266,203 

All Other 

AZ 

All Other 

TX 

All Other 

WA 

All Other 

NV 

1 

92 

3 

88 

1 

58 

15 
35 
7 

1 

10 

10 

3 

2 

1 

10 
5 

70 

4 

62 
4 

49 

29 

4 

3 

13 
6 

1 
2 

3 

3 

1 

1 

1 
2 

169 
5 

62 

92 
10 

189 
67 

20 

4 

8 

90 
69 

1 
4 

4 

60 

60 

331 

12 
150 

1 
154 

14 
296 

111 
55 
15 
1 

11 
103 
85 

1 
14 
1 
6 

63 
66 

1 2 
2 

4. 5 

i 
1 . 1 

54 

51 
3 

55 
63 
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All Other 

Here's some numbers on AZ patients: 

2014 

Total patients from AZ 108 

Patients from AZ that 
got an AB 62 

57% 

Patients from AZ that 
did not get an AB 46 

43% 

2013 

126 

71 
56% 

55 
44% 

5 

2 

3 3 
4 
2 

39 

9 

2 
41 

All but 1 patient In 2014 paid with cash for their AB procedure. The other one had private insurance . 

. 2 



From: 
Sent: 
To: 
Subject: 
Attachments: 

JIii 

Parker, Beth <beth.parker@PPACCA.ORG> 
Tuesday, March 08, 2016 11:19 AM 
Jill Habig 
Bill language AB 1671 - amendments to Penal Code 632 
AB 1671 updated 3.pdf 

Attached is the la'nguage for AB 1671, proposed ameridments to Penal Code section 632. I look forward to your 
thoughts about this. ... 

Beth 

Beth H. Parker, Chief Legal Counsel 
Planned Parenthood Affiliates of California I 555 Capitol Mall, Suite 510 I Sacramento, CA 95814 
916..446.5247- I 916.441.0632 fax I 

The contents of this E;l-mail message, including any attachments, are intended solely for the use of the person or entity to whom the e­
mail was addressed. It contains Information that may be protected by the attorney-client privilege, work-product doctrine, or other 
privileges, and may be restricted from disclosure by applicable state and federal law. If you are not the intended recipient of this 
message, be advised that any dissemination, distribution, or use of the contents of this message is strictly prohibited. If you have 
received this message in error, or are not the named reoipient(s), please notify the sender immediately by reply e-mail or by phone at 
(916) 446-5247 ext. 108 and delete this message from your computer. Thank you. 
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55562 
02/26/16 04:27 PM 

RN 16 08431 PAGE 1 
Substantive 

AMENDJvIBNTS TO ASSEMBLY BILL NO. 1671 

Amendment 1 
In the title, in line l, after ''act" insert: 

to amend Section 632 of the Penal Code, 

.,;, Amendment 2 
On page 1, before line l;insert: 

SECTION 1. Section 632 of the Penal Code is amended to read: 
632. (a) :BveryA,person who, intentionally and without the consent of all parties 

to a confidential eo11m11:1ftieatler., by communication. does any of the foliowing shall 
be punished pursuant to subdivision (b): · 

[l)Jiy means of any electronic amplifying or recording device, eavesdrops upon 
or records the confidential communication, whether the communication is carded on 
among the parties in the presence of one another or by means of a telegraph, telephone, 
or other device, except a-rad:ie; radio. 

(2) Uses. attempts to use, discloses, or attempts to disclose, in any manner, or 
for any purpose. the contents of an,y confidential communication knowing 01· having 
reason to know the information was ·obtained in violation of paragraph (1). 

(3) Aids, agrees with. em;plO)% or conspires with ruiy person or persons tQ 
unlaw;fully do, permit, or ca11se to be done any of the acts described in this subdivision. 

(h) A violation of subdivision (a) shall be punished by a fine not exceeding two 
thousand five hundred dollars ($2,500), ~2500) ;per violation, or imprisonment in-the 
!!: county jail not exceeding one year, or m the state prison, or by both that fine and 
imprisonment. If the person has previously been convicted of a violation of this section 
or Section 631, 632.5, 632.6, 632.7, or 636, the person shall be punished by a fine not 
exceeding ten thousand dollars ($10,000), ($10.000) per violation. by imprisonment 
in"tfle,..a county jail not exceeding one year, or in the state p1ison, or by both that fine 
and imprisonment. 

tl'H~l:B-'l:1~t-9:~flff""-fflefudes 

· c Fo1· e o es of th· s ectio H erso " me n an individual, business 
associat10n, partners ip, corporation, limited liability company, or other legal entity, 
and an individual acting or purporting to act for or on behalf of any govemment or 
subdivision thereof, whether federal, state, or local, but excludes an individual known 
by all parties to a confidential communication to be overhearing or recording the 
communication. 

F r t e u ses f · s ect' " on:fide · I co nicat' o " ean any 
comm'llnication carried on in circumstances as may reasonably indicate that any party 
to the communication desires it to be confined to the pal'ties thereto, but excludes a 
communication made in a public gathe:dng or in any legislative, judicial, executive 01· 
administrative proceeding open to the public, or in any other circumstance in which 

,, 
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55562' 
02/26/16 04:27 PM 

RN 16 08431 PAGE 2 
Substantive 

the parties to the communication may reasonably expect that the communication may 
be overheard or recorded. 

· ~ Except as proof in an action or prosecution for violation of this section, no 
evidence obtained as a result of eavesdropping upon or recotding a confidential 
communication in violation of this section shall be admissible in any judicial, 
administrative, legislative, or other proceeding. w ' 

.q:t !his section.doe.snot ap~ly (1) to an:r p~blicytility.engaged in the business 
ofprov1dmg commumcattons services and fac1ht1es, or to the officers, employees or 
agents thereof; where the acts othe1wise prohibited by this section are for the purpose 
of construction, maintenance, conduct or operation of the services and facilities of the 
public utility, or (2) to the use of any instrument, equipment, facility, or service 
furnished and used pursuant to the tariffs of a public utility1 or (3) to any telephonic 
communication system used for communication exclusively within a state, county, 
city and county, or city correctional facility. 

ffl . 
.(g) This section does not apply to the use of hearing aids and similal' devices, 

by persons afflicted with impaired hearing, for the purpose of overcoming the 
impairment to permit the hearing of sounds ordinarily audible to the human ear. 

(h) Paxagraph (2) of subdivision (a) does not ap_ply to any member of the media 
who uses. attempts to use. discloses. or attem1,1ts to disclose. a confidential 
communicatio11 if all of the following are troei 

The c ic · n · ·r 
2 co ca · o as obt · ed la 1 b t e e r o the e · d 

not obtained by him or her in violation of paragraph (1) of subdivision (a). 
(3) The person did not know who was responsible for obtaining the information. 
SEC. 2. No reimbursement is required by this act pursuant to Section 6 of 

Article XIIl B of the California Constitution because the only costs that may be incurred 
by a local agency or school district will be.incurred because this act creates a new 
crime or infraction, eliminates a crime or infraction, or changes the penaJty for a crime 
01· infraction, within the meaning of Section 17556 of the Government Code, or changes 
the definition of a crime within the meaning of Section 6 of Article XIII B of the 

· California Constitution. 

Amendment 3 
On page 11 strike out lines 1 to 5, inclusive 



From: 
Sent: 

Parker, Beth <beth.parker@PPACCA.ORG> 
Wednesday, March 09, 2016 5:05 PM 

To: Jill Habig 
Subject: RE: Bill language AB 1671 - amendments to Penal Code 632 

Jill 

Thanks for coming over to ~ur offices this morning. The Supreme Court case cite Is Bartnicki v. Vopper, 532 US 514 
(2001). 

Beth 

From: Jill. Habig (mallto:illl.hablg@ddj.ca.gov] 
Sent: Tuesday, March 08, 2016 11:32 AM 
To: Parker, Beth <beth.parker@PPACCA.ORG> 
Subject: Re: Bill language AB 1671- amendments to Penal Code 632 

Taking a look now. You mentioned a case that was a potential obstacle. Can you remind me what,that was? 

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

jill.hablg@doi.ca.gov 

From: Beth Parker<beth.parker@ppacca.org> 
Date: Tuesday, March 8, 2016 at 11:19 AM 
To: Jill Habig <jlll.habig@doi.ca.gov> 
Subject: Bill language AB 1671 • amendments to Penal Code 632 

Jill 

Attached Is the language for AB 1671, proposed amendments to Penal Code section 632. I look forward to your 
thoughts about this. 

1 



Beth 

Beth H, Parker, Chief Legal Counsel 
Planned Parenthood Affiliates of California I 555 Capitol Mall, Suite 510 I Sacramento, CA 95814 
916.446.5247- I 916.441.0632 fax I . 

ra ·n1·· ·~"'a-' :~; f7'~~i·~'-',.: '''' ,,, :~ 
.~,,~~2~·~·'· 

ii.,., 1~ '•.:( .~. 1 ·'' I .. lfff:~M, I~ ' 

The contents of this e-mail message, Including any attachments, are Intended solely for the use of the person or entity to whom thee­
m all was addressed. It contains Information that may be protected by the attorney-client privilege, work-product doctrine, or other 
privileges, S!nd may be restricted from disclosure by applicable state and federal law. If you are not the intended recipient of this 
message, be advised that any dissemination, distribution, or use of the contents of this message is strictly prohibited. If you have 
received this message in errO(, or are not the named recipient(s), please notify the sender immediately by reply e-mail or by phone at 
(916) 446-5247 ext. 108 and delete this message from your computer. Thank you. ' 

CONFIDENTIALITY NOTICE: This communication.with Its contents may contain confidential and/or legally privileged 
information. It is solely for the use of the intended recipient(s). Unauthorized interception, review, use or disclosure Is 
prohibited and may violate applicable laws including the Electronic Communications Privacy Act. If you are not.the intended 
recipient, please cont~ct the sender and destroy all copies of the con:imunlcation. 

) 
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From: 
Sent: 
To: 
Subject: 
Attachments: 

Jill 

Parker, Beth < beth.pa rker@PPACCA.ORG > 
Wednesday, March 16, 2Ql6 10:34 AM 
Jill Habig 
Right of Privacy In Confidential Communications d,raft language (2).docx 
Right of Privacy in Confidential Communications draft language (2).docx 

Here's the rewrite of the video tape bill. Let. me know what you think. 

Beth 

1 



Right of Privacy in Confidential Communications 

Existing law authorizes civil and criminal penalties when confidential communications are 
tapped, recorded, Intercepted or received willfully and without the consent of all parties. The 
law was enacted after the proliferation of new devices and eavesdropping techniques created a 
serious threat to the free ·exercise of personal liberties. It was designed to protect the right of 
privacy of the people of California. Existing law creates an exception for the use of listening 
devices a.nd techniques by law enforcement to investigate criminal conduct. In addition, It does 
not prohibit one party to a confidential communication from recording the communication to 
obtain evidence of commission of certain serious, enumerated crimes. 

Existing law also imposes civil and criminal penalties on Individuals, not parties to the 
communication, who willfully disclose the contents of a telegraphic or telephone message 
without the consent of the participants. 

This bill will expand the scope of liability to eneen:ipass these 'Nheinclude a prohibition on the 
intentionall,y use or disclosure ofe the contents of any wire, oral or electronic communication 
obtained without the consent of all parties when they lcnev,• or had reason to knew the 
information 'NBS.QY. the party who taped the confidential communication obtained without 
consent. This updates the law to account for the harm created by the broad dlss.eminatlon over 
the internet. It aligns the law on unauthorized recording of confidential communications with 
the law on misappropriation of trade secrets. And It aligns California law with the law of other 
states that prohibit interception and disclosure of confidential wire, oral or electronic 
communications. 

CHAPTER 1.6. Invasion of Privacy [630 - 638.63] 
('Chapter 1.5 added by Stats. 1967, Ch. 1509.) 

630. 
The Legislature hereby declares that advances in science and technology have led 
to the development of new devices and techniques for the purpose of 
eavesdropping upon private communications and that the invasion of privacy . 
resulting from the continual and increasing use of such devices and techniques has 
created a serious threat to the free exercise of personal liberties and cannot be 
tolerated in a free and civilized society. 

The Legislature by this chapter intends to protect the right of privacy of the people 
of this state. 

The Legislature recognizes that law enforcement agencies have a legitimate need to 
employ modern listening devices and techniques In the investigation of criminal 
conduct and the apprehension of lawbreakers. Therefore, it is not the intent of the 
Legislature to place greater restraints on the use of listening devices and 
techniques by law enforcement agencies than existed prior to the effective date of 
this chapter. 

(Added by Stats. 1967, Ch. 1509.) 



631. . 
(a) Any person who, by means of any machine, instrument, or contrivance, or in 
any other manner, intentionally taps, or makes any unauthorized connection, 
whether physically, electrically, acoustically, inductively, or otherwise, with any 
telegraph or telephone wire, line, cable, or instrument, including the wire, line, 
cable, or instrument of any internal telephonic communication system, or who 
willfully and without the consent of all parties to the communication, or in any 
unauthorized manner, reads, or attempts to read, or to learn the contents or 
meaning of any message, report, or communication while the same is in transit or 
passing over any wire, line, or cable, or is being sent from, or received at any place 
within this state; or who uses, or attempts to use, in any manner, or for any 
purpose, or to communicate In any way, any information so obtained, or who aids, 
agrees with, employs, or conspires with any person or persons to unlawfully do, or 
permit, or cause to be done any of the acts or things mentioned above in this 
section, Is punishable by a fine not exceeding two thousand five hundred dollars 
($2,500), or by imprisonment in the county jail not exceeding one year, or by 
imprisonment pursuant to subdivision (h) of Section 1170, or by both a fine and 
imprisonment in the county jail or pursuant to subdivision (h) of Section 1170. If 
the person has previously been convic;ted of a violation of this section or Section 
632, 632.5, 632.6, 632.7, or 636, he or she is punishable by a fine not exceeding 
ten thousand dollars ($10,000), or by imprisonment in the county jail not exceeding 
one year, or by imprisonment pursuant to subdivision (h) of Section 1170, or by 
both that fine and imprisonment. 

(b) This section shall not apply (1) to any public utility engaged in the business of 
providing communications services and faciUties, or to the officers, employees or . 
agents thereof, where the acts otherwise prohibited herein are for the purpose of 
construction, maintenance, conduct or operation of the services and facilities of the 
public utility, or (2) to the use of any instrument, ~quipment, fa~ility, or service 
furnished and used pursuant to the tariffs of a public utility, or (3) to any telephonic 
communication system used for communication exclusively within a state, county, 
city and county, or city correctional faclllty. 

(c) Except as proof in an action or prosecution for violation of this section, no 
evidence obtained in violation of this section shall be admissible in any judicial, 
administrative, legislative, or other proceeding. 

(d) This section shall become operative on January 1, 1994. 

(Amended by Stats. 2011, Ch. 15, Sec. 428. {=ffective April 4, 2011. Operative 
October 1, 2011, by Sec. 636 of Ch. 15, as amended by Stats. 2011, Ch. 39, Sec. ' 
68.) 

632. 
(a) Every person who, intentionally and without the consent of all parties to a 
confidential communication: 

(1) by means of any electronic amplifying or recording device, eavesdrops 
upon or records the confidential communication, whether the communication is 



carried on among the parties in the presence of one another or by means of a 
telegraph, telephone, or other device, except a radio; 

(2) uses, or attempts to usediscloses, in any manner, or for any purpose, the 
contents ·of any confidential communication obtained bv that party know-lng OF 

hav-lng reason to knew-tRc information was obtained In violation of (a)(1);or 

_(3) cNscloscs1 or attempts to dlsel-ose, In any manner, or for any' puFpose, 
the contents of arry,( confidential eommuRication know-/r1g or falatll-ng rcasoR to know 
the lnforrnatloR was obtained in violation of (a)(J.);or 

(J.4) aids, agrees v1-lth, employs1 or conspires with any person or persons to 
unlawfully do, permit, or cause to be done any of the acts or things mentioned 
above in this section.,_ 

shall be punished by a fine not exceeding two thousand five hundred dollars 
($2,500) per violation, or imprisonment In the county jail not exceeding one year, 
or in the state prison, or by both that fine and imprisonment. If the person has 
previously been convicted of a violation of this section or Section 631, 632.5, 
632.6, 632. 7, or 636, the person shall be punished by a fine not exceeding ten 
thousand dollars ($10,000) per violation, by imprisonment in the county jail not 
exceeding one year, or in the state prison, or by both that fine ·and imprisonment. . . 
(b) The term "person" includes an individual, business association, partnership, 
corporation, limited liability company, or other legal entity, and an individual acting 
or purporting to act for or on behalf of any government or subdivision thereof, 
whether federal, state, or local, but excludes an individual known by all parties to a 
confidential communicatlo~ to be overhearing or recording the communication. 

(c) The term "confidential communication" includes any communication carried on 
in circumstances as may reasonably indicate that any party to the communication 

· desires it to be confined to the parties thereto, but excludes a communication made 
in a public gath.ering or In any legislative, judicial, executive or administrative 
proceeding open to the public, or In any other circumstance in which the parties to 
the communication may reasonably expect that the communication may be 
overheard or recorded. 

(d) Except as proof in an action or prosecution for violation of this section, no 
evidence obtained as a result of eavesdropping upon or recording a confidential 
communication in violation of this section shall be admissible in any judicial, 
administrative, legislative, or other proceeding. 

(e) This section does not apply (1) to any public utility.engaged in the business of 
providing communications services and facilities, or to the officers, employees or 
agents thereof, where the acts otherwise prohibited by this section are for the 
purpose of construction, maintenance, conduct or operation of the services and 
facilities of the public utility, or (2) to the use of any instrument, equipment, 
facility, or service furnished and used pursuant to the tariffs of a public utility, or 
(3) to any telephonic communication system used for communication exclusively 
within a state, county, city and county, or city correctional facility. 



(f) This section does not apply to the use o.f hearing alas and similar devices, by 
persons afflicted with impaired hearing, for the purpose of overcoming the 
impairment to permit the hearing of sounds ordinarily audible to the human ear. 

(Amended by Stats. 1994, Ch. 1010, Sec. 194. Effective January 1, 1995.) 



From: 
Sent: 

Salgado, Diana <diana.saigado@ppfa.org> 
Tuesday, April 19, 2016 8:59 AM 

To: Jill Habig 
Cc: Parker, Beth 
Subject: Re: 9th circuit CPC cases - common interest privilege 

Hi Jill -

I'm emailing about the NIFLA case challenging the FACT Act, which is now on appeal in the 9th Circuit. My 
, understanding is that that case (unlike the two prior cases) challenges both the disclosure requirement for 

licensed facilities and the disclosure requirement for unlicensed facilities. I've been in c.onversation with 
Physicians for Reproductive Health about whether to submit an amicus brief in the NIFLA case. I was hoping 
we could have a call to discuss the current thinking on that. 

Unfortunately, the deadline for amicus briefs is April 21. Would you have time for a quick call today or 
tomorrow? I am free to talk pretty much at any time. I'm also cc'ing Beth Parker on this email since she is 
hoping to join as well (but said we should go ahead and schedule a time that works for you and she will join, if 
she can). 

Thanks. 

Diana 0. Salgado 
Senior Staff Attorney 
Public Polley Litigation & Law 
Planned Parenthood Federation of America 
212-2614399 

This e-mail is for the sole use of the intended rec;_pients and contains information belonging to PPFA, ·which is 
co17fidential and/or legally privileged. lf you are not the intended recipient; you are hereby notified that any 
disclosure, copying, distribution or taking of any action in reliance on the contents of this e-mail information is 
strictly prohibited. ff you have received this e~mail in error, please immediately notffy the sender by teply e~ 
mail and destroy all copies of the original message. · · 

On Fri, Feb 5, 2016 at 3:21 PM, Jill Habig <jill.habig@doj.ca.gov> wrote: 
Ok let's set the date/tjme for 2/10 at 12pm. I'll send around a call~ln number. Thanks all! 

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
jill .habig@doj.ca.gov 

From: "Salgado, Diana" <dlana.salgado@ppfa.org> 
Date: Wednesday, February 3, 2016 at 7:19 AM 
To: Beth Parker <beth.parker@ppacca.org> 
Cc: Jill Habig <jill.habig@doj.ca·.gov>, Janill Richards <Janlll.Richards@doj.ca.gov>, Kathleen Radez 
<Kathleen.Radez@doj.ca.gov>, Joshua Klein <Joshua.Kleln@doj.ca.gov>, Jonathan M Eisenberg 
<Jonathan. Eisenberg@doj.ca.gov> 
Subject: Re: 9th circuit CPC cases - common interest privilege 

Thanks, everyone. 

I am free on 2/5 between 1-3, on 2/8 between 1-3, and on 2/10 between 11--2. ,. 

Looking forward to the call. 

Diana 0. Salgado 
Senior Staff Attorney 
Public Policy Litigation & Law 
Planned Parenthood Federation of America 
212-261-4399 

This e-mail is for the sole use of the Intended recipients and contains information belonging to PPFA, which is confident/al 
and/or legally prfvlleged. If you are not the intended recipient, you are hereby notified that any disclosure, copying, distribution 
or taking of any action In reliance on the contents of this e-mail information is strictly prohibited. If you have received this e­
mail in error, please Immediately not"lfy the sender by reply e-mail and destroy all copies of the orfg/na/ message. 

On Tue, Feb 2, 2016 at 9:17 PM, Parker, Beth <beth.parker@ppacca.org> wrote: 

Adding Diana Salgado from PPP A to this chain. 

From: Jill Habig [mailto:jill.habig@doj.ca.gov] 
Sent: Tuesday, February 02, 2016 6:15 PM 
To: Parker, Beth <beth.parker@PPACCA.ORG> 
Cc: Janill Richards <Janill.Richards@doj.ca.goy>; Kathleen Radez <Kathleen.Radez@doj.ca.gov>; Joshua 
Klein <Joshua.Klein@doj.ca.gov>; Jonathan M Eisenberg <Jonathan.Eisenberg@doj.ca.gov> 
Subject: Re: 9th circuit CPC cases - common interest privilege 

Beth, 

I'm cc'ing my colleagues from DOJ who would like to join the call. To propose a few times, how about 2/5 between l-3pm, 
2/8 after 1pm, or 2/10 between 11-2? Any of those windows work? 
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
Date: Tuesday, February 2, 2016 at 2;28 PM 
To: Jill Habig <jill.habig@doj.ca.gov> 
Subject: 9th circuit CPC cases - common interest privilege 

Jill 

Who do you want to be on the call about the ninth circuit briefing in the CPC cases with the PPF A attorney 
handling the Arizona case? We should try to set the call up as soon as possible. 

Beth 

Beth H. Parker, Chief Legal Counsel 

Planned Parenthood Affiliates of California I 555 Capitol Mall, Suite 510 I Sacramento, CA 95814 

916.446.5247 I 916.441.0632 fax I 
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The contents of this e-mail message, including any attachments, are Intended solely for the use of the person or entity to whom the e­
mail was addressed. It contains information that may be protected by the attorney-client privilege, work-product doctrine, or other 
privileges, and may be restricted from disclosure by applicable state and federal law. If you are not the intended recipient of this 
message, be advised that any dissemination, distribution, or use of the contents of this message ls strictly prohibited. If you have 
received this message In error, or are not the named reclpient(s), please notify the sender immediately by reply e-mail or by phone at 
(916) 446-5247 ext. 108 and delete this message from your computer. Thank you. 

CONFIDENTIALITY NOTICE: This communication with its contents may contain confidential and/or legally privileged 
information. It is solely for the use of the intended recipient(s). Unauthorized interception, review, use or disclosure is 
prohibited and may violate applicable laws including the Electronic Communications Privac;y Act. If you are not the intended 
recipient, please contact the sender and destroy all copies of the communication. 

CONFIDENTIALITY NOTICE: This communication with Its contents may contain confidential and/or legally privileged 
Information. It Is solely for the use of the Intended reclplent(s). Unauthorized interception, review, use or disclosure is 
prohibited and may violate applicable laws including the Electronic Communications Privacy Act. If you are not the Intended 
recipient, please contact the sender and destroy all copies of the communication. 

4 



From: 
Sent: 
To: 
Cc: 
Subject: 

Salgado, Diana <diana.salgado@ppfa.org> 
Wednesday, April 20, 2016 7:34 AM 
Jill Habig 
Parker, Beth 
Re: 9th circuit CPC cases - common interest privilege 

Thanks for getting back to me, Jill. Any time between 10-1 PST works best for me and Beth. If that doesn't 
work for you, let me know what time does and I'm sure I can make it work. 

Thanks. 

Diana 0. Salgado 
Senior Staff Attorney 
Public Polley t:.ltigation & Law 
Planned Parenthood Federation of America 
212-261-4399 

This e-mail is/or the sole use of the intended recipients and contains information belonging to PPFA, 1,vhich is 
cmifldential andlor legally privileged. Jfyou are not the intended rec(pient, you .are hereby notffled that any 
disclosure, copying, distribution or taking qf any action in reliance on the contents of this e-mail information is 
strictly prohibited ffyou have received this e-mail in error.. please immediately not{'fy the sender by reply e­
mail and destroy all copies of the original; message. 

On Tue, Apr 19, 2016 at 11:52 PM, Jill Habig <jill.habig@doj.ca.gov> wrote: 
Diana, 
I'm happy to talk tomorrow. We would certainly welcome amlcus participation since this case raises some new 
Issues. Attached Is our brief. Let me know when you have time tomorrow. 

Thanks, 
Jill 

From: "Salgado, Diana" <diana.salgado@ppfa.org> 
Date: Tuesday, April 19, 2016 at 8:58 AM 
To: Jill Habig <iHl.habig@doj.ca.gov> 
Cc: Beth Parker <beth.parker@ppacca.org> 
Subject: Re: 9th circuit CPC cases - common interest privilege 

HI Jill -

I'm emailing about the NIFLA case challenging the FACT Act, which Is now on appeal In the 9th Circuit. My understanding Is 
that that case (unlike the two prior cases) challenges both the disclosure requirement for licensed facilities and the disclosure 
requirement for unlicensed facilities. I've been In conversation with Physicians for Reproductive Health about whether to 
submit an amicus brief in the NIFLA case. I was hoping w'e could have a call to discuss the current thinking on that. 



Unfortunately, the deadline for amicus briefs is April 21. Would you have time for a quick call today or tomorrow? I am free to 
talk pretty much at any time. I'm also cc'lng Beth Parker on this email since she is hoping to Join as welt (but said we should go 
ahead and schedule a time that works for you and she will Join, If she can). 

Thanks. 

-Diana 

Diana 0. Salgado 
Senior Staff Attorney 
Public Policy Litigation & Law 
Planned Parenthood Federation of America 
212-261-4399 

This e~mail is for the sole use of the intended recipients and contains Information belonging to PPFA, which is confidential 
and/or legally privileged. If you are not the intended recipient, you are hereby notified that any disclosure, copying, distribution 
or taking of any action in reliance on the contents of this e-mail information Is strictly prohibited. If you have received this e­
mail in error, please Immediately notify the sender by reply e-mail and destroy all copies of the orlglnalmessage. 

On Fri, Feb 5, 2016 at 3:21 PM, Jill Habig <iill.hablg@doj.ca.gov> wrote: 
Ok let's set the date/time for 2/10 at 12pm. I'll send around a call-in number. Thanks all! 

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
. Date: Wednesday, February 3, 2016 at 7:19 AM 

To: Beth Parker <beth.parker@ppacca.org> 
Cc: Jill Habig <fill.habig@doj.ca.gov>, Janlll Richards <Janill.Rlchards@doj.ca.gov>, Kathleen Radez 
<Kathleen.Radez@doj.ca.gov>, Joshua Klein <Joshua.Klein@doj.ca.gov>, Jonathan M Eisenberg 
<Jonathan.Eisenberg@doj.ca.gov> 
Subject: Re: 9th circuit CPC cases - common interest privilege 

Thanks, everyone. 

I am free on 2/5 between 1·3, on 2/8 between 1-3, and on 2/10 between-11--2. 

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

This e~ma/1 Is for the sole use of the intended recipients and contains information belonging to PPFA, which Is confidential 
and/or legally prlv/leged. ff you are not the Intended recipient, you are hereby notified that any disclosure, copying, distribution 
or taking of any action In re/lance on the contents of this e-mail information Is strictly prohibited. If you have received this e­
mail in error, please Immediately notify the sender by reply e-mail and destroy all copies of the original message. 

On Tue, Feb 2, 2016 at 9:17 PM, Parker, Beth <beth,earker@ppacca.org> wrote: 

Adding Diana Salgado from PPP A to this chain. 

From: Jill Habig [mailto:jill.habig@doj.ca.gov] 
Sent: Tuesday, February 02, 2016 6:15 PM 
To: Parker, Beth <beth.parker@PPACCA.ORG> 
Cc: Janill Richards <Janill.Richards@doj.ca.gov>; Kathleen Radez <Kathleen.Radez@doj.ca.gov>; Joshua 
Klein <Joshua.Klein@doi.ca.gov>; Jonathan M Eisenberg <Jonathan.Eisenberg@doj.ca.gov> 
Subject: Re: 9th circuit CPC cases - common interest privilege 

Beth, 

I'm cc'.ing my colleagues from DOJ who would like to join·the call. To propose a few times, how about 2/5 between 1-3pm, 
2/8 after 1pm, or 2/10 between 11-2? Any of those windows work? · 

Thanks, 

Jill 

Jill E. Habig 

Special Counsel to the Attorney General 

California Department of Justice 

Office of Attorney General Kamala D. Harris 

455 <:lolden Gate Ave., Ste 14500 

San Francisco, CA 94102 

415-703-1008 
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l 

jill.habig@doj.ca.goy 

From: Beth Parker <beth.parker~ppacca.org> 
Date: Tuesday, February 2, 2016 at 2:28 PM 
To: Jill Habig <ii11.habig@doj.ca.gov> 
Subject: 9th circuit CPC cases - common interest privilege 

Jill 

Who do you want to be on the call about the ninth circuit briefing in the CPC cases with the PPF A attorney 
handling the Arizona cas·e? We should try to set the call up as soon as possible. 

Beth 

Beth H. Parker, Chief Legal Counsel 

Planned Parenthood Affiliates of California J 555 Capitol Mall, Suite 510 I Sacramento, CA 95814 

916.446.5247 I 916'.441.0632 fax I 

The contents of this e:mall message, including any attachments.are Intended solely for the use of the person or entity to \Nhom the e-
. mail was addressed. It contains Information that may be protected by the attorney.client privilege, work·product doctrine, or other 
privileges, and may be restricted from disclosure by applicable state and federal law. If you are not the intended recipient .of this 
message, be advised that any dissemination, distribution, or use of the contents of this message Is strictly prohibited. If you have· 
received this message In error, or are not the named reolpient(s), please notify the sender immediately by reply e-mail or by phone at 
(916) 446·5247 ext. 108 and delete this message from your computer. Thank you. 

CONFIDENTIALITY NOTICE: This conununicati9n with its contents may contain confidential and/or legally privileged . 
information. It is solely for the use of the intended recipient(s). Unauthorized interception, review, use or disclosure is 
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prohibited and may violate applicable laws including the Electronic Communications Privacy Act. If you are not the intended 
recipient, please contact the sender and destroy all copies of the communication. 

CONFIDENTIALITY NOTICE: This communication with Its contents may contain confidential and/or legally privileged 
information. It Is solely for the use of the intended recipient{s). Unauthorized Interception, review, use or disclosure is 
prohibited and may violate applicable laws Including the Electronic Communications Privacy Act. If you are not the intended 
recipient, please contact the sender and.destroy all copies of the communication. 

CONFIDENTIALITY NOTICE: This communication with its contents may contain confidential and/or legally privileged 
information. It ls solely for the use of the Intended reclpient(s). Unauthorized interception, review, use or disclosure Is 
prohibited and may violate applicable laws Including the Electronic Communications Privacy Act. If you are not the Intended 
recipient, please contact the sender and destroy all copies of the communication. 
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From: 
Sent: 

Salgado, Diana < dlana.salgado@ppfa.org > 
Wednesday, April 20, 201611:17 AM 

To: Jill Habig 
Cc: Parker, Beth 
Subject: Re: 9th circuit CPC cases - common interest privilege 

That works for me. I can circulate a conference number sho~ly . 

Diana 0. Salgado 
Senior Staff Attorney 
Public Policy Litigation & Law 
Planned Parenthood Federation ofAmerica 
212-261-4399 

. ;• 

This e~mail is for the sole use of the intended recipients and contains il'/fotmation belonging to PP F'A, which is 
confidential andlo.r legally privileged Jfyou are not the intended recipient; you are hereby notified that any 
disclosure., copying,. distribution or taking of any action in reliance on the contents of this e-mail information 1'.Y 

strictly prohibitecl lfyou have received this e-mail in error, please immediately notify the sender by reply e­
mail ctncl destroy all copies <fthe original message. 

On Wed, Apr 20, 2016 at 2:11 PM, Jill Habig <jill.habig@doi.ca.gov> wrote: 
How about 11:30? 

From: "Salgado, Diana" <diana.salgado@ppfa.org> 
Date: Wednesday, April 20, 2016 at 7:34 AM 
To: Jill Habig <llll.habig@doj.ca.gov> 

· Cc: Beth Parker <beth.parker@ppacca.org> 
Subject: Re: 9th circuit CPC cases - common interest privilege 

Thanks for getting back to me, Jill. Any time between 10-1 PST works best for me and Beth. If that doesn't work for you, let me 
know what time does and I'm sure I can make it work. 

Thanks. 

Diana 0. Salgadp 
Senior Staff Attorney 
Public Policy Litigation & Law 
Planned Parenthood Federation of America 
212-261-4399 

1 



This e-mail is for the sole use of the intended recipients and contains information belonging to PPFA, which is confident/al 
and/or legally privileged. If you are not the intended recipient, you are hereby notified that any disclosure, copying, distribution 
or taking of any action In reliance on the contents of this e-mail information Is strictly prohibited. If you have received this e­
mail In error, please immediately notify the sender by reply e-mall and destroy alf copies of the original message. 

on Tue, Apr 19, 2016 at 11:52 PM, Jill Habig <illl,habig@doj.ca.gov> wrote: 
Diana, 
I'm happy to talk tomo.rrow. We would certainly welcome amicus participation since thls case raises some new 
Issues, Attached Is our brief. Let me know when you have time tomorrow. 

Thanks, 
Jill 

From: "Salgado, Q.iana" <diana.salgado@ppfa.org> 
Date: Tuesday, April 19, 2016 at 8:58 AM 
To: Jill Habig <jill,habig@do!.ca.gov> 

· Cc: Beth Parker <beth.parker@ppacca.org> 
Subject: Re: 9th circuit CPC cases - common Interest privilege 

HI JIii -

I'm emailing about the NIFLA case challenging the FACT Act, which is now on appeal in the 9th Circuit. My understanding is 
that that case (unlike the two prior cases) challenges both the disclosure requirement for licensed facilities and the disclosure 
requirement for unlicensed facilities. I've been in conversation with Physicians for Reproductive Health about whether to 
submit an amicus brief In the NIFl.A case. I was hoping we could have a call to discuss the current thinking on that. 

Unfortunately, the deadline for amitus briefs Is April 21. Would you have time for a quick call today or tomorrow? I am free to 
talk pretty much at any time. I'm also cc'lng Beth Parker on this email since she Is hoping to Join as well (but said we should go 
ahead and schedule a time that works for you and she will join, if she can). 

Thanks. 

-Diana 

Diana 0. Salgado 
Senior Staff Attorney 
Public Policy Litigation & Law 
Planned Parenthood Federation of America 
212-261-4399 

This e-mail is for the sole use of the intended recipients and contains Information belonging to PPFA, which is confidential 
and/or legally privlleged. If you are not the Intended recipient, you are hereby notified that any disclosure, copying, distribution 
or taking of any action in reliance on the contents of this e-mail Information is strictly prohibited. If you have received this e­
mail In error, please immediately notify the sender by reply e-mall and destroy all coples of.the original message. 

On Fri, Feb 5, 2016 at 3:21 PM, Jill Habig <!lll.habig@doi.ca.gov> wrote: 
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
Office of Attorney General Kamala D, Harris 
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
Cc: Jill Habig <jill.hablg@doj.ca.gov>, Janill Richards <Janill.Rlchards@doj.ca.gov>, Kathleen Radez 
<Kathleen.Radez@dof.ca.gov>, Joshua Klein <Joshua.Klein@dof.ca.gov>, Jonathan M Eisenberg 
<Jonathan.Eisenberg@doj.ca.gov> 
Subject: Re: 9th circuit CPC c~ses • common interest privilege 

Thanks, everyone. 

I am free on 2/5 between 1-3, on 2/8 between 1-3, and on 2/10 between 11--2. 

Looking forward to the call. 

Diana 0. Salgado 
Senior Staff Attorney 
Public Policy Litigation & Law 
Planned Parenthood Federation of America 
212-261-4399 

This e-malf is for the sole use of the intended recipients and contains information belonging to PPFA, which is confldentfa/ 
· and/or legally privileged. If you are not the Intended recipient, you are hereby notified that any disclosure, copying, d!strfbutfon 
or taking of any action in· reliance on the contents of this e-ina/1 Information is strictly prohibited. If you have received this e­
mail In error, please immediately notify the sender by reply e-mail and destroy all copies of the original message; 

On Tue, Feb 2, 2016 at 9:17 PM, Parker, Beth <beth.parker@ppacca.org> wrote: 

Adding Diana Salgado from PPF A to this chain. 

From: Jill Habig [mailto:jill.habig@doj.ca.gov] 
Sent: Tuesday, February 02, 2016 6:15 PM 
To: Parker, Beth <beth.parker@PPACCA.ORG> 
Cc: Jani11 Richards <Janill.Richards@doj.ca.gov>; Kathleen Radez <Kathleen.Radez@doj.ca.gov>; Joshua 
Klein <Joshua.Klein@doj.ca.gov>; Jonathan M Eisenberg <Jo11atha11.Eisenberg@doj.ca.gov> 
Subject: Re: 9th circuit CPC cases - common interest privilege 

Beth, 
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I'm cc'ing my colleagues from DOJ who would like to join the c;all. To propose a few times, how about 2/5 between 1-3pm, 
2/8 after 1pm, or 2/10 between 11-2? Any of those windows work? 

Thanks, 

Jill 

Jill E. Habig 

Special Counsel to the Attorney General 
tf 

California Department of Justice 

Office of Attorney General Kamala D. Harris 

455 Golden Gate Ave., Ste 14500 

San Francisco, CA 94102 

415-703-1008 

iW,babig@doj.ca.gov 

From: Beth Parker <beth.parker@ppacca.org> 
Date: Tuesday, February 2, 2016 at 2:28 PM 
To: Jill Habig <iill.habig@doj.ca.gov> · 
Subject: 9th circuit CPC cases - common interest privilege 

Jill 

(I 

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
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Planned Parenthood Affiliates of Califomia I 555 Capitol Mall, Suite 510 I Sacramento, CA 95814 

916.446.5247 I 916.441.0632 fax I 

The contents of this e-mail message, Including any attachments, are Intended solely for the use of the person or entity to whom the e-
mail was addressed. It contains Information that may be prbtected by the attorney-client privilege, work-product doctrine, or other 1 

privileges, and may be restricted from disclosure by applicable state and federal law. If you are not the Intended recipient of this 
message, be advised that any dissemination, distribution, or use of the contents of this message Is strictly prohibited. If you have 
received this message In error, or are not the named reclpient(s), please notify the sender immediately by reply e-mail or by phone at 
(916) 446-5247 ext. 108 and delete this message from your computer. Thank you. 

CONFIDEN'.I'IALITY NOTICE: This communication with its contents may contain confidential and/or legally privileged 
information. It is solely for the use of the intended recipient(s). Unauthorized interception, review, use or disclosure is· 
prohibited and may violate applicable laws including the Electronic Communications Privacy Act. If you are not the intended 
recipient, please contact the sender and destroy all copies of the commimication. 

CONFIDENTIALITY NOTICE: This communication with its contents may contain confidential and/or legally privileged 
information. It-is solely for the use of the Intended recipient(s). Unauthorized interception, review, use or disclosure is 
prohibited and may violate applicable laws including the Electronic Communications Privacy Act. If you are not the intended 
recipient, please contact the sender and destroy all copies of the communication. 

CONFIDENTIALITY NOTICE: This communication with Its contents may contain confidential and/or legally privileged 
information. It is solely for the use of the Intended reclplent(s). Unauthorized lnterceptlo·n, review, use or disclosure Is 
prohibited and may violate applicable laws including the Electronic Communications Privacy Act. If you are not the Intended 
recipient, please contact the sender and destroy all copies of the communication.· · 

CONFIDENTIALITY NOTICE: This communication with its contents may contain confidential and/or legally privileged 
information. It Is solely for the use of the intended recipient(s). Unauthorized interception, review, use or disclosure is 
prohibited and may violate applicable laws including the Electronic Communications Privacy Act. If you are not the intended 
recipient, please contact the sender and destroy all copies oft.he communication. 
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From: 
Sent: 
To: 
Subject: 

Me too 

Parker, Beth <beth.parker@PPACCA.ORG> 
Wednesday, April 20, 2016 11:20 AM 
Salgado, Diana; Jill Habig 
RE: 9th circuit CPC cases - common interest privilege 

From: Salgado, Diana [mailto:diana.saigado@ppfa.org] 
. Sent: Wednesday, April 20, 2016 11:17 AM . 
To: Jill Habig <Jill.habig@doj.ca.gov> 
Cc: Parker, Beth <b'eth:parker@PPACCA.ORG> 
Subject: Re: 9th circuit CPC cases - common Interest prlvllege 

That works for me. I can circulate a conference number shortly .. 

Diana 0. Salgad,o 
Senior Staff Attorney . 
Public Policy Litigation & Law 
Planned Parenthood Federation of America 
212-261-4399 , 

This e~mail is/or the sole use of the intendedrecipient,'J and contains information belonging to PPFA .. which is 
confidential and/or legally privileged. ff'you are not the intended recipient, you are hereby notified that any 
disclosure, copying, distribution or taking of any action in reliance on the contents of this e-mail information is 
strictly prohibited. Jf you have received this e-mail tn error, please immediately notify the sender by reply e~ 
mail and destroy all copies of the original message. 

On Wed, Apr 20, 2016 at 2:11 PM, Jill Habig <jill.habig@doj.ca.gov> wrote: 
How about 11:30? 

From: 11Salgatjo, Diana" <dlana.salgado@ppfa.org> 
Date: Wednesday, April 20, 2016 at 7:34 AM 
To: Jill Habig <jill.habig@dol.ca.gov> 
Cc: Beth Parker <beth.parker@ppacca.org> 
Subject: Re: 9th circuit CPC cases.· common interest privilege 

Thanks for getting back to me, Jill. Any time between 10-1 PST works best for me and Beth. If that doesn't work for you, let 
me know what time does and I'm sure I can make it work. 

Thanks. 



Diana 0. Salgado 
Senior Staff Attorney 
Public Policy Litigation & Law 
Planned Parenthood Federation of America 
212-261-4399 

This e-mail is for the sole use of the Intended recipients and contains information belonging to PPFA, which is confidential 
and/or legally prfvileged. If you are not the intended recipient, you are hereby notified that any disclosure, copying, 
distribution or taking of any action in reliance on the contents of this e-mail informatfon Is strictly prohibited. If you have 
received this e-mail in error, please Immediately notify the sender by reply e-mail and destroy all copies of the original 
message. 

On Tue, Apr 19, 2016 at 11:52 PM, Jill Hablg
0

<l1i1.habig@doj.ca.gov> wrote: 

Diana, 
I'm happy to talk tomorrow. We would certainly welcome amicus participation since this case raises some new 
Issues. Attached ls our brief. Let me know when you have time tomorrow. 

Thanks, 
Jill 

From: "Salgado, Diana" <diana.salgado@ppfa.org> 
Date: Tuesday, April 19, 2016 at 8:58 AM 
To: Jill Habig <iill.habig@doj.ca.gov> 
Cc: Beth Parker <beth.parker@ppacca.org> . 
Subject: Re: 9th circuit CPC cases - common Interest privilege 

Hi Jill -

I'm emailing about the NIFLA case challenging the FACT Act, which is now on appeal in the 9th Circuit. My understanding is 
. that that case (unlike the.two prior cases) challenges both the disclosure requirement for licensed facilities and the 
disclosure requirement for unlicensed facilities. I've been In conversation with Physicians for Reproductive Health about · 
wh.ether to submit an amicus brief In the NIFLA cas~. I was hoping we could have a call to discuss the current thinking on 
that. 

Unfortunately, the deadline for amicus briefs is April 21. Would you have time for a quick call today or tomorrow? I am free 
to talk pretty much at any time. I'm also cc'ing Beth Parker on this email since she is hoping to Join as well (but said we 
should go ahead and schedule a time that works for you and she will Join, if she can). 

Thanks. 

-Diana 

Diana 0. Salgado 
Senior Staff Attorney 
Public Policy Litigation & Law 
Planned Par~nthood Federation of America 
212-261-4399 . 
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This e-mail Is for the sole use of the Intended recipients and contains information belonging to PPFA, which ls confidential 
and/or legally privileged. If you are not the Intended recipient, you are hereby notified that any disclosure, copying, 
distribution or taking of any action In reliance on the contents of this e-mail Information Is strictly prohibited. If you have 
received this e-mail In error, please Immediately notify the sender by reply e-mail and destroy all copies of the original 
message. 

On Fri, Feb 5,, 2016,at 3:21 PM, Jill Habig <lili.hablg@doj.ca.gov> wrote: 

Ok let's set the date/time for 2/10 at 12pm. I'll send around a call-in number. Thanks all I 

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
jil!.habig@doj.ca.gov 

From: "Salgado, Diana 11 <diana.salgado@ppfa.org> 
Date: Wednesday, February 3, 2016 at 7:19 Al'/1 
To: Beth Parker <beth.parker@ppacca.org> 
Cc: Jill Habig <jill.hablg@doj.ca.gov>, Janill Richards <Janlll.Richards@doj.ca.gov>, Kathleen Radez 
<Kathleen.Radez@doj.ca.gov>, Joshua Klein <Joshua.Klein@doj.ca.gov>, Jonathan M Eisenberg 
<Jonathan.Elsenberg@doj.ca.gov> 
Subject: Re: 9th circuit CPC cases - common interest privilege 

Thanks, everyone. 

I am free on 2/5 between 1-3, on 2/8 between 1-3, and on 2/10 between 11·-2. 

Looking forward to the call. 

Diana O. Salgado 
Senior Staff Attorney 
Public Policy Litigation & Law 
Planned Parenthood Federation of America 
212-261-4399 

This e-maf/ Is for the sole use of the intended recipients and contains lnfo,rmatfon belonging to PPFA, which is confidential 
and/or legally privlfeged. If you are not the Intended recipient, you are hereby notified that any disclosure, copying, 
distribution or taking of any action In reliance on the contents of this e-mail Information is strictly prohibited. If you have 
received this e-mail In error, please immediately notify the sender by reply e-mail and destroy all copies of the original 
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
Sent:' Tuesday, February 02, 2016 6:15 PM 
To: Parker, Beth <beth.parker@PPACCA.ORG> 
Cc: Janill Richards <Janill.Richards@doj.ca.gov>; Kathleen Radez <Kathleen.Radez@doj.ca.gov>; Joshua 
Klein <Joshua.Klein@doj.ca.gov>; Jonathan M Eisenberg <Jonathan.Eisenberg@doj.ca.gov> 
Subject: Re: 9th.circuit CPC cases - common interest privilege 

Beth, 

I'm cc 'ing my colleagues from DOJ who would like to join the call. To propose a few times, how about 2/5 between l • 
3pm, 2/8 after 1pm, or 2/10 between 11-2?- Any of those windows work? 

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

j ill.habig@doj.ca.,i:ov 

From: Beth Parker <beth.parker@ppacca.org> 
Date: Tuesday, February 2, 2016 at 2:28 PM 
To: Jill Habig <jill.habig@doi.ca.gov> 
Subject: 9th circilit CPC cases - common interest privilege 

Jill 
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Who do you want to be on the call about the ninth circuit briefing in the CPC cases with the PPP A attorney 
handling the Arizona case? We should try to set the call up as soon as possible. 

Beth 

Beth H. Parker, Chief Legal Counsel 

Planned Parenthood Affiliates of California I 555 Capitol Mall, Suite 510 I Sacramento, CA! 95814 

916.446.5247 I 916.441.0632 fax I 

The contents of this e-mail message, Including any attachments, are Intended solely for the use of the person or entity to whom the 
e-mail was addressed. It contains Information that may be protected by the attorney-client privilege, work-product doctrine, or 
other privileges, and may be restricted from disclosure by applicable state and federal law. If you are not the intended recipient of 
this message, be advised that any dissemination, distribution, or use of the contents of this message is strictly prohibited. If you 
have received this message In error, or are not the named reclplent(s), please notify the sender immediately by reply e-mail or by 
phone at (916) 446-5247 ext. 108 and delete this message from your computer. Thank you. 

CONFIDENTIALITY NOTICE: This conununication with its contents may contain confidential and/or legally·privileged 
infonnation. It is solely for the use of the intended recipient(s). Unauthorized interception, review, use or disclosure is 
prohibited and may violate applicable laws including the Electronic Communications Privacy Act. If you are not the 
intended recipient, please contact the sender and destroy all copies of the communication. 

CONFIDENTIALITY NOTICE: This communication with Its contents may contain confidential and/or legally privileged 
information. It is solely for the use of the Intended reclpient(s). Unauthorized Interception, review, use or disclosure is 
prohibited and may violate applicable laws Including the Electronic Communications Privacy Act. If you are not the 
intended recipient, please contact the sender and destroy all copies of the communication. 

CONFIDENTIALITY NOTICE: This communication with Its contents may contain confidential and/or legally privileged 
Information. It Is solely for th~ use of the Intended reciplent(s), Unauthorized interception, review, use or disclosure Is 
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prohibited and may Violate applicable laws Including the Electronic Communications Privacy Act. If you are not the Intended 
recipient, please contact the sender and destroy all copies of the communication. 

CONFIDENTIALITY NOTICE: This communication with its contents may contain confidential and/or legally privileged 
information. It ls solely for the use of the intended reclplent(s). Unauthorized Interception, review, use or disclosure ls 
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
Wednesday, April 20, 201611:22 AM 
Parker, Beth 

Cc: Jill Habig 
Subject: Re: 9th circuit CPC cases - common interest privilege 

Here's a conference number we can use: 

Diana 0. Salgado 
Senior Staff Attorney 
Public Policy Litigation & Law 
Planned Parenthood Federation of America 
212-261-4399 

.This e-mail isjor the sole use of the intended recipients and contains i71formation belonging to PPFA, 1vhich ts 
confidential andlor legally prh•ileged. ffyou are not the tntend~d recipient, you are hereby not(fied that any 
disclosure, copying, distribution or taking of any action in reliance on the contents of this e-mail t11formation ;s 
strictly prohibited. .!f'you have received t~is e~mail in error., please immediately notffy the sender by reply e­
mail and destroy all copies of the original message. 

On Wed, Apr 20, 2016 at 2:19 PM, Parker, Beth <beth.parker@ppacca.org> wrote: 

Me too 

From: Salgado, Diana [mailto:dlana.salgado@ppfa.org] 
Sent: Wednesday, April 20, 201611.:17 AM 
To: Jill Habig <jill.hablg@doj.ca.gov> 
Cc: Parker, Beth <beth.parker@PPACCA.ORG> 
Subject: Re: 9th circuit CPC cases - common interest privilege 

That works for me. I can circulate a conference number shortly. 

-1: 



Diana 0. Salgado 
Senior Staff Attorney 
Public Policy Litigation & Law 
Planned Parenthood Federation of America 
212-261-4399 

This e-mail is for the sole use of the intended recipients ctnd contains injbrmation belonging to PPFA, ·which is 
confidential and/or legally privileged Ifyou are not the intended recipient, you are hereby notified that any 
disclosure, copying, distribution or taking qf any action in reliance on the contents qf'this e-mail iriformation is 
strictly prohibited. Jj'you have received this e-mail in error .. please immediately not(fj; the sender by reply e-. 
mail and destroy all copies of the original message. 

On Wed, Apr 20, 2016 at 2:11 PM, Jill Habig <;jill.habig@doj.ca.gov> wrote: 

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

Thanks for getting back to me, JIii. Any time between 10·'1 PST works best for me and Beth. If that doesn't work for you, let 
me know what time does and I'm sure I can make it work. 

Thanks. 

Diana 0. Salgado 
Senior Staff Attorney 
Public Policy Litigation & Law 
Planned Parenthood Federation of America 
212-261-4399 

This e-mail is for the sole use of the Intended recipients and contains Information belonging to PPFA, which is confidential 
and/or legally pr/vl/eged. If you are not the intended recfpfent, you are hereby notified that any disclosure, copying, 
distribution or taking of any action In reliance on the contents of this e-mail information is strictly prohibited. If you have 
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received this e-ma/1 In error, please Immediately notify the sender by reply e-maf/ and destroy all copies of the original 
message. 

on Tue, Apr 19, 2016 at 11:52 PM, Jill Habig <jill.hablg@dof.ca.gov> wrote: 

Diana, 

I'm happy to talk tomorrow. We would certainly welcome amicus participation since this case raises some new 
issues. -Attached is our brief. Let me know when you have time tomorrow. 

Thanks, 

Jill 

From: "Salgado, Diana" <diana.salgado@ppfa.org> 
Date: Tuesday, April 19, 2016 at 8:58 AM 
To: Jill Habig <iilf.hablg@doJ.ca.gov> 
Cc: Beth Parker <beth.Qarker@ppacca.org> 
Subject: Re: 9th. circuit CPC cases - common interest privilege 

Hi Jill -

I'm emailing about the NIFLA case challenging the FACT Act, which Is now on appeal in the 9th Circuit. My. understanding Is 
that that case (unlike the two prior cases) challenges both the disclosure requirement for licensed facillties and the 
disclosure requirement for unllcensed facilities. I've been in conversation with Physicians for Reproductive Health about 
whether to ·submit an amfcus brief in the NIFLA case. I was hoping we could have a call to discuss the current thinking on 
~~ I 

Unfortunately, the deadline for amlcus briefs is April 21. Would you have time for a quick call today or tomorrow? I am free 
to talk pretty much at any time. I'm also cc'lng Beth Parker on this email since she is hoping to Join as well (but said we 
should go ahead and schedule a time that works for you and sh~ will join, if she can). 

Thanks. 

-Diana 
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Diana O. Salgado 
Senior Staff Attorney 
Public Polley Litigation & Law 
Planned Parenthood Federation of America 
212-261-4399 

This e-mail is for the sole use of the Intended recipients and contains information belonging to PPFA, which ls confident/al 
and/or legally privileged. If you are not the Intended recipient, you are hereby notified that any disclosure, copying, 
distribution or taking of any action in reliance on the contents of this e-mail information is s~rictly prohibited. If you have 
received this e-mail In error, please Immediately notify the sender by reply e-mail and destroy all copies of the original 
message. 

On Fri, Feb 5, 2016 at 3:21 PM, Jill Habig <iill.habig@do!.ca.gov> wrote: 

Ok let's set the datef.time for 2/10 at 12pm. I'll send aroupd a call-in number. Thanks all I 

Jill E. Habig 

· Special Counsel to the Attorney General 

California Department of Justice 

Office of Attorney General Kamala D. Harris 

455 Golden Gate Ave., Ste 14500 

San Francisco, CA 94102 

415-703-1008 

jill.habig@doj.ca.goY 

From: 11Salgado, Oiana 11 <diana.salgado@ppfa.org> 
Date: Wednesday, February 3, 2016 at 7:19 AM 
To: Beth Parker <beth.parker@ppacca.org> 
Cc: JIii Habig <illl.hablg@doj.ca.goy>, Janlll Richards <Janlll.Rlchards@doj.ca.gov>, Kathleen Radez 
<Kathleen.Radez@doi.ca.gov>, Joshua Klein <Joshua.Klein@doi.ca.gov>, Jonathan M Eisenberg 
<Jonathan.Elsenberg@doj.ca.goV> 
Subject: Re: 9th circuit CPC cases - common interest privilege 
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Thanks, everyone. 

I am free on 2/5 between 1~3, on 2/8 between 1-3, and on 2/10 between 11--2. 

Looking forward to the call. 

Diana 0. Salgado 
Senior Staff Attorney 
Public Policy Litigation & Law 
Planned Parenthood Federation of America 
212-261·4399 

This e-mail is for the sole use of the Intended recipients and contains Information belonging to PPFA, which is confidential 
and/or legally priVileged. If you are not the Intended recipient, you are hereby notified that any disalosure, copying, 
distribution or tal<lng of any action in reliance on the contents of this e-mail information Is strictly prohibited. If you have 
received this e-mail in error, please Immediately notify the sender by reply e-mail and destroy al/ copies of the original 
message. 

On Tue, Feb 2, 2016 at 9:17 PM, Parker, Beth <beth.parker@ppacca.org> wrote: · 

Adding Diana Salgado from PPF A t.o thi$ chain. 

From: Jill Habig [mailto:jill.habig@doj.ca.gov] 
Sent: Tuesday, February 02, 2016 6:15 PM 
1o: Parker, Beth <ge~h.parker@PPACCA.ORG> 
Cc: Janill Richards <Janill.Richards@doj.ca.gov>; Kathleen Radez <Kathleen.Radez@doj.ca.gov>; Joshua 
Klein <Joshua.Klein@doj.ca.gov>; Jonathan M Eisenberg <Jonathan.Eisenberg@doj.ca.gov> 
Subject: Re: 9th circuit CPC cases~ common interest privilege · 

Beth, 

I'm cc'ing my colleagues from DOJ who would like to join the call. To propose a few times, how about 2/5 between 1-
3pm, 2/8 after 1pm, or 2/10 between 11-2? Any of those windows work? 
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

From: Beth Parker <beth.parker@ppacca.org>. 
Date: Tuesday, February 2, 2016 at 2:28 PM 
To: Jill Habig <jill.habig@doj.ca.gov> 
Subject: 9th circuit CPC cases - common interest privilege 

Jill 

Who do you ·want to be on the call about the ninth circuit briefing in the CPC oases with the PPP A attorney 
handling the Arizona case? We should try to set the call up as soon as possible. 

Beth . 

Beth H .. Parker, Chief Legal Counsel 

Planned Parenthood Affiliates of California I 555 Capitol Mall, Suite 510 I Sacramento, CA 95814 

916.446.5247 I 916.441.0632 fax I 
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The contents of this e•mail message, including any attachments, are Intended solely for the use of the person or entity to whom the 
e-mail was addressed. It contains information that may be protected by the attorney-client privilege, work-product doctrine, or 
other privileges, and may be restricted from disclosure by appllcable state and federal law. If you are not the Intended recipient of 
this message, be advised that any dissemination, distribution, or use of the contents of this message is strictly prohibited. If you 
have received this message in error, or are not the named reclpient(s), please notify the sender immediately by reply e-mail or by 
phone at (916) 446·5247 ext. 108 and delete this message from your computer. Thank you. 

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
information. It Is solely for the use of the intended reciplent(s). Unauthorized Interception, review, use or disclosure is 
prohibited and may violate applicable laws including the Electronic Communications PrlV<JCY Act. If you are not the 
intended recipleryt, please contact the sender and destroy all copies of the communlcatlo

0

n. 

CONFIDENTIALITY NOTICE: This communication with Its contents may contain confidential and/or legally privileged 
Information. It Is solely for the use of the Intended reclpient(s). Unauthorized Interception, review, use or disclosure is 
prohibited and may violate applicable laws including the Electronic Communications Privacy Act. If you are not the Intended 
recipient, please contact the sender and destroy all copies of the communication. 1 

CONFIDENTIALITY NOTICE: This communication with its contents may contain confidential and/or legally privileged 
information. It is solely for the use of the intended reciplent(s). Unauthorized interception, review, use or disclosure Is 
prohibited and may violate applicable laws including the Electronic Communications Privacy Act. If you are not the intended 
recipient, please contact the sender and destroy all copies of the communication. 
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